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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ARIER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
BZE-Z-8fF HE-ZT—mF
+=B=+—~H +=-A=+—H
LHFEE IFEE

HK$’ millionB&& T

HKS$’ million & &% 7T

EBITDA* RINBRRZ - BiE - FTER m
BRI R R 5,239.1
Profit before tax* R A1 5 m 2,442.5
Net profit attributable to owners AATIEE ABGLR _
of the Company
— Underlying net profit* — EARER _ 1,800.7
- Reported net profit — FREAET m 2,536.8
Basic earnings per share FREXER _
- Based on underlying net profit* — AR A FIET E HK$1.75678 7T
- Based on reported net profit —LABREAFETE HK$2.4737% 7T
Full-year dividend per share BERE2ERE HK50.0 centsi 1l
— Interim dividend per share —BRFEHRE HK20.0 centsil
— Proposed final dividend per share —BERERRERE HK30.0 centsill
Dividend payout ratio* KB Eb 2R 28%
1
Net asset value per share BREEFE HK$34.878 7T
Net gearing FAME=R 42%
* Excluding: * TEE -
(1) Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$249.6 million, 1) KEMELAFEEYH 2R

net of deferred tax and portion shared by non-controlling shareholders

(FY2014: HK$1,040.5 million).

2) Share-based payments of HK$62.8 million, net of portion shared by non-

controlling shareholders (FY2014: HK$6.9 million).

Q) For the year ended 31 December 2014, impairment loss recognised in
respect of properties, plant and equipment of HK$297.5 million, net of

portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2015: Nil).

(4) Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments of HK$310.6
million, net of portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2014: Nil).

# Calculated base on underlying net profit
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Excluding non-recurring items
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

I am delighted to report a set of resilient results for Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 (“FY2015”). The year saw sluggish growth among major economics
worldwide, with the rebound in the Eurozone weaker than expected and
slowed activity in emerging markets. At the same time, mainland China was
experiencing an economic reform amid a continuous decline in petroleum
and bulk commodity prices. As a result, chemical industry was faced
with a difficult operating environment and the Group’s chemical division’s
performance was negatively impacted. However, the development of high-
speed telecommunications networks, coupled with technological innovations
in smart applications and the Internet of Things, has created a huge market
for the high-ended electronics sector. During the year, the laminates and
printed circuit board (“PCB”) divisions both recorded satisfactory results. The
property division has also entered the harvesting phase. With the booking of
several projects, this division contributed considerable earnings to the Group.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ 585 7

FEH o

AARA R ZELCIREERAF (&
BDRBE_Z-AF+-A=1+—HLLHEK
FERSRENES - HIRNRRS KL HEEIE
RKBETH  BMTRSEERBENTAY - #
ETS R AE o LRGBS - f
HMEARREMERSEERRE  ERTXHE
BENKERE  SELIHMIRAETEY
2 - AMaSEBABE - B kYAl
BORBER  RemEFREXAETEX
BT 5 ZE ) o 5% B 7 4 E AR B P M ED R AR B AR
EBFIERISIEIRRIR WD - BHERPITFTZA
WHH - ZEEBERFAANE - AEEERA
Ban -

FY2015
—E-HEMHBFE

30%

PCBs
NI 4R B& AR

Chemicals

ftIER

B Laminates
BINER

38%

[ Properties

FY2014
—E-UFEFRFE

[0 Others
YES Hth

° KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

With a focus on high technology and high-value-adding manufacturing
businesses, the Group has equipped with a diversified division portfolio
which gives a strong resilience against market fluctuations. Group revenue
in 2015 showed a drop of 9% over the previous year to HK$32,788.2
million, delivering an underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items)
of HK$1,774.1 million, a decrease of 1%. Basic earnings per share based
on underlying profit were HK$1.730. In the absence of new completions of
investment properties, the gain on property valuation was lower than that of
the corresponding period last year. As a result, reported net profit decreased
by 35% to HK$1,650.3 million, with basic earnings per share based on
reported net profit amounting to HK$1.609. The Group’s financial position
remained robust,and the Board has proposed a final dividend of HK30
cents per share, subject to shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim
dividend of HK20 cents per share paid in October 2015, this will constitute
a full-year dividend of HK50 cents per share, representing a payout ratio of
29%.

PERFORMANCE

The demand-supply dynamics in the laminates industry continued to improve,
driving strong demand for high-performance laminates during the year.
Seizing this window of opportunity, the Group has expanded the production
of glass epoxy laminates (“FR4”), leading to a 1% increase in laminates
shipments. As raw material costs dropped significantly during the period, the
selling prices of products were adjusted down, resulting in a 4% year-on-year
decrease in segment turnover (including inter-segment sales) to HK$12,882.4
million. But benefitting from a smaller adjustment in laminates’ selling price
relative to the drop in material costs, the profit margin has improved, driving
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) up by
11% to HK$2,345.6 million.

Sustaining efforts to explore the production of high-value-adding PCB
products with high technical requirements, the PCB division was able to
continually increase the output of multi-layer and high density interconnect
(“HDI”) PCB, fulfilling strong demand from downstream products such as
mobile phones and telecommunications and automotive-related products.
The restructuring of Elec & Eltek Group progressed smoothly, and its
business has shown a rebounding trend since the second half of the year.
The PCB division recorded a 5% decline in segment turnover to HK$7,103.8
million, of which HDI PCB sales contributed 22% of the division’s total.
EBITDA rose 5% to HK$733.1 million.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®HE

PERFORMANCE (ontinued)

The chemical division came under the dual impact of a drop in petroleum
prices and weakened demand in mainland China, causing chemical product
prices to slide. The chemical division therefore recorded a 27% decline in
segment turnover (including inter-segment sales) to HK$10,387.0 million.
EBITDA was down 33% to HK$916.9 million. Share of associates (the bulk of
which was contributed by the natural gas-based methanaol joint venture with
China BlueChemical Limited) resulted a loss of HK$12.2 million.

A number of sales properties were completed consecutively during the
period under review. Part of the proceeds from the pre-sales of Huagiao Yu
Garden Phase Il, Qiandeng Yu Garden Phase Il, and Zhangpu Yu Garden
were booked during the second half of the year. Taking into account the
full booking of pre-sales proceeds from Huagiao Yu Garden Phase | during
the first half, sales revenue surged to HK$3,505.4 million. Together with
rental income of HK$552.1 million, the property division reported a turnover
of HK$4,057.5 million, a significant increase of 51%. Contracted sales of
HK$2,357.0 million were registered on total contracted sales floor area of
234,000 square metres. As at 31 December 2015, the Group held a prime
land bank in Shanghai and Kunshan measuring a gross floor area of over 5
million square metres.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial and liquidity position continued to be solid. As at 31
December 2015, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$20,190.7 million (31 December 2014: HK$16,934.4 million)
and 2.24 (31 December 2014: 1.82) respectively.

The net working capital cycle was increased from 51 days as at 31 December
2014 to 57 days as at 31 December 2015 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased to 30 days (31
December 2014: 33 days).

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtor turnover days, was 64 days (31
December 2014: 59 days).

- Trade and bills payable, in terms of creditor turnover days, was 37
days (31 December 2014: 41 days).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest-bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) was approximately 38% (31 December
2014: 42%). The proportion of bank borrowings between short term and long
term stood at 30%:70% (31 December 2014: 44%:56%). During the year
under review, the Group invested HK$1.5 billion and HK$4.2 billion in new
production capacity and property development projects respectively. With
a professional and seasoned management team coupled with our concrete
business foundation and robust balance sheet, the Group is confident that
these investments will generate stable and attractive long-term returns
to our shareholders. Less than 1% of the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB, while the remainder were in Hong Kong dollars or US
dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. It did
not enter into any material derivative financial instruments, nor did the Group
have any material foreign exchange exposure during the year. The Group’s
revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a global workforce of approximately
43,200 (31 December 2014: 45,300). Through the continued increase in
the level of automation at its plants, the Group was able to streamline its
manpower where low efficiencies were recorded. This has enabled the Group
to raise efficiency while controlling costs. In addition to offering competitive
salary packages, the Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses
to eligible employees based on the Group’s overall financial achievement and
employees’ individual performance. The Group’s continued success relies
on a comprehensive human resources strategy. The Kingboard Institute of
Management was established to provide management training for middle and
senior managers of the Group. The Group also recruits fresh graduates from
both mainland China and Hong Kong each year in its search for and nurture
of talents. In future, the Group will continue its efforts in developing and
retaining staff through its management training schemes, in order to drive its
long-term development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®HE

PROSPECTS

Management holds confidence in the Group’s development in 2016, and
looks forward to achieving breakthroughs in its industrial and property
business.

Laminates sales continue to show strong momentum during the first
quarter of 2016. In particular, the production of FR4 used in high-ended
electronic products is close to full capacity. Management has started to
identify appropriate acquisition targets with a view to satisfying the strong
demand from downstream industries, and as a means to expedite market
consolidation.

PCB orders are also growing on the back of robust demand from
smartphones, telecommunications base stations, servers and automotive-
related sectors. The Group’s HDI PCB production is beginning to experience
an undersupply. It is therefore planning to expand investments on equipment
for HDI PCB manufacturing to a higher level of automation. The Group is also
considering acquiring existing HDI PCB capacities when necessary. As the
restructuring of Elec & Eltek Group is about to conclude, it is expected that
the division’s research and development capability and product quality will be
greatly enhanced. Management hopes to achieve profitability for this division
in 2016.

Chemical prices continue to hover at low levels owing to global economic
fluctuations and low petroleum prices. However, as mainland authorities
launch and implement policies to eliminate excess capacity and reduce
companies’ taxes and expenditures, the market imbalance of upstream
chemical industries is expected to be improved. The Group will strive to
better utilize its existing capacities and to lower production costs, while at the
same time transforming its facilities to a highly efficient and low-carbon mode.
The division is fully prepared to capture the opportunities arising from the
forthcoming market revival.

The mainland property market has picked up immensely on sales activity
on the back of a series of supportive government policies and a loosened
capital environment. It is therefore expected that the pre-sales of the Group’s
residential projects in Kunshan will be much accelerated. In line with current
market conditions, the property division will accelerate its planned sales
launches in order to speed up cash flow returns to the Group. Another core
property, Shanghai Kingboard Plaza Phase |, is due for completion in the
near term, achieving satisfactory progress in pre-leasing. In the next few
years until 2018, the Group will see the completion of at least one large-scale
commercial property every year. These successive completions are expected
to deliver a stable growing stream of rental income for the Group. Adopting a
pragmatic strategy, the Group plans to prudently increase its land bank with a
view to increasing returns to shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®mE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEAEBZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 60, is the chairman and a co-founder of
the Group, and the chairman and a non-executive director of Elec & Eltek
International Company Limited (“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary of the Company
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”) and
dual-listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was the chairman and director of Kingboard Copper
Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”) which is the subsidiary of the Company listed
on the SGX up to 3 January 2012. Mr. Cheung is a director of Hallgain
Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan, the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin
Sang and the father of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components including
laminates prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction
and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight
in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong
Business Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006. In
2011, Mr. Cheung was awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Mr. Cheung was appointed as a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 49, is the managing director of the Group. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 26 years’ experience in laminates production. Mr.
Chang graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in marine electronics. He is responsible for the Group’s chemical
refinery plant and phenol/acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and
phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He was re-designated
from a non-executive director to an executive director of EEIC with effect from
1 August 2014.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 51, is the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Shing. He joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB industry
since 1984 with particularly extensive experience in marketing components
and materials required for PCB production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the Group’s chemical business operations and property developments in
southern China.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 61, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing
and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Ka Shing. He joined the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s
chemical business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a non-
executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 45, is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing, the sister-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the auntie of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing.
She joined the Group in 2002. Ms. Cheung was appointed as an executive
director and the vice chairperson of EEIC with effect from 1 August 2014 and
responsible for the strategic planning of EEIC. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked as an administration assistant manager in a listed company for about
5 years.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Shing, aged 28, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2014. He joined the Group in 2009
and is responsible for the property development business of the Group in
eastern China. Mr. Cheung obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in the
study of Management with International Business at the University of London
in 2009. Mr. Cheung is the son of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and nephew-in-
law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 11 January 2011. He joined the Group in 1996 and is
currently the chief financial controller of the Group in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). He is responsible for the management of the finance and tax
matters of the Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with
the finance and economics department of the government of the PRC for 12
years. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi Finance and Economics University
(formerly known as Jiangxi Finance and Economics Institution) in 1990. He is
an accountant certified by the finance department of the government of the
PRC.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAEZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 67, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director in 2007. Dr. Cheng is the chairman of
Wing Tai Properties Limited, an independent non-executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited and New World China Land Limited, all being listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (as manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
and an independent non-executive director of the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. Dr. Cheng has a keen interest in the public
services. He is currently a member of the Judicial Officers Recommendation
Commission and a steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. LAl Chung Wing, Robert, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2009. He has many years
of experience in trading and investment and was previously the managing
director of Seaunion Holdings Ltd (now known as South Sea Petroleum
Holdings Limited) and an independent non-executive director of Kee Shing
(Holdings) Limited (now known as Gemini Investments (Holdings) Limited),
both companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor-of-Laws
(Honours) degree from the University of London and is involved in business
consultancy work in the Asia-Pacific region. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Plastec Technologies Ltd, a company quoted on the
US OTC Bulletin Board (OTCBB). Mr. Lai was previously an independent
non-executive director of KBCF. He is the brother of Mr. Lai Chong Tuck, an
independent non-executive director of EEIC.

Mr. TSE Kam Hung, aged 65, has over 30 years of experience in the field
of electronic industry. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2004.

Mr. TANG King Shing, GBS, PDSM, aged 61, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from 1 August 2013. Mr. Tang
took office as the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Police in January 2007
until his retirement in January 2011. In March 2013, Mr. Tang was appointed
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Tang has
been appointed a director of the Hong Kong News-Expo since June 2013.
Mr. TANG is appointed as the Chairman of the Country and Marine Parks
Board of the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department with a two-
year term from 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2017 and he is an honorary
advisor of Hong Kong Strategy. He holds a Masters degree in International
and Public Affairs from the University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTO RS (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2015. Mr.
Cheung has extensive experience in the performance and cultural sector. Mr.
Cheung has participated in a number of community associations, including
the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Honorary
Secretary); The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee
(First, Second and Third Election Committee Member); Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of PRC Election Committee (Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh
Election Committee Member) and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2010. Mr. Cheung was elected as the Hong Kong deputy to the 12th National
People’s Congress in December 2012. Mr. Cheung was an independent
non-executive director of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (stock code:
00391), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 42, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company
secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a 74.52% owned subsidiary listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 41 and 21 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 can
be found in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which are specific to
the Group and/or the industries in which the Group operates. These risks may
materially affect the Group’s business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and business prospects. The Group has identified the key risks
and uncertainties as follows:

Product defects

The products of the Group may contain defects that can only be detected
when the electronics systems into which they are incorporated are in use.
The Group could be exposed to significant liability claims in the event that its
products are found to be defective. While the Group has implemented sound
systems to monitor its products at various stages of its production processes,
no assurance can be given that the Group’s products are free of defects.
Any significant liability claims could have an adverse impact on the results of
operations and reputation of the Group.

Customer contracts

The Group typically enters into one-off purchase orders with its customers. As
such, the amount of purchase orders may vary significantly from time to time,
and it is difficult to forecast the amount of orders to be received by the Group
in the future. No assurance can be given that the Group’s customers will
continue to place purchase orders with it in the future in similar amounts to
prior periods, if at all. As a result, the results of operations of the Group may
vary significantly in the future.

Competitive industry

The business segments in which the Group operates are highly competitive.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to compete
successfully against its current competitors or emerging companies in
the future. If the Group fails to compete effectively, the Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and business prospects may be materially and
adversely affected.
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BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions

The recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions have adversely
affected economies and businesses around the world. A slowdown in the
global economy, in particular, the PRC economy, could lead to a reduction in
demand for the Group’s products and may materially and adversely affect its
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks and uncertainties stated above are not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks or uncertainties that are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. The Group
endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, waste reduction and energy saving. For instance, the in-house
manufacturing facilities of the Group operate in compliance with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations. The Group reviews its environmental
policies on a regular basis.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group and its business operations are subject to various laws, rules and
regulations. The Company seeks to ensure adherence to such laws, rules
and regulations through various measures such as internal controls, approval
procedures, staff trainings and oversight of business operations at different
levels of the Group. The Board also monitors the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations on a regular
basis.

So far as the Directors and senior management are aware, for the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group has obtained the approvals, permits,
consents, licences and registrations required for its business and operations,
and there was no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations by our
Group that have a significant impact on the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers in order to operate in a
sustainable manner and to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

The Company strongly believes that employees are its most important
and valuable assets. In order to recognise the performance of and provide
incentives for its employees, the Group reviews its policies on remuneration
and benefits for its employees regularly to ensure that they are in line with the
market standard. The Group reviews and improves catering, residence and
recreational facilities and services to provide a pleasant living environment to
the employees regularly. The Group organises various recreational activities
for its staff to participate to maintain a close relationship with its employees.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders (continued)

The Company maintains sound relationships with its customers and suppliers
which enable the Group to foster long term business benefits. The Directors
and senior management of the Company endeavours to exchange business
ideas and updates of the Group with its customers and suppliers from time to
time. To maintain its competitiveness, the Group aims to deliver high quality
of products and services to its customers.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 54.

An interim dividend of HK20 cents per ordinary share amounting to
HK$205,120,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.
The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK30
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders on the register of members of

the Company on Tuesday, 31 May 2016, amounting to HK$307,680,000 in
aggregate, and the retention of the remaining profit in the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OF REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2015 comprised the retained profits of HK$356,224,000.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium and the
special surplus account of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2015, the sum of the retained profits and the share premium
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$4.8 billion.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing

Mr. Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Mr. Tang King Shing

Mr. Cheung Ming Man (appointed on 1 November 2015)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Chen
Maosheng, being executive Directors, and Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert,
being an independent non-executive Director, will retire from directorship by
rotation and will be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. Mr.Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Chen Maosheng will offer themselves for re-election while Mr. Lai Chung
Wing, Robert does not seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Board has been informed by Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert that he will
not offer himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming annual
meeting of the Company as he intends to retire from the board immediately
after the said annual meeting. Mr. Lai would like to devote more time to his
personal and other business commitments. Mr. Lai has confirmed that he
has no disagreement with the Board and that there is no matter relating to
his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company. The Board would like to extend its gratitude to Mr. Lai for his
valuable contribution to the Company in the past years.

In addition, Mr. Cheung Ming Man was appointed by the Board as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 November 2015. In
accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Mr.
Cheung Ming Man will hold directorship only until the next general meeting
of the Company following his appointment and will be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Ming Man will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-election as an
independent non-executive Director.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 12 to 15.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ot~ EEZ BRI ERR )

Long position RE
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”) (a) AATESREMECIGET2EZER (R
% 1)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the Company
Shares held AR AF]
Name of Director Capacity Fride &7 BRITRAR
EEnS ERtE BB EE ZHHBED
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 4,447,470 0.434
o B9 8 5 A (B EE) Ena A/ TiBkEns
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 5,262,928 0.513
BB S A (MFE2) Enma A/ Bk
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.293
REELE BEmfa A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 3,072,674 0.300
faI 3R A S A (P EE3) Enma A/ Bk
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie (Note 4) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 822,000 0.080
sRiEE L (FiEE4) Ena AN/ Bk
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 70,000 0.007
SRR fkat TSN
Mr. Cheung Ming Man (Note 5) Beneficial owner 10,000 0.001
SREAB S A (BT EES) BEmfEa A
Notes: Mz -
(1) Out of the 4,447,470 shares, 2,545,405 shares were held by Mr. Cheung (1) RZA44TATOR D & - E R
Kwok Wing and 1,902,065 shares were held by his spouse. 2,545,405% B 19 Ty R SR Bl 4R S A AR A
A - 1,902,005 A% 17 A 1 E B 48
¥H o
@ Out of the 5,262,928 Shares, 4,076,488 Shares were held by Mr. Chang 2 % 5262,928 & 0 H A
Wing Yiu and 1,186,440 Shares were held by his spouse. 4,076,488/ i 19 Ty R BB KB SE E AR A
A - f1,186,4408 %10 Bl th AL (S
BE o
3 Out of the 3,072,674 Shares, 1,679,674 Shares were held by Mr. Ho Yin (3) 3,072,674 HEHR - E
Sang and 1,393,000 Shares were held by his spouse. 1,679,674 A% (5 Ty B Rl e AE SE AR A
A - 11,393, 0008 B 17 Bl fy AL S
H o
(4) Out of the 822,000 Shares, 682,000 Shares were held by Ms. Cheung Wai (4 A % 822,000 i B fp & R - H &
Lin, Stephanie and 140,000 Shares were held by her spouse. 682,000 % f% 7 B 9K (B 38 22 + AN A5
% 1M 140,000 8% A% 17 B e E B 18 #5
ﬁ °
(5) Mr. Cheung Ming Man was appointed as a director on 1 November 2015. (5) REAGEER-_T—RAF+—A—A%
ZERES -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

EECRDER

RR@®)
(b) AARBEBREELERE])

Interest in underlying Shares

Name of Director Capacity pursuant to Share Options
EENS ERME B i R AE R IR 10 1 i
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 9,360,000
SREBIE e A4 BEmEBA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 8,120,000
LIPS EmfEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 7,120,000
REE LA BB A

Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 13,048,000
fa A 5 A (P EE) EnBEAAN/ B

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 7,120,000
SRIFE L BB A

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 6,928,000
REK L BEmEBA

Note:  Out of the 13,048,000 Share Options, 7,120,000 Share Options were held
by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 5,928,000 Share Options were held by his spouse.

The Company adopted its first share option scheme on 11 May
1998, and such share option scheme was terminated upon the
adoption of its second share option scheme (2002 Scheme”) on 2
July 2002 for the duration of 10 years. In view of the changes to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) in 2009, a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2009. The
2002 Scheme was accordingly terminated on the same day without
affecting the rights of holders of any options granted and outstanding
under the 2002 Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(c) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) in KLHL, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

g <% o I
; *%0000000°®
L]

‘/’

/80

EECRDER

RE®)
() AARFZEREWEDTRTEEER
SREEIOGET I EER((REEE

RAR 43 1)

Approximate

percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

issued KLHL of KLHL

Shares held HEEEER

Name of Director Capacity e RTEY BRITRAR

EENS RS BERROEHE ZHHBEDH

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,343,000 0.045

SREBIE e A4 BERERAA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Interest of spouse 1,600,000 0.053
LIS iRy

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 540,000 0.018
(CIE-22=S /vt [y

(d) Share options of KLHL (“KLHL Share Options”)

d 2ERERELBRE(ZERERE
SHERED

Interest in underlying
KLHL Shares pursuant to

KLHL Share Options
Name of Director Capacity BEEEERELEREET
BN EEME HBEEEEERROER
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 9,000,000
A AE S A fe (B s
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 9,000,000
SR ST AE BEmlEBA
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(e) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non-wholly owned

EECRDER

RR@®)
() AARFZEREWEDTZTEEER
ERAAREHEREEBIEBTZER

subsidiary of the Company EREZERSG

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

(Note)

Name of Director Capacity s\ ERIEL

EEn ERNE BRBEE

(M&E)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,904,400
SREE S EmfEAA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 423,200
LIPS E=mfAA

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 846,400
REELE E=mfAA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 529,000
Al A S A E=mfEAA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of EEIC, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

fie . AREHRSEFREEERERARZ
BREBELERD - ZERERH T E
M AT B BT E IR AR A BER I
RREBEXHEBRRAGENEG LR
EZHER - TSR WERL B RIS E R
ERERDIRZ BRET -

f RAREEEEAME D REEICKRZEH
ZEBR(TEEICKR] )

Approximate

Number of percentage of

issued EEIC the issued share

Shares held capital of EEIC

Name of Director Capacity FFE®{T {HEEICE®{TIRA

EEnE EEMtE EEICR#B# B ZBHNBEDL

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,507,200 0.806
REIE T4 EREEA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
kst BmER A

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 40,500 0.022
REESLE BmlER A

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
(G- BamlER A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)
(9) Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.10 each in the
share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

/80

- . o' n
3 S ITTYPTYL M I
L]

o,

EECRDER @

RE®)
(9 AAFAK2EHEEHELTKBCFRE
hEREEO0.10E T L@ ([KBCF

Company %7 l)

Approximate

Number of percentage of

issued KBCF the issued share

Shares held capital of KBCF

Name of Director Capacity e RT {5EKBCFE 1T

EEnE EmtE KBCFRR 3 & B RAEZBHBEDL

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 2,000 0.0002

GEELx S RRiB M

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert Beneficial owner 72,000 0.0100

REBESEE BEREAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2015.

BEMEEEN R _E—RF+_A=+—
A BEEEIAFRSFIHEATRERARRE
E R EE (F & B EH LS EHIEXVED)
Z A - MR RESF T EE TR
A o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEERE

SHARE OPTIONS BRBRE

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC and KLHL RAT] - EEICKEEBERBIR 2 BB ET2
(including their vesting and exercise period) are set out in note 31 to the HBE(BEASBHLMITER) NGB R
consolidated financial statements. FMIFEST o

The following table discloses movements in the Share Options under the THREEZ 2B TNEEERERNERN ZE
Scheme during the year:

Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat
1.1.2015 Transferred Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31.12.2015
RZE-1F during during during during duing RZE-HE
-A-H the year the year the year the year theyear +=A=1-H

HATE  RERER O RFARE O REAGE O REREE  RERKY HATTE

Category 1: Directors E1- 23
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing REASE 3,360,000 - 6,000,000 - - - 9,360,000
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu ixiask 3,120,000 - 5,000,000 - - - 8,120,000
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan REELLE 3,120,000 - 4,000,000 - - - 7,120,000
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) AR () 3,120,000 - 4,000,000 - - - 7,120,000
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REELT 3,120,000 - 4,000,000 - - - 7,120,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing FRIGE 2,928,000 - 4,000,000 - - - 6,928,000
18,768,000 - 27,000,000 - - - 45,768,000
Category 2: Employees F08  [EB 8,784,000 - 3,000,000 - - - 11,784,000
Total all categories FrERERIA 27,552,000 - 30,000,000 - - - 57,552,000
Note:  In addition to 7,120,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the spouse of Mr. MRt BRUBEAELERFFRT,120,0001 18 5t B A% &
Ho Yin Sang held 5,928,000 Share Options. None of such option was exercised. SN AR e A 2 BB TME B 5,928,00010 18 58

RBALHE o DB SRR RTTE

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

SHAR E O PTlO N S (continued)

The following table discloses movements in KLHL Share Options during the
year:

/80

g <% o I
; *%0000000°®
L]

L

BRERE

TREFZEEERELBRERFAZE

Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat
1.1.2015 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31.12.2015
R-B-1F during during during during R-E-1E
—-A—-H the year the year the year theyear +=-A=+-H
te RAT6E REREE RERTTHE RERZH RERKH AT
Directors and employees of ~ EEEEREER
KLHL (Note) EE(HH) 81,000,000 - - - - 81,000,000
Total A%t 81,000,000 - - - - 81,000,000

Note:  Among these KLHL Share Options, some of which were granted to a Director and a
Director’s associate. Please refer to page 23 for details.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

MiEE s REREEERELHELEET  BETELBK
BNETUEER—(UEENHEA - #1575
H23E °

BEROIES22H

B E XTI E S AR IN - RARSEE
1a] B/ 2 B 4 P 1o PR P 8 2 22 BRLRT ST £ ]
R BEESAEBARRRREMEME
AERZ s ESF R o

EEEEARS  REHAE
WIET KR

AR B RENE R BB ER] LERREFR
HERNEAFBDRERMARAERNEE
EEME  ERERARRAEREAEGZ L E
RS~ REHER »

FERR

RIBARRIRE S LI EGDIE336FEAFE
ZIZBERREMARLE  R_T—AF+_-A
=t+—H TIBRR(EXFAREETEST 2R
SRINEMEARRRER AR RIE EITHA
THEE RS SRER -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (ontinued)

FERR @)

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of issued share capital of

Shares held the Company

Name of shareholder Nature of interest FriFE 1T HADTE BT

IRER A EatE R4 & B RAZBABE DL

Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) (Note) Beneficial owner 379,520,200 (L) 37.00 (L)

(M5E) BEnEBA

FMR LLC Investment manager 102,560,000 (L) 9.99 (L)
REKTE

Silchester International Investors LLP Investment manager 51,396,500 (L) 5.01 (L
REKE

L) The letter “L” denotes a long position.

Note:  As at 31 December 2015: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing,
being a Director, was also a director of Hallgain.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has been in compliance with
the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015, save for the deviation that independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation,
all the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the CG Code.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (oninueq)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 of Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2015, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into
a purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase certain
materials for the production of PCBs such as copper balls and drill
bits from Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain Group”) from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Under the Purchase Framework
Agreement, the amount of materials to be purchased is not fixed
but is to be determined and agreed between the parties from time
to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference
to the prevailing market price) of the materials under the Purchase
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2013.

REFETEFIHTHE  ARFDRAERK
TEER EHARRKEI0FME 2 REFE(ER
TR ]) 28T TR - BEMBAERIELEE
Bl REEER BE-_T-RFT_H
=t—REFER  BE-BEETRETRIR
HRERERARRMRAERAERETES
RHZIETTR

BIR EHARBIEIABMG - ARFEWEIEE
VIANTEESFE 2B LI NHER - LT
HRIESABIEME - ARRBRMBEBILIEHR
TEERBIAL -

FEXS

ZE-RF AEEBUT EWRAFE4AE
PRSREN TN ER R BRERZ S (TTBNARE
AERS) :

(a) BEEEHGR
RZT—=%+—HAH ARQFAH
Hallgains] 32 B BAE 2 i ([ B BAEZR
&l - B ARERERNZZ N
F-—RA—BEZE-—RF+A=+—
A A Hallgain & E K &2 &) ([Hallgainte
& 1) 8 B R Bk & 808 55 A E EN R 4R BE AR
BE TR o IRIBEBIER G - 158
BMBEEWIEETE - MEHFNT
TRHETRAE - BEEXRBZEETZ
MHEER#E AR ERER(Z2ERT
B R T AEEAHallgainE EIEH
ZERIETEME -

MAAHallgain B4R AR 2 EEAE - 1R
BEMRAAARARIZEEAL  BUR
BEMRAIE14AE - BEERGZE
TZRPERARRZISEMERS -

BEERMERTZXSBE_F—10
FH_A=t—HALFEZFELRRK
ERRZGEHER TR - BEERDZ
HBERARR AP/ T —=F1+—
AZTNBZBEPHRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W a



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

KLHL Supply Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “KLHL Supply Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to supply copper and
laminates to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. Under the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement the amount to
be supplied is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between
the parties from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and
price (with reference to the prevailing market price) of the products
under the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement will be subject to the
individual orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL
is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the table below. Details
of the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase materials
for production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries from
the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
Under the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount to be
purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between
the parties from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and
price (with reference to the prevailing market price) of materials under
the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement will be subject to the
individual orders placed by the KLHL Group with the Hallgain Group.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (coniinueq) BERS @

(¢)  KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement (continued) (c) BEBEEBRBEEZEBR®)
The transactions contemplated under the KLHL Purchase Framework AR Hallgain BN QR 2 EERE - 1R
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the BLETRNARDRZEEAL M
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis SEREEBRBAAARZHBAT - BUR
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a B FHRAIE14AE 2 EEERBEE
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL ELRBZEE T 2R IBERAANT 2 IHE
is a subsidiary of the Company. RAER S ©
The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions EEEEREEEAGZRE T ZRSE
contemplated under the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement for E_ET-RAFE+_A=+—BItEEZ
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the table below. FEFRMEBRZEEHNTE - &5
Details of the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed BERBEEERGZE ZFIEERART]
in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013. AEA-Z—=F+—A=+\BHz@
R EE o
Amounts Annual caps
-] FELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Purchase of copper balls and drill bits from REEIREEEIELRTRER 430,046 805,000

the Hallgain Group by the Group under the Hallgain s & B #1512 #& 08
Purchase Framework Agreement

Sales of coppers and laminates to the Hallgain )& @R = MR B S BB R 681,947 1,320,000
Group by the KLHL Group under the KLHL {HFEIEZR % M Hallgain £ &
Supply Framework Agreement S 8 K SR E AR
Purchase of drill bits and machineries from the  i2SHi& Bk &£ EIR I HIEER 258,290 486,000
Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group under the & B 1E 28 {7 s [AHallgain & B
KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement BB B B 0A K i Es
The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the corresponding TR SN eI TN BBAEEMAMEE =
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 as announced E-RAFFTZA=+—RHLEMRFEZHEET
by the Group. ELER-
The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing BYFNTESEEH LMFEFERS - &
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been ZR T IGBHFAYIERZ  BEBREZELHTY
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on RAEENHE R —REBBEPREFHE
normal commercial terms and that the terms thereof (including the relevant EHEIY - BZSBRR(BREARAHASS
annual caps as set out in the Company’s circular dated 28 November —=F+—AZ+N\BZBEMEABEFE
2013) are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the ER)BRAFEBRFTERNAE KRR A IS F
Shareholders as a whole after taking into account the factors stated in the o

circular.
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015 disclosed by the Group
from pages 29 to 32 of this annual report in accordance with Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The auditors has confirmed that nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015:

(@) have not been approved by the board;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the articles of association of the Company, every Director,
agent, auditor, secretary or other officer for the time being and from time to
time of the Company (and the personal representatives of those persons, as
the case may be) shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and funds of the Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges,
expenses, losses, damages or liabilities incurred or sustained by him in or
about the conduct of the Company’s business or affairs or in the execution or
discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or
liabilities incurred by him in defending (whether successfully or otherwise) any
civil proceedings concerning the Company or its affairs in any court whether
in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

Appropriate insurance covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s

liabilities arising out of activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to HK$6,075,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers combined or suppliers combined were less than 30%
of the Group’s sales or purchases respectively.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wing
CHAIRMAN

21 March 2016
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The Board of the Company recognises the importance of corporate
governance practice of a listed company. It is in the interest of the
stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to operate in a
transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory policies,
procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code through out the year ended 31
December 2015, save for the deviation that independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1
of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code.

All of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company have no fixed
term of service with the Company and are subject to the relevant provisions
of retirement and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Their
appointments without a specific term are deviated from A.4.1 of the CG Code
and Listing Rules.

In addition to applying the principles in the CG Code, which is mandatory
in nature, the Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best Practices which are
suitable to the Company’s current situation. The Board will continuously
enhance the corporate governance standard of the Company by reference to
the Recommended Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each Director has confirmed that he or she has complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.

A. DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his
associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum
of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meetings and
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DlRECTORS (continued) A

The Board (continued)
During the year under review, the Board had held four meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’

Ty

BEE2H)
REBEEEN  BERRTTHRE
% ESNEEQQRNESEEEY

meetings were as follows: B2 HERCERINT
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg EWZEE REZEE ¥HzEe
EE] EE EE e
Number of Meeting R EE 4 3 2 2
Executive Directors HiTES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REX(TE) 4 - - -
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) Uk EEHE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4 - - -
Ho Yin Sang D% 4 - - -
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie KigE 4 - - -
Cheung Ka Shing RFRA 4 - - -
Chen Maosheng 532 4 - - -
Independent non-executive Directors BUERTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher g% 3 - - -
Tse Kam Hung i 4 3 2 2
Lai Chung Wing, Robert kit 3 2 2 2
Tang King Shing HEK 4 3 2 2
Cheung Ming Man KOG 1 1 -

(appointed on 1 November 2015) (R=2-R5+-A-BEZH)

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than four times
in the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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A.

DlRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director were segregated
and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

° scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

° preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

o exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between Management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

o assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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A.

DlRECTORS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises twelve members, seven of whom are
executive Directors and five of whom are independent non-executive
Directors who are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of the Directors. One of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualifications
(or accounting or related financial management expertise) as required
by the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board as of the report
date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Cheung Ka Shing

Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors

Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Tse Kam Hung

Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Tang King Shing

Cheung Ming Man (appointed on 1 November 2015)

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Ho Yin Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Cheung Ka Shing is the son
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the nephew-in-law of
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

During the year under review, the independent non-executive
Directors were not appointed for specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that although such arrangement deviates from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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A.

DlRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards, property developments
and chemical products, administration and management experience
in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skills, as well as in-
house advices to comply with international laws and regulations. The
Board size of twelve directors with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible for
re-appointment at the next following general meeting (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or annual general meeting (in the case of
an additions to the Board) after appointment. The appointment of
Directors are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual general
meeting one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-appointment by shareholders.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but shall
not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment shall
have their biographical details made available to the shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision on their re-appointment.
Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and
shall include in such announcement, the reasons given by the Director
for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.
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A. DlRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All

A. EE

ExE5F®m)
BEHRAEENEARERERGR
B eERFREMKRNEARER

Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional Mo 2REEETNARERKLHESER

development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
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legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

According to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to

the Board remains informed and relevant.

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year
under review to update the Directors on the latest Listing Rules and
statutory disclosure obligation for listed companies to disclose inside

information under Part XIVA of the SFO.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the

following trainings:
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Attending or participating in
the briefing session/seminars/
programmes relevant to

the business/directors’ duties

HERSEEGRELE,
ESRENENE

Name of Directors EHEHS BEkEwh
Executive Directors BITES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REIEE(F/E) v
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) DK B (EFARATHE) v
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE v
Ho Yin Sang fr] 34 v
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie RIZE v
Cheung Ka Shing KRR v
Chen Maosheng PRI AR v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFBTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher B v
Tse Kam Hung B v
Lai Chung Wing, Robert R v
Tang King Shing R v
Cheung Ming Man (appointed on 1 November 2015) KEF(R=Z—RF+—A—BEZE) v

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG

Code on Directors’ training.

EEWR RECETERESEIZ
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A.

DlRECTORS (continued)

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tse Kam Hung (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung
Wing, Robert, Mr. Tang King Shing and Mr. Cheung Ming Man.
The role of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate policies
and procedures for determining the remuneration of Directors and
senior management and other remuneration related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of reference
which set out clearly its duties and authorities delegated by the Board,
including the following duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;
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B.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

° recommend specific remuneration packages including, where
appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive
payments, and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such other members
of senior management as it is designated to consider;

. recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors (including non-executive Directors,
if any), taking into account factors such as effort, time spent
and responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to
him by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for
similar position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis
for the year under review is set out on pages 124 to 128 in Note
18 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in terms of
Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings during which, among other things, the
performance, and the remuneration policy and packages for all
Directors and senior management including the remuneration package
for Mr. Cheung Ming Man, who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 November 2015, was considered.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial performance
and operations of the Company to the Audit Committee and the
Board and respond to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit
Committee and the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 52 and 53 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group assets;

° experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal controls (continued)

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

° review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

o review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

° nominate persons as auditor;

. review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit
services to the Company, the Committee will keep the nature and
extent of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
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the Group were as follows: NEVZERERNT

Amount (HK$)
Nature of services RIS S8 (ExT)
Audit services Z AR 13,050,000
Non-audit services IERZBARTS
()  Tax services () BERS 618,000
(i) Other services (i) EAR 310,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audited services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
. to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
° to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

. to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Chung Wing,
Robert (Chairman), Mr. Tse Kam Hung, Mr. Tang King Shing and Mr.
Cheung Ming Man.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2015 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

° discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.

C.

. o' la
'.......... .’

BEREHE e

BEREEE(H)
AN - BiRZ B EREE

. EEEERARESEANBEE

(BEN=NE

. HEIEE2EIERMNELXHNA
1

. P RBSRSEAESH SR

Eﬁ(/\é-\ﬁ}*ﬁ;‘%% P &

. EEAEEREREEMNEE
TR -

EFeRBERERZZBEERBAREE
BIREITRA - i?—%ﬁk%ﬁﬁ@
At RARREM B E IR B R AR SR
BZBEMNEELIERTES *m””i“
REE(IRE) - @ttt  WREME
A ROREAE e AR

KRBT -
f -

BERREEETTUTI

. EHBEZITIFHE

° ER M wEE T —NFE+ =
)El T—BIEFEZ R EHMBE
BRMERBE-T—RFRA
_'I'EIJt/\TI)EIZ':F‘HEﬁﬁ%%ii
Ras  HEREmAEEMN
Tz astRAIRER

. i MR AR RS SN I AR AT ¢ Jo

. HHAEEABEE - M R®R

Ko B FR R o

REBFER BELREGRITT=X

S

=

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W e

o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

D.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by a different independent non-executive Director, to
assist the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee.
Each Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements which are
substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang King Shing
(Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert, Mr. Tse Kam Hung and Mr.
Cheung Ming Man. According to the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

o review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

° be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise;

° assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of
the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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D.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Chen Maosheng, being
executive Directors, and Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert, being an
independent non-executive Director, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Chen
Maosheng will offer themselves for re-election while Mr. Lai Chung
Wing, Robert does not seek for re-election. Mr. Cheung Ming Man,
who was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 November 2015, will hold directorship only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company according to Article 84 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and will be eligible for re-election.
During the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it had considered
the policy for the nomination of Directors, and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship.

It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors. All the above-named Directors were nominated by the
Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the CG Code. The policy aims to achieve diversity on the members of
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition, a number of aspects
would be considered, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
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E.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications. The notices are also published on the
Company’s website at www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
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F.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an EGM by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:

Address:  2nd Floor, Harbour View 1
No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin

Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
Email: enquiry@kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association.

An up to date version of the Company’s Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the
Company’s articles of association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingboard.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ABE RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE =E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

NOTES
ks

Revenue EEE 7
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE IR AR
Gross profit EH
Other income, gains and losses HaU A ~ 2k K8 9
Distribution costs PaNiz DN
Administrative costs TR AN
Gain on fair value changes of investment 18 &¥W %A (EEE

properties Was 16
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHBEREZ

investments Was
Share-based payments VARR (9 FE A 3R
Impairment loss recognised on ME - BEREREERZ

properties, plant and equipment VERIEN E = 17
Impairment loss recognised on MAHHERERRZ

available-for-sale investments DERIEY SR 22
Finance costs BhE KA 10
Share of results of associates FEIRE & AR ZELE 21
Profit before taxation R A% A g A
Income tax expense FriSif sz 11
Profit for the year INEF T 12
Profit for the year attributable to: REFRMEGNEE

Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEEZEDN

Non-controlling interests IR AR R A
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted GREA —EAR T 15

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2015
—ZE—hE
HK$°000
FET

32,788,186
(27,992,732)

4,795,454
589,136
(1,026,218)
(1,616,485)
267,085

345,692
(62,764)

(314,293)
(439,779)
(15,269)

2,522,559
(569,464)

1,953,095

1,650,323
302,772

1,953,095

HK$1.6097% 7t

2014

HK$'000
TAT

35,905,766
(31,308,307)

4,597,459
534,566
(984,007)
(1,644,319)
1,381,549

206,884
(7,398)

(303,074)

(444,995)
176,956

3,513,621
(692,615)

2,821,006

2,536,800
284,206

2,821,006

HK$2.473/& 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReESERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE =T —AF+-A=+—HILFE

2015
—E-AfF
HK$°000
FET

1,953,095

Profit for the year RFZ A
Other comprehensive (expenses) income AEFEMEEGIH) K
for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T E@#EF S E 157521 -
Translation reserve: HE 1
Exchange differences arising AMEE2HNEEmMEEZ
from translation to presentation currency MEH Z5E
Property revaluation reserve: SRR
Revaluation of properties transferred to EEREIEYER Y
investment properties Y EFILE

(2,208,571)

309,429

(1,899,142)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Investment revaluation reserve:

Net changes arising from
available-for-sale investments

Translation reserve:
Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operations
Share of change in reserve of associates
Reserve released upon disposal
of an associate

ABRABWEHHIE
B2 BA -
198 B A

A
S8 55

FE 34 ot
BT H M T 2
FE 4 248
RIS A A
e —EEE AT
HEEE

(6,919)
(121,165)

(4,388)

(58,451)

Other comprehensive expenses
for the year (net of tax)

AEREEMEES D (RRFRE)

(1,957,593)

Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

AFEERE (X H) RSB

(4,498)

Total comprehensive (expenses)
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

2 H) WS EREIE0E

EA/NSIESZEUN
FEE IR B R M

(46,501)
42,003

(4,498)

2014

HK$’000
TAT

2,821,006

(363,993)

(363,993)

(307,393)

(757)
(10,890)

(319,040

(683,033)

2,137,973

1,908,094
229,879

2,137,973
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maEMBRRE

At 31 December 2015 R —ZE—RF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FHET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties -V 10,876,251 10,192,857
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 15,660,817 17,451,622
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE 912,439 979,178
Other non-current assets HipEmneEE 689,670 732,430
Goodwill eSS 2,288,149 2,288,149
Interests in associates REE R 2w 2,086,039 1,370,686
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 2,403,069 3,258,454
Entrusted loans EZHER 1,193,072 1,442,509
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME  BEMERE
properties, plant and equipment Pk 311,866 415,171
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 3,420 4,862
36,424,792 38,135,918
Current assets MENVAE
Inventories FE 2,287,118 2,801,004
Properties held for development FEREYE 19,228,370 19,148,646
Trade and other receivables and B 5 M EH M FERER &
prepayments FE FRIA 7,849,134 8,819,189
Bills receivables el =% 2,017,736 2,112,632
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 25,086 27,799
Taxation recoverable AT U [ 7 TE 24,890 28,155
Fixed deposits held at banks with REAR A=A AL
original maturity over three months RITEHFER 210,079 -
Bank balances and cash RITESR IR 4,853,792 4,559,399
36,496,205 37,496,824
Current liabilities mENRE
Trade and other payables 5 R EMEMAIRR 5,927,617 4,847,246
Bills payables ER R 409,762 771,361
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEME
residential units FiET & 3,192,521 4,610,399
Derivative financial instruments TSI A - 6,779
Taxation payable FESNFHTE 534,181 522,693
Bank borrowings — amount due HBITEE ——FANEIH
within one year I 6,241,379 9,803,898
16,305,460 20,562,376
Net current assets REEEFE 20,190,745 16,934,448
Total assets less current liabilities BESERRBDERE 56,615,537 55,070,366
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBARR K

At 31 December 2015 A —Z—HFE+_-A=+—H

/86
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2015 2014
—E-RE —T—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
[z FET T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIABE 23 805,518 846,072
Bank borrowings — amount RITERE ——F1&IIH
due after one year Z 3B 29 14,469,292 12,251,104
15,274,810 13,097,176
41,340,727 41,973,190
Capital and reserves AR A R b
Share capital A& A 30 102,560 102,560
Reserves i 35,143,608 35,573,748
Equity attributable to owners KAEIFEH AELERE
of the Company 35,246,168 35,676,308
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR AR B A 2 32 6,094,559 6,296,882
Total equity BRHBEE 41,340,727 41,973,190

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 195 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wing
REDS
DIRECTOR
EF

FHAEEIBE ZHAMBRERENZZ—X
FoZAtT—HEEFSHEREETE I
HTHIESREEE

Chang Wing Yiu
BRIk R
DIRECTOR
=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERBRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ=FT—AF+-A=+—HILFE

Attrioutable to owners of the Company
FRFEARRER

Capital Share Special Property Investment Non-
Share Share  redemption options suplus  Statutory  revaluation Goodwil  revaluation  Translation Retained controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve acoount reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
B85 BRBRE  RRER MEER RAER FARRR
B RihE RO e BE  EEER B BRER BB EXBE  REEH it Bn  AREE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL TER FhL ThL TR TAT TEL FhL TEL TR TAT i FhL
(Note ) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ¢)
(era) (o) (W)  (Wikd)  (Wie)
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E-RE
—f-AzER 102560 4457742 1911 273786 10594 391560 8480 1028580 202163 3891621 23769246 34158243 6701716 40859959
Proft for the year TERER - - - - - - - - - - 2506800 2536800 284206 2,821,006
Net changes arising fom AHNERES
avalable-for-sele 2828 ()
investments (Note €) - - - - - - - - (291981 - - (291,981) (15419 (307,393
Share of change n reserve EHBLATRERD
of associates - - - - - - - - - (10,890) - (10,890) - (10,890)
Exchange diferences aising ~ EATESMELE
from translation (i35
of foreign operations - - - - - - - - - (831) - (631) (226) (757)
Bxchenge difrences arisng R EZ27IEH%
from tranglafion to [i:23d:3:5=:
presentation currency - - - - - - - - - (325304 - (325304 (38689 (363,993
Total comprehensive FEERA(THNE
(expenses) income %
for the year - - - - - - - - (291981) (336725 2536800 1,908,094 29879 21371978
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - - 5268 - - - - - - - 5,268 2,130 7398
Lapse of share options - - - (60,230) - - - - - - 50,230 - - -
Final dividend for the year -z
ended 31 December 2013 TZA=+-8
HFEZRERE - - - - - - - - - - 051200 (205,120) - (205120
Interim dvidend for e yer ~~ BE-F-1E
ended 31 December 2014 TZA=1-8
R HHRE - - - - - - - - - - (05120 (205,120 - (205120
Acquistions of aditional WEHEAR)
interests in subsicaries BhEE - - - - - - - 14,913 - - - 13 @18 (1019
Capital controution from MEBRAEARRR
non-controling shersholders A%
of subsialeries - - - - - - - - - - - - 19,900 19,900
Dividends paid to non-controling T FHEBAFZ
shareholders of subsiclaries FERREZRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (671606 (571,606
Trangfers to reserve BRETLE - - - - - 23,688 - - - - (23,688) - - -
- - - (44,962) - 23,688 - 14,943 - - (383698 (390029 (634713 (1024742
Balance at 31 December 2014
102060 4,457,742 1911 208824 10504 415248 8480 1,043523 (89818 355489 26922348 35676308 6296882 41,973,190
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

\ Y o' ]
o ®ecececc®’®
L]

L

Attributable to owners of the Company

Balance at 1 January 2015 KZE-1%
—-B-Az&8
Proft for the year REEER
Net changes arising fom EEEREY
avalable-for-sele 2828
investments (Note ¢)
Share of change in reserve ElEEARRERD

of associates
Reserve released upon

HE-HRERR

disposal of an associate LBEEE
Exchange diferences arsing ~~ ETEZ27IE%
from translation to (i35
presentation currency
Exchenge differences arisng 4 B84
from transiaion [i:23d:3:5=:
of foreign operations
Revaluation of properties BRTRENER .
transferted to investment MEEIEE
properties
Total comprehensive income ~~ AEE2ERE (X )
(expenses) for the year &8
Recognition of equity-setfled ~ BLMERBEENRR
share-based payments FARR
Final dhidend forthe year HECT-IF
ended 31 December 2014 TZA=1-8
R ZRERE
Inerim dividend for the year ~ BE-F-1%
ended 31 December 2015 A=t
FERZAHRE
Acquisttions of additional WEHEAR
interests in subsiaries BibER
Disposal of partial interests HENBATZ
in a subsidiary HokEs
Reserve released upon LE-RHBAAL
disposal of a subsiciary RREER
Capital contrbution from HEAFFEERRR
non-controling shareholders  #/&3E
of a subsidiary
Dividends paid to non-controling - X FHHBATZ
shareholders of subsidleries BRI ZIRE.
Transfers to reserve HRERERE
Balance at 31 December 2015 f-Z-7%
tZf=t-B
b3

RRRREARGRR
Capital Share Special Property Investment
Share Share  redemption options surplus  Statutory i Goodwill luation ~ Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total
B EiBRE %R NEER REEf
Bx  ROER  ROSE 1 BE  EERR B BERR B EiRR  RER Nt
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T TR TiEn TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TR T T TiEn
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ) (Note d) (Note ¢)

102,560

102,560

4,457,742

4,457,142

208,824

(Mifa)  (Wib)  (Wdc)  (Mid) (K

415248 1,043,523 (89,818) 3,554,896

(121,165)

(4,389)

(1,670,404)

(5444)

227,890

227,890 76,687 (2,001,401

(6,716)

8716)

10,594 256,370 1,109,920 (13,131) 1,544,779

25,922,348

1,650,323

1,650,323

(307,680)

(205,120)

(33553)

27,035,034

35,676,308

1,650,323

76,687
(121,165

(4:388)

(1,870,404)

(5:444)

227,890

(46,501)

62,764

(307,680)

(205,120)
67,695

(1,299)

(383,639)

35,246,168

Non-
controlling
interests
FERRR
BE
HK$'000
TiEn

6,206,862

302,772

(2666)

(338,167)

(1475)

81,539

(158,631)

8,603

42400

(136,696)

(244,326)

6,094,559

Total
equity

548

HKS'000
Fin

1,953,005

74021
(121,165)

(4,389)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

Notes:

(@)

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company under the Group
reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain properties of the Group for own use as a result of transfer of those properties
for own use from properties, plant and equipment to investment properties.

Goodwill reserve represents the effects of changes in ownership in certain
subsidiaries when there is no change in control.

Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of adjustments
for gain on fair value changes amounting to HK$105,420,000 (2014: loss on fair
value change amounting to HK$100,509,000), gain on disposal amounting to
HK$345,692,000 (2014: HK$206,884,000) and impairment loss amounting to
HK$314,293,000 (2014: nil).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE =T —AF+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation BRAL BT = A 2,522,559 3,513,621
Adjustments for; TR
Share of results of associates FEAEH S N R AR 15,269 (176,956)
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  #72 - RE R REITE 2,216,479 2,321,389
Dividends from available-for-sale investments A HERE 7 IR B A (171,236) (73,982)
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 5t 5 FE UK BE sk TR > R A &5 18 44,052 14,774
Impairment loss recognised on inventories MIFERR ZREEBE 16,822 6,404
Impairment loss recognised on properties, Y - BEMREERZ
plant and equipment DERIEY SR 303,074
Impairment loss recognised on A ERE R
available-for-sale investments WEEE 314,293 -
Interest expenses and other finance charges MEZTHEREMFEER 439,779 444,995
Interest income FEUA (358,001) (424,760)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 1 & /[ HERE ~ Wzs (345,692) (206,884)
Loss on disposal of prepaid lease payments HEBNHEEFE A 325 -
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties 18 & ¥ 2 A (B £ 8) 2 Iz (267,085) (1,381,549)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIE QR 2 Was (33,590) -
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEEFERED 24,292 30,129
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HERMEDE - BE
plant and equipment K&t 2 18 13,132 27,935
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—RBE A FER BB 8,977 -
Share-based payments AR AT R 62,764 7,398
Fair value changes of foreign INERIFE N2 A EES)
exchange forward contracts 453 6,779
Operating cash flows before movements RETEEESEEAIZ
in working capital KERERE 4,503,592 4,412,367
Decrease in inventories FERA 333,540 327,259
Increase in properties held for development FEEREZM (1,311,233) (2,763,786)
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 K H M FEER R
other receivables and prepayments FEATFRIBR A (3E00) 409,910 (566,675)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables FEUTERE (32 hn) A > (28,440) 182,432
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 KH M FER BRFIE A 691,310 99,607
(Decrease) increase in bills payables RS AC R (316,567) 58,343
(Decrease) increase in deposits received TEEmEmMZ
from pre-sale of residential units & CRiA) 18N (1,148,721) 766,003
Decrease in derivative financial instruments TESRMT AR (7,232) -
Cash generated from operations IR IRFT RIS 3,126,159 2,515,550
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBEEFIEH (53,675) (4,467)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid B4 B - g AR ([ IS ET ) (101,283) (96,161)
Other income taxes paid Hib B HATEH (416,807) (368,180)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEKBHESERE 2,554,394 2,046,742

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W a



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

2015
—E-HF
HK$°000
FHET

NOTES
PiYEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Capital injection in an associate

Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties,
plant and equipment

Placement of fixed deposits held at banks
with original maturity over three months

Prepaid lease payments made

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Interest received

Dividends received from
available-for-sale investments

Dividend received from an associate

Net refund of capital from an
available-for-sale investment

Net decrease (increase) in entrusted loans

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank
deposits

Proceeds from disposal of properties,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of
prepaid lease payments

REXEK
BEAHOERE
A—EEBEABEE
BEDE - BFEM&RE

BEWMBLA

BEWE - BEL&E
kA

FRUREIH B A =18 A A LK
RITE TR

ENEMEERR

BEREYZE

HERHEEREMSHIA

BHHE
B AT ERE R SRA

S — R R RIS A
AHHEREREENFHE

REEFORD (48 00) FEE
HE—RNBRREREH
BEERIRITESORD ()

HEME - BELRE
FS50R

5 — R 2 A Bl ER FAS 3K

HE RN E RIS HIA

A

A

(5,636,900)
(1,071,419)

(712,804)
33 (623,226)

(311,866)
(210,079)
(7,826)
(4,561)

6,448,337
394,996

171,236
170,356

149,368
166,235
34 126,583
119,363

86,015
35,911

720

(709,561)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEBMARS FH
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REER

New bank borrowings raised FLRITEE

Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE

Dividend paid on ordinary shares IR E RS

Interest and other finance charges paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Consideration paid for acquisition
of additional interests in subsidiaries
Advance from an associate
Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Proceeds from the partial disposal of a
subsidiary

ENFSREMREE M

A T B R 2 SRR R
Z BB

WP B 1 RIRESME R PR

—RIBE AT 2B
G INSEREET e

KB A B R R R TSR

B

2|

15,779,055
(17,113,370)
(512,800)
(397,093)

(136,698)

(99,495)
1,172,532

42,400

7,305

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

BMEEB AR FHE

(1,258,164)
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2014
T4

TBTT

(3,811,706)
(758,441)

(1,699,709)

(144,420)

(4,307)

4,703,251
406,972

73,982
219,897

(42,613)

(1,184)

106,940

7,834

(943,504)

0,968,862
(11,593,460)
(410,240)
(450,715)
(571,606)

(61,635)

257,025

(2,861,769)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

'.......... .’

2015
—EF-AF
HK$°000
TR

586,669

4,432,635

(165,512)

4,853,792

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND B4 RE$ZEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS EMCRD) F5E

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FHOzHEeRESEHEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERgEHTE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FERZRERBELEEEE
END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeERRESEMEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDAT

Bank balances and cash RITEBRNE S

Less: Pledged bank deposits

B BERRITER

4,853,792

Balances of cash and cash equivalents

RERBELSERB R

4,853,792

2014
—F—F
HK$’'000
FAT

(1,758,531)

6,237,238

(46,072)

4,432,635

4,559,399
(126,764)

4,432,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE =E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL 1.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals, liquid crystal
displays (“LCDs”"), magnetic products and property development and
investments (“Properties”).

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB”) while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
considered it is more beneficial for the users of the consolidated
financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards
(*HKAS”) 19

Amendments to HKFRSs

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

'.......... .’

© 8 40 1B 1s] R 4 S0 A9 3 18 I AR 42
R BB R RER

AEELEIBFERAUTER/MERR
ERRE T IE RARIERT BB IS B R

/80

Al :
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments' EARERRERFo5 SRTA
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers' EABRARELE15E  ERPAMWA
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in EEUBRRERS11  WEALEBESY
joint operations? fiss] @il
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative? EECHERS1SMET  REEP
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of EROHENS16% R BENEREYY
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation? EBSHER 8% BT H®
i)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs ERMBRPERNET BARERREN -
2012-2014 cycle? ——EZ-F—UE
BERFENE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants? ERCHENS16% R By AEMEYR
and HKAS 41 BAGHENZ4R
i)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial EReHENSETS BUBBRE ISR
statements? EolCH]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an EAURAMERFI0E  RELZEABLANTY
and HKAS 28 investor and its associate or joint venture? REReHENS08% Al mEmRE
Wi HEkTE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the EENGERENE10% . REER: ERGA
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception? EARERENS10%  ABZHIIMER
REAGENZ28T
i)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 1

R_B-N\F—-A—BXERFEBZF
AR -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 2 R-E—RNF—A— B HERHRZF
[EERR ARk
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 3 NREBET 2 Bk EERB 2 FEH

AR

BBV K RREREIR
i1

R-ZZNFRMANEEHERRER
FORIABBUBEENBRFTEN
FARE - R-F—TFETNRBUK

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments T
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and HRERFOFEIE T HHMBEEaEND
further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge MR EURYIRERNET - TR
accounting. Another revised revision of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 TE-CFE—HETTUREERE
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets HEFIRT o BAEMERRERFEQE
and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement B—EFTMRR —ZE—INFEH TER
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive Ha) B ERERTE Rb)tE T %
income” measurement category for certain simple debt instruments. BT AS|EEATEFAEME2E
W st 28R o ERFERT
TEHBREIERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of the subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future will have a significant impact on amounts reported for the
Group’s financial assets in respect of available-for-sale investments
and impairment loss recognition. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2.

BRIEFT 2B
R RER| ([ &FE
FERIRER] ) @)

ERMBERBEAER S@T
I=N¢:)

%%W%$ ERFESRMEEHR T
gy

P #48
7

&
T

7N

. BB B EREFRI BT
H: BRANAE | BEANNRE
CHERPEEEN LRI
RN TERE - AfgimE - M
B WA RS MEEBRN
FAENEBIRE  RABAKE
AR EE R TR ARE RA
BEMATHSRMEBIRE - —
MRIENE R ST AR AR
B AGTE o I AMERR
B MR E B R )R & HA
BRI A TERTE © 1o
RIBEBY B RRERFW -
ERAMEL I RERERE - R®
Hi2mE e 25 RAKRE
(WIFER 5) A THENEEZE
B HEERSRABE ISR

=7
o °

. R BEENRENS @ BEE
SR ERIEIMRIE MR EEL
EEEBREAGERR - TEH
B ERF O E IR TEHIE

EEBREAGHE - ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
BAREZERNEGHEERKEY

:.,\J?Eﬁa&:%? =EEBTER
""""" AR URBEERKREY]
%EEMIW ‘8o E 2 B
ARFEEEESMETERE
E%Fﬁkﬂﬂ

EETEH - BRERESVERRER
FORA T EHAEERAH AN
ERENMREEERANVBEENE
BeBBUEATE - R EFER
AT TERCAT - REERM BT EN ARG
ate



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%A

PR aR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future will have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of other
amendments will have a material effect on the Group consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly
the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 is presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information previously
required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules is not disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
306.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ji) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFEEHBE .«

(continued)
Business combinations (continued) ¥¥attum
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and BIREBHEAEEZBNS ﬁﬁ—irﬁ&t%ﬁi\ﬁ
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets BALL IR E FEE EFE 2 FEIEN
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair AR A S Al 9] IR A B s IR Hxﬁx%
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the SRS E A AR EEEEZ D
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The REBHOE - stEEEZRIZT)
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction REBIRRZ S BERM - HfER 7 IEHIR
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their R R Ty iR BN ESK (E A )RS
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another — IR B G EHRER| BT E -
HKFRS.
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s MEBEMRTIDEERER » NEBRGE
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its FITdar 604 U B 7 R iE R U BE B HERRO A F
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is @i%ﬁﬂré CFTEEMAE (NG )EE
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the HHER o B ERIREE TR - A
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been FEEMEEREP TR Z S Ex
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or RE R ELENSEE TS ERE
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were (BRI A AA ) °
disposed of.
Goodwill [GES
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as WIS FTES 2 B WE XK E A
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting FrsRSAA (R E XXt e st ) i 2
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any. sHREER (A )FIER -
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each RERHME MBS ERFERRE
of the Group’s cash generating unit (“CGU”) (or groups of CGU) that is K HRIREFR SR ANEEZ SRR
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. cEEBM([ReELEMN]) B
ELBEL AR -
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment EESEEEZRGELEMNTFHA
annually or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit ZEMNBDRAET LB ERETTERIE
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting Z 7 MERIE - SRS EAR 2 WS A
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for EECZEENE  BESREEEZRE
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable EAEBMRZERE BETERETRE
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the AIE - IR eESEM I kE £ EE D
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of B i{_LZﬁEE@ AR EEESE D
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the fid - LAE BRI D B RRZ AL 2 (E A
unit on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in the 27 EmE &E{é LA ungZ@g
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit HEAEE  REHIHERIZEMN E
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in HEE - mE Z&ﬁ;‘)ﬁi{é)ﬁéﬁaﬁ&ﬁ%@w
subsequent periods. T8 - B ZRERBENEZBET
THE o
On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwiill HEBBIRSEESMNE - BIRgEE(L
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on SHENHERTAETER S -
disposal.
The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate AEEEEAWE —HBEQRMEEZ
is described below. PERBER BN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sales, in which case it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

3.

FESFHEX e

RBERNRREEEEIRE
fEAREAEEHEEEARENZ
TR - EAFENE2RREHR Y
REEBRORRZHEN - BIA B
HAREBZERE -

-]

9 g

BELEE-EBALH  HTHHER
HRIEHIRAET AT R H B A L HE
FEERARERN - XRIEHRERES
BWREL R B L FPTHB RS - K[
THEEE AR ERARZHIZH
RERNEITEL — BRI BHRERFAE

BERRRAEMRIREREERR
BNRERSIHEMALE M BRE
A EBEAFHEFHERERETED
BRON - HEULER T - BRARESEFE
DEREBVHERHRENESHEZREA
Bk o RIEHESE  RBERRRAZD
KB - DINFTERARER A MBI
ARIIFR - WHERIFH AR ARERAE
BELEZEHENRRAELEZ AR
REMEPEKE o EAKE RN BB
CWNCIE ARSI ol 5l RN
ERRRAECE  Ha(BREEL
BRAEERBERRRAELEF
BREN—HONERNRE#ER) - AKX
SETBEREBIGZE—FER -8
SNEREEHIER - EUAKEDE
B EFREE B FRRRZHE QR
KA LRI ZFBERR

RERETRB—RBERRRA LD
XEH  HBEARHAELENRE
RAESEAR - R —HBE AR
HEBRENRER - RERANEBA
KENEZBIEN A BAIEER AR
RN EFENEMNE D DR REE
Wit NIRE 2 BRHEE - ANEE B &
MEERBBENRTEFEBLRERK
RHEAZERE - REHFERDNFRE
B 2 BN RS R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

° KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as ‘deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units’.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence agreement.
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue for operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for lands and development costs, are included
in properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. The previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties, plant and equipment under construction) less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sales.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets or other
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

All intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill (see the accounting policies in

respect of goodwill))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as properties, plant and equipment.

The Group transfers prepaid lease payments to properties held
for development when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s redevelopment rather than owner
occupation. The previous carrying amount of the prepaid lease
payments becomes the cost of properties held for development upon
the date of transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint arrangements that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, the
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised of the temporary difference
arisen from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reserve in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value though profit and loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other non-current assets, trade and other receivables, entrusted
loans, amount due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
bills receivables, fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity
over three months and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale investments equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFEEHBE .«

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EMIAW®E

Financial assets (continued) MKEEE)

Impairment of financial assets BB EE ) E

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end B EENMERRGERE REFN LR
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired BEBREIR - fﬁﬁfﬁ%&ﬁ o S
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more Y BEEN P HEREESE 2 —HNZ
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, HEN - BB EEMTRRBEERES
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been e QP BEERERRIE -
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged AARHENRARENS - ZBERE
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered B A FERER R AKX RN ERCAR]
to be objective evidence of impairment. WIR R EN FE R o

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could SPAAEHMMBEEMS » MEMNTE
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or BIEAUEEBRBETARRRZHTFHRE
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and AR EE ;- SEX - ITNEEBITEE
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will RAEBRASFIE - SfEEABFAJRE
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance PRIKES I S EAE SR B -
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial HEZMBEERRRMIZHER
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, EﬁE?xEEJmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁD%%EWﬁE
assets that are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even FOME - BMEEELN TS EBE
if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective ﬁﬁﬁ TERE— MR MRIE - B
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the EREAHRRENEBERERAE
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the .ﬂEWM%EﬁA EENBHBRTH
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit EEHZEREE FH - BRSEL
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic AR HH 3R BR B ) G B W AR ROR B
conditions that correlate with default on receivables. [EVER

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of MBI A ENTBEEMS @ B
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s BEEE2ERERAEENREEMMGET
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash ARBEERENREUUHMBEENR
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. BN EATR ) E R ZE

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss I AFHENP B EEM = @ WMIEE
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount BN BAEENREERGET RN
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted ERENRECAEUNBEENEA
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such MHERMEITER ) HHNEZETE - %5
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods. BEBBETENEZMERE -
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries bills payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually rest, with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 16 and 23)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
Group’s investment properties located in PRC of carrying amount
of approximately HK$6,635,467,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$6,912,709,000) are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised deferred taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value
of such investment properties but has recognised deferred tax on
Enterprise Income Tax on the assumption that these investment
properties will be recovered through use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 16 and 23)
(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$2,893,330,000 and HK$1,347,454,000
at 31 December 2015 respectively (2014: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of approximately HK$1,874,411,000 and
HK$1,405,737,000 respectively) are not held under a business model
whose objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. No deferred tax is recognised in
respect of the fair value change in such investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of investment
properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom because no capital
gain tax arising from property sales in Hong Kong and no capital gain
tax arising from non-resident properties in United Kingdom.

Legal claim (note 36b)

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note 36(b)
to the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice from the Company’s lawyer and is of the view that the liability
of this legal case cannot be quantified at this point because the
outcome cannot be measured reliably. Accordingly, no provision nor
accrual are made in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill (note 20)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill arising
is HK$2,288,149,000 (2014: HK$2,288,149,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets (note 23)

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets of (i) approximately
HK$12,522,000 (2014: HK$12,522,000) in relation to unused tax
losses and (i) approximately HK$15,686,000 (2014: HK$15,134,000)
in relation to write-down of inventories have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$1,354,126,000
(2014: HK$1,013,098,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 17)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter
than previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change
in these estimations may have a material impact on the results of the
Group. The Group tests whether properties, plant and equipment
have suffered any impairment in accordance with its accounting
policy whenever there is any indication that the assets may have
been impaired. The recoverable amounts of properties, plant and
equipment have been determined based on discounted cash flow
method of each asset or a CGU. Impairment loss of HK$303,074,000
(2015: nil) was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2014
because the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount
of the relevant properties, plant and equipment. At as 31 December
2015, the carrying amounts of properties, plant and equipment are
approximately HK$15,660,817,000 (2014: HK$17,451,622,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EAEHYHERAER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BRI ZE 2 T EHRR
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recoverability of the licenced inventories (note 19)

As described in note 19, the Licencee is required to return the
licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of during the licence
period to the Group at the end of the licence period, on 31 August
2017, either by way of cash or identical inventories with the same
value as the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of.
The recoverable amount of the licenced inventories used, consumed
or disposed of during the licence period is secured by cash and bills
receivables of a related party of the Licencee (the “Securities”).
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In determining the recoverable value of the securities, the Group takes
into consideration the validity and existence of the Securities at each
month end and estimates the recoverable value of the Securities. In
this regard, the management of the Company is satisfied that the
risk is minimal and the recoverable value of the Securities is not less

o

than the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of at each

month end.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 26)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables are approximately HK$5,705,197,000
(2014: HK$5,824,256,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of

HK$689,923,000 (2014: HK$772,293,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to Directors. Any changes in the price per square metre in reference
with recent transactions will affect the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 16.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EAEHYHERAER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BRI ZE 2 T EHRR
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it

is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management MWt EE— LR ASE  AEBERE
of the Group will assess the valuation of financial instruments based BESHREHR UmELE—EARSH
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on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at
the end of each reporting period. As mentioned above, the fair value
of the Group’s bond securities listed in the Stock Exchange and the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading (“SGX”), the pricing vendors
will assess its fair value taking into account primarily the fair value
quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the lack of marketability
of the bond securities at the end of the reporting period. Pricing
vendors will exercise their judgements based on their experience to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets/liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the board of directors of the Company. Any changes
in the marketability of the listed bonds will affect the fair value of
the investments. Notes 6(c) and 22 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale

o

investments.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as

well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

(@) Categories of financial instruments

TRMITH

a. EMIAEH

2015
—E—HF
HK$°000
FET

7,090,533
2,017,736

210,079
4,853,792

14,172,140

2,403,069

3,283,542
409,762
20,710,671

24,403,975

Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including cash EZ REWKER(BIEES R
and cash equivalents) HeEEEE)
— trade and other receivables —B 5 RkEMERARR
~ bills receivables — KRR
— fixed deposits held at banks —RAEBR A=A R
with original maturity over LA EHERTT
three months EHFR
— bank balances and cash —IRITEB RIS
Available-for-sale investments A HERE
Financial liabilities e E
Amortised cost B IER AR
— trade and other payables —B 5 RkH MR
- bills payables —FEREE
- bank borrowings —RITIEE
— Derivative financial instruments —TAEEmMTA

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2014
—T-mE
HK$'000
TBIT

7,826,730
2,112,632

4,559,399

14,498,761

3,258,454

3,576,070
771,361
22,055,002

26,402,433

6,779



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 24.3% (2014: 18.5%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost 13% (2014: 13.3%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars (‘US$”), Euro, and HK$.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2014: 5%) increase and decrease in functional currency of
each Group entity against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (2014: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only the outstanding monetary
items denominated in foreign currency and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2014:
5%) changes in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes trade and other receivables, bills receivables,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances, trade and
other payables, bills payables as well as bank borrowings.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year which functional currency of each Group
entity strengthens 5% (2014: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of functional
currency of each Group entity against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year.

6.

L = R

b.
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()
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NEER - BNRBERRITEE -
FEESEEEROIEEEL
TERASNE FHES % ( — T — M4 -
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#h e EREEERNINESE
HABRAINE RS % (T — U4
5%)FF » AIBEH ANFEBRBIR
MNERFHRNEE -

Uss W
HK$ BT
Euro BT

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 29 for details of
these borrowings), fixed-rate fixed deposits and listed bond
securities with fixed coupon interest (see note 22 for details
of these listed bond securities). The management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider repayment of the
fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s bank balances, entrusted loans and variable-rate
borrowings have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) (2014: HIBOR) arising from the
Group’s bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances, entrusted loans and bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2014 50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2014: 10
basis points) decrease is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR interest rate had been 50 basis points (2014: 50
basis points) higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase by approximately HK$18,790,000
and approximately HK$4,912,000 (2014: increase
by approximately HK$18,303,000 and approximately
HK$6,118,000) as a result of the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its interest bearing bank balances
and entrusted loans respectively; and

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease by approximately HK$80,125,000
(2014: decrease by approximately 86,445,000) as a
result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate borrowings.

. the debit side investment valuation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
increase by approximately HK$13,130,000 (2014:
HK$29,607,000) as a result of the change in the fair
value of available-for-sale listed bond securities with
fixed coupon interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinueq) 6. £RTHu
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b. HBEREABEEEEREE
policies (continued) €-))
Market risk (continued) TSR (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIE [z fz ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BURE DT E)

i &R R1T R 47 B BKA0{E
F(ZZ—m% : 10E%TF) -
MArEEMEARIE - AKH :

If HIBOR interest rate had been 10 basis points (2014: 10
basis points) lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s:

o

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease by approximately HK$3,758,000
and approximately HK$982,000 (2014: decrease
by approximately HK$3,661,000 and approximately
HK$1,224,000) as a result of the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its interest bearing bank balances
and entrusted loans respectively; and

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase by approximately HK$16,025,000
(2014: increase by approximately HK$17,288,000) as
a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate borrowings.

the debit side investment valuation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2015 would decrease by
approximately HK$2,402,000 (2014: HK$5,803,000)
as a result of the change in the fair value of available-
for-sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest.
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FARRR  BEEREDITARER
RAERFEEL

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2014: 10%) higher:

° the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase by approximately HK$5,926,000
(2014: no effect for post-tax profit) as a result of
the change in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments.

o the debit side investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
decrease by approximately HK$33,095,000 (2014:
HK$22,940,000) as a result of the change in fair value
of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2014: 10%) lower:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease by approximately HK$39,021,000
(2014: HK$22,940,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of these available-for-sale investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2014: 10%) higher:

o the debit side investment revaluation reserve would
decrease by approximately HK$122,076,000 (2014:
HK$115,018,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2014: 10%) lower:

° no effect for post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: decrease by approximately
HK$134,919,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

° the debit side investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
increase by approximately HK$122,076,000 (2014
HK$19,901,000) as a result of the change in fair value
of these available-for-sale investments.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has concentration of
equity price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 51%
(2014: 35%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in three (2014: three) equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price of
the equity in the market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
31 December 2015 and 2014 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors have
delegated the management responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt and entrusted loans at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the
entrusted loan are pledged by the properties held by the
borrowers. In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables and entrusted loans with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers. However, the Group is exposed to concentration
on geographic segment in PRC. At 31 December 2015,
approximately 91% (2014: 91%) and 100% (2014: 100%) of
the Group’s trade and other receivables and entrusted loans
respectively are arising from counterparties whose principal
place of operation is the PRC.

At 31 December 2015, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as
25% (2014: 35%) of the total available-for-sale investments
are concentrated in four (2014: four) listed bond securities
issued by three (2014: three) listed issuers in Hong Kong.
The Group’s available-for-sale debt investments are exposed
to credit risk due to the default of repayment by the bond
issuers. However, the Directors consider the credit risk on
these investments is limited as the listed bonds are secured
by certain assets of the issuers and the issuers are listed
companies in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. At 31 December 2015, the Group has available
unutilised bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$7,549,475,000 (2014: HK$6,563,047,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.

6.

. o' la
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinueq) 6. EMIHu
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b. HMERMBEEEEZERBE
policies (continued) €
Liquidity risk (continued) REES R (FE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE 2 RFIEE R
Weighted Over Over QOver
average  Ondemand 3 months 1 year 2years Total
effective  orlessthan  butnotmore butnotmore  butnotmore  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months  thaniyear than2years than5years  cashflows amount
i 332! REXY, =AML -ENLE RENL  HMERS
L 7ES AR BFREE-F RTEEME (ETEELF id-£.: REE
% HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
TERL TERL TERL TERL TEL TERL
At 31 December 2015 H=B-EE+2A=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties 37+ HERE
Trade and other payables SR RAERER 3,283,542 3283942 3,283,542
Blls payables ENEE 409,762 409,762 409,762
Bank borrowings HiTks
- fixed rate -8 } 13,569 - - - 13,569 13,369
- variable rate ) ! 2616805 4312020 4323002 10061665 22234482 20,697,302
6,323,768 4312920 4323002 10981665 25,941,355 24,403,975
At 31 December 2014 H=B-BETZAZT-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3fT4BHERE
Tradle and other payebles EARAERER - 3576070 - - - 3576010 3576070
Blls payables ENEE - 71,361 - - - 7,361 7,361
Bank borrowings Hiiks
- fived rate -8 56 528,564 - - - 528,564 521,250
- variable rate -8 21 3803472 6412448 8245865 4445019 22907699 21533750
Dervative financial intrument iTESBIA - 2078 4701 - - 6,779 8,779

8661540 6417144 8245860 4446919 27790473 26409212

Derivative - gross settlement ffETR-HEEE
Foreign exchange forvard contrects ~ MEREAL

- outfow i - 13918 36,038 - - 49,956 49,956
- inflow —iA - (11,840) (31,337) - - #31m @317
2,078 4,701 - - 6,779 6,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

(©)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2015,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$777,200,000 (2014:
HK$963,368,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
ranging from two to seventeen (2014: two to eighteen)
years as set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$881,423,000 (2014: HK$1,077,258,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

. o' la
'.......... .’

L = R
b. BRREEEEERBRE

(4)

REELmE(E)

HBE L RFEREG ()

B 75 12 2 SKB RUE R 2 R1T 18
BER MBI MAANRE
KR =EARN]ZE8HE - R=F
—hF+-A=+—R %%
RITEEZINMBACHBEAR
777,200,000/ 70( —ZF — 04 ¢
963,368,000/8 7T ) ° & & E| A
SEZHHBMR - EEEE R
T RRATREITERIEHE + Bk
SEAEN c EEAE  ZE
IRITE BN RS PREREZIR
BERMEAa 2 EEERE 8
N TFRE+EF(ZZT—W4F
ME+NF)TE) » 2EEE -
B ASBERFBBEER
Hi#5 &881,423,0008 7T ( = &
—PU4F : 1,077,258,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6- ﬁﬁﬂlﬂ(@

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments c. E®MIAAVEE®
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are AEERAFELRBELEERE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued) EIENMHEEAFEGE)
Valuation Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at Fair value techniques and unobservable
(liabilities) 31 December hierarchy key inputs inputs Sensitivity
R+=A=+-RA2 fEERMTR BERTUBE
BEEERE) AFE AFEER TEFAHE BAZE HBE
2015 2014

E-Hf 2%
HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THT

()  Listed equity 1,610,974 ERECTASRISN] 1 Quoted bid prices n/a n/a
securities in active market.
classified as
available-for-sale
financial assets in
the consolidated
statement of
financial position

) REegBRLRT EETSEA TEA TEA
AR AR R RIE -
BAEZ LA

(i) Foreign currency 6,779) 2 Discounted cash n/a n/a
forward contracts flow. Future cash
classified as flows are estimated
derivative financial based on closing
instruments exchange rates

at the end of the
reporting period
and the contract
forward rates.

iy HEAITESBIA FHRRENE - KK TEA TER

ZINEBRHEH Bene kR
HHR 2 WTEE
R KR HE R
(EE

(i) Listed bond yCRETAN 1,721,382 3 Reference to the fair The lack of A significant
securities value quoted in the marketability increase in
classified as over-the-counter the lack of
available-for-sale market with the marketability
financial assets in adjustments would result
the consolidated for the lack of in a significant
statement of marketability. decrease in the
financial position fair value and

vice versa.

(i) REFEEFBRLETR 2RSIMIGHREZ BRZTEREE  TERBILERS
AR NHE - WHERZ REEEEM
BEREz LhER s IR A SEHNTE
E FE o BETR

2 IRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial

- . o' n
3 S ITTYPTYL M I
L]

o,

/80

6. EMIHu
c. SRMTAEAFETE®)
AEERAPELRBESEME

EFENUBEEZATEGE)
BB EEZ N FEAES

assets R
Listed bond
securities
tHESES
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mF—H—H 1,909,503
Additions VIN=E 1,126,568
Disposals HE (1,163,605)
Fair value loss recognised in other REMEEPEEERZ
comprehensive income N EEE (1561,084)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 1,721,382
Additions NG 798,416
Disposals k=S (1,821,575)
Fair value gain recognised in other REMEEmKSER 2
comprehensive income N ERE 85,748
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RAF+-A=+—H 783,971

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$85,748,000 (2014: a loss of HK$151,084,000) relating to
listed bond securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

BRRAHREBMREREEMBFEN L
&5 B 5 285,748,000 Tz (=
Z— 4% : [E518/5151,084,00087T) E
SFAHEMREKE  WE2RAEEZZ
—FE+-A=+—BHILEEZHREE
hEE &g -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by
the Group from the sales of goods and services rendered to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes, and
rental income received and receivable, analysis of revenue for the year

LEBRREASERSFRNEHIER
HESMORITIN - RERHERBHR
)~ REIRG 2 PR R S B R
ARBEEREEESEA - BFEHEE

is as follows: AW
2015 2014
—E-HF ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Sales of laminates HEE IR 11,284,105 11,476,942
Sales of chemicals HELCTER 9,809,217 13,575,058
Sales of PCBs SHE BN AR R AR 7,103,780 7,474,287
Sales of properties HEME 3,505,459 2,163,318
Rental income HelA 552,090 527,791
Others (Note) Hm (M) 533,535 688,370
32,788,186 35,905,766

Note: Amount included service income of HK$35,066,000 (2014:
HK$34,598,000), sales of LCDs and magnetic products of HK$436,070,000
(2014: HK$591,827,000) and hotel business of HK$62,399,000 (2014
HK$61,945,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

iE: #HE-_ZT-—AF+-_A=+—HIt
FE - B ¥R B YK A 35066000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (the "CODM") in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into five
main operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sale of laminates,
(i) manufacture and sale of PCBs, (iii) manufacture and sale of
chemicals, (iv) Properties and (v) others (including service income,
hotel business and manufacture and sale of LCDs and magnetic
products). The management aggregated the sales of properties and
rental income business into one reportable segment because the
financial performance of these two businesses are determined by the
property market. In addition, the management aggregated service
income, hotel business and manufacture and sale of LCDs and
magnetic products into one reportable segment because the revenue,
results, assets and liabilities of each business are insignificant to the
Group. No other operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assess segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (share of results of associates, gain
on disposal of and impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
investments, impairment loss recognised on properties, plant and
equipment, finance costs, share-based payments and unallocated
corporate income and expenses).

o EBE R

BBMIEHRERESHLEH LB
FUEBEzFECERRE([ZEEE
RERE DEE D BIEBIRD R RFHEE
KB AT EENEEEETREM
ZABREERETIE DT BAE -
BREms BB BHRMERFEHR
T AEEZERBERI B AR
EEBLEESB—(\RERBEERET
R~ (i) B M SH 6 ENRIARBEAR ~ (jii) Bk
FEECTER  (VVIERVEM(E
RIS - S S R 2SR E R
REBETRRMEER) EEEKH
EMERBSWAEBLEE R EZ2HK
DE - TR ZM RS RIS
BURRYIZET S « 1o - EREERE
WA~ BJE S R EE R E RIS
TRMHMEERGAEB—E2HEHEE -
THRRESEBRKE  ¥65 - EERE
EHAEEMEHTBEK - EEBA
SERROIE - WEGAFTBEER
REFTHER M B E DB -

RIEBBAMBRRENFESR - 2HD
MERTRBAFEEZZHRER - ZF
BHAAREEZHITES  AIEER
RETHER - AEBRAREEEM
RN ESRIED M2 M5t ER
B EERRE MR ER M R
R TBRERRENLE BN 2
AERFHED B BN ®EE - EhE
TEHEAYARBREEEBEENHZD
BMEEN(BIGBZARES - HER

HHERE Z W - LA SR ERE
RZBEBE - A% - BE LREE

RZMEFE - BERA - UEHER
MRRARDE 2 AR A RS H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>
(@ Segment revenues and results (a) oHEEBREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and result T BIZBRYEE D 2 N EH
by reportable segments: EREBMEE T

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations Consolidated
BAER ORSBE  (IER I Ht B &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR TER TEn TEn TR TR

Year ended 31 December 2015 ~ HZ-F-1%

Segment revenue P e
External sales HIMEESR 11,284,105 7,103,780 9,809,217 4,057,549 533,535 32,788,186
Inter-segment sales PEECHESR 1,508,342 - 577,768 - 2052 (2,178,169 -
Total Ait 12,882,447 7,103,780 10,386,985 4,057,549 535,587  (2,178,162) 32,788,186
Resut i
Segmentresul HELE 1603961 18383 26730 1250617 (1472 3,065,981
(Gain on disposal of available- HETHHERE G
for-sale investments 345,692
Impaiment loss recognised on AURLERERT
avalable-for-sale investments LAfEEE (814,293)
Share-based payments WRGFANT (62,764)
Unallocated corporate income KAz ARMA 190,906
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBZARTH (247,919)
Finance costs BANA (439,779)
Share of resuts of associates EEBENTEE (15,269)
Profit before taxation 3 ihagil 2,522,559

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market
prices.

MEZHEERN2ETER

i 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (orinued) 8. THEE
Segment revenues and results (continued) (a) MEXBEREE®
Laminates PCBs ~ Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
ERER  ORSER  (IER Vi i Fafid )
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
i Thr AL ThL Th ThL Thn
Yearended 31 December 2014 ~ EBZ=F-M%E
tZAZT-ALEE
Segment revenue P e
Exteral sales IMEER 11,476,942 7474287 13575058 2,691,109 668,370 - 35,906,766
Inter-segment sales PPELHER 1,977,036 - 7328% - 6444 (2,716,566) -
Tota At 13454178 TATA8T 14307044 2601109 GU48I4 (716566 35,905,766
Result E |
Segment result nHEE 1,369,815 116,322 402,775 2,031,587 20,803 3,941,302
Gain on disposal of avalable-lor-sale ~ HEFHERE 2 Uiz
investments 206,884
Impairment loss recognised on % BEREERD
properties, plant and equipment LAfEEE (303,074)
Share-based payments DRAF AR (7,39)
Unallocated corporate income RARZDERA 217446
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBZARTH (273,500)
Finance costs BERK (444,995)
Share of resuls of associates EEBENEE 176,956
Proft before taxation YTy 3,513,621

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market

prices.

DEEZEERISETER
& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —Z—RAFE+ - A=+—HItFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oniinueq) DEER )
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HBEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AT BiRBRm oy 20 o NEE
by reportable segments: BERBBEZDHNT :
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
BHER  ORERR tIER nE Aftr &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 December 2015

Assets
Segment assets
Avalable-for-sale investments
Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets
- Bank balances and cash
- Deferred tax assets
- Taxation recoverable
- Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilties
- Bank borrowings
- Taxation payable
- Deferred tax liabilties
- Others

Consolidated total liabilities

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

R-B-1%
+ZA=t+-A

]E

HHEE

ARHERE
REERF ER

AR RABE
(=)t
-BEREEAE
~AEE
- Efh

GREELE

&

AR

APEZRAERE
-BiTiEE
- EEHA
-EERARE
-£ft

FRRGELE

TET

15,522,725

(1,726,929)

TET

9,653,690

(1,687,207)

TR

8,140,625

(1,106,963)

TR

31,320,711

(4,821,067)

FRT FET

818526 65,456,277
2,403,069

2,086,039

2,117,571
3,420
24,890
829,725

72,920,997

(49.269)  (9,391,435)
(20,710,671)
(534,181)
(805,518)
(138,465)

(31,580,270)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninued) 8. THEE
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) SBEEREEHE
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
EHER  ORIEEK LIER nE At )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-mF
+ZA=1-A
Assets BE
Segment assets HHEE 15,841,148 10,452,482 11,163,684 30,020,644 1,007,105 068,485,063
Available-for-sale investments HEERE 3,258,454
Interests in associates N ANPR 1,370,686
Unallocated corporate assets Kol NAEE
~ Bank balances and cash -RTERRRS 1916,115
- Deferred tax assets -ERHEEE 4,862
- Taxation recoverable — A e 28,155
- Others —Efth 569,407
Consolidated total assets GREEEE 75,832,742
Liabilities 1
Segment liabilities PH8FE (1,580,575) (1,756,345) (2,148,059) (4,515,319) (64,169)  (10,064,467)
Unallocated corporate liabilties FolznaaE
- Bank borrowings -HFIEE (22,055,002)
- Taxation payable -ESHE (522,693)
— Deferred tax liabilties ~EiLHEAR (846,072)
- Others -Ef (171,318)
Consolidated total iabilties GREREE (3,669,552)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDFRRE DB EBEIR

allocating resources between segments: ms :

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other . BRELEHBEE - AT
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank EIfiIE « L&D R
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by = A E’JﬁETT EHERE
operating segments; and LEMEEN FIEE

ENRELESH &

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRIRTTEE « IEERIA
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation BE  BHEBEREE
payable and other liabilities for which operating DEHEAERNEME
segments are jointly liable. 1%9\\ mEBEMREE

LEEDER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mENBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>
(c)  Other information (c) HihE R
Unallocated
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others amount  Consolidated
BRER ORSER  LIER 0¥ it AIEEE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Thn T THT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ-Z-3F
TZR=t-ALEE
Amounts included inthe HEDR -t
measure of AHEERIA
segment profit or loss or Mg
segment assets;
Capital addftions BRER 522,267 504,099 182,809 4,229,517 5,444,447
Depreciation ik 795607 54614 8§793% 3,489 2,216,479
Release of prepaid lease payments EEETEEE 6,033 3,030 10,830 24,292
Impairment loss recognised on HEFRUETED
trade receivables ZEEEE 13,24 30,548 263 44,052
Impaiment loss (reversal o] SES(BEED
recognised on inventories ZRBEER 14,507 (2,005) 16,822
Interest income FlEmA 91,628 216 162,199 358,001
Loss on disposal and write off of HERKENE - BER
properties, plant and equipment REER 12,081 806 203 13,132
Fair value changes of foreign SNERHAN
exchange forward contracts JRYERY 453 453
Gain on fair value changes of REMELTEED
investment properties s 261,085

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>
(c)  Other information (continued) (c) HiERG
Unallocated
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others amount - Consolidated
ERER ORSER  LIER ES At AIEELE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT ThR AT TER TAR AR TAR
Year ended 31 December 2014 H2-E-ME
TZA=+-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of 5B Hi8%5,
segment profit or loss or PHEERHA
segment asses: MEE -
Capital additions BXER 1,001,477 525,396 524975 4,868,811 13,087 - 6,933,746
Depreciation e 732,368 575,541 951,430 3,000 59,050 - 2,321,389
Release of prepaid lease payments ENHEREED 6,502 4,188 16,635 - 2,804 - 30,129
Impairment loss recognised on HBAENETER
trade receivables ZREEE 2,455 9,588 2,731 - - - 14,774
Impairment loss recognised on W BRERRERED
properties, plant and equipment ZREEE - 18,517 284,557 - - - 303,074
Impairment loss (reversal o) BEE (BR)REA
recognised on inventories ZREEE 2,099 (54) 4,359 - - - 6,404
Interest income FBMA 124,898 1,416 4,178 139,789 31 154,448 424,760
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMENE - BRE
properties, plant and equipment REIER 8,875 14,182 4,878 - - - 27,935
Fair value changes of foreign MNEREEL
exchange forward contracts ZATEES 6,779 - - - - - 6,779
Gain on fair value changes of REMELTEEY
investment properties pd - - - 1,381,549 - - 1381549

/86

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mENBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(c)  Other information (continued)
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC (country of
domicile) and Thailand.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on where
the goods sold are delivered and services are rendered, is as

DEER o
(c) HtERM®

REENE R XHBA NP B (A
ERIR) K2 -

REERIBAE LEXE R M
MRS EE SN AR P ATE
g - DA & R R E D AT 0

follows: T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
2015 2014
—F-AF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FBT
The PRC (country of domicile) A (FTEEISR) 29,065,210 31,458,507

Other Asian countries (including Thailand, — Efh MBI (BIERH -

Japan, Korea and Singapore) A7 - SRR TN ) 1,780,722 2,494,098
Europe BOM 1,384,251 1,315,809
America E 558,003 637,352

No single external customer of the Group contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2015.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
other than deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, deferred tax assets, other non-current assets
and available-for-sale investments by location of assets is
presented as follows:

32,788,186 35,905,766

HE-Z—NF+=-A=+—H
M=F-—AF+=A=+—H1t
BEE  AEBWEE—ZIND
BPEAEE S XEEEB10% °

BB mEedzize 9
X BELRE BELEHREE
E - EtERBEERAHLE
KRB ARBEBERDEEKE
EREIT 25T

The PRC (country of domicile) PR (FTERS)
Thailand EE
United Kingdom [

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi85 T

31,392,382 32,009,172
276,930 310,092
1,347,455 1,405,737

33,016,767 33,725,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HMWA - mKkEE

2015 2014
—E-1F ZT—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other income, gains and losses include: EA A~ Wz REE R
Interest income from available-for-sale A EHERE 2 F SWA
investments 182,840 272,114
Interest income from bank balances and cash ~ $R474584 R I £ 2 Fl B U A 79,508 35,909
Interest income from entrusted loans ZRERZFBMA 95,653 116,737
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ~ A]{ft H & 18& > IR B ULA 171,236 73,982
Fair value changes of foreign exchange INERIIE N 2 AT EEH
forward contracts (453) (6,779)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBA RSz s 33,590 -
Loss on disposal of prepaid lease payments HERNHEEREZEE (325) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HE— e A R R B8 (8,977) -
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REERAK
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET U
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAEL
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 473,439 476,524
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of B B EREEKAR
qualifying assets NI (33,660) (31,529
439,779 444,995
Bank borrowing costs capitalised during the year includes the bank FRZBITEENEXABRESTEA
borrowing costs of HK$29,671,000 (2014: HK$25,888,000) arose REMWEZFREL CRITEEFE
from a bank borrowing specific for the property development project X A 29,671,000 7L ( =& — M 4F -
and bank borrowing costs arose from the general borrowing pool 25,888,000 70) k—REEEEZR
which were calculated by applying a weighted average capitalisation TEEMEBRAE MEBREERX
rate of 1.0% (2014: 0.9%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying INEFHE R FFE1.0%(ZE—Y
assets. F 1 0.9%)TE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FIBBAX

2015 2014
—ZT-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
The amount comprises: HIBELE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EREFEH
Charge for the year RER 2B H 11,013
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBARE (132)
10,881
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RSN
Charge for the year REF 2 HIAZH 436,002 278,807
Overprovision in previous years B FEBERE (7,766) (3,393)
428,236 275,414
PRC LAT R L i E R 43,171
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HEih el iRz FHE 4,477
Withholding tax on distributed profits of FREEARE DK
PRC entities Az AR 19,401
Deferred taxation (note 23) RAERIB (BH7E23) 339,271
569,464 692,615

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

EBFER RS F 2 A5 ERFUEF
WiE16.5% 2 TRETE -

BRIPEARAMBEEMEHIE]
(TEEFAEED RERIED > B=F
ENF—A—HRK - ERARTENE
RAZEFEHBER25%

FHE L IR ER B E R R BT ERE
RFRNBRMESE - RLWIERESHE
(REMEHERAMEREEBRKA)
NBEREAD Z = TENTEEHR
THIRER - SEEBRBRKATRER LM
P - BRFGRERAR - REMERE
ERERAKA - RRERBBERZE
FRE - HEBTRET A LIIEE
B BIEEHERTRET RERHERME
Wiz e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq) 11.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as
follows:

'.......... .’

Fit

BEEX®

Hib B AR 2 IRV IRB B REER

T

Profit before taxation B R BT F

Tax charge at the domestic income
tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (Note a)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose
Tax effect of share of results of associates
PRC LAT
Tax effect of PRC LAT
Overprovision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of Tax Concession (Note b)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions/areas
other than the domestic income tax rate

AR R ZE ARS8 %R 25%
(ZZF—F : 25%):THE
i (fizEa)

TR B R BT E

BARM W 2 RIF &

EEBERREEZRETE

B 4 S AR {E TR
R HIEER I RETE
BIEFEHEREREG

BB E 2 HEF & (HiEb)
ARTHERHBABR B E
B AEARRER 2 IR E 1R
BREIRRRATSH RN -
REMBEER,MEEE
MEARZ NAN Xz 8

2B EE -
AR E 2 FIE E R R AR F 2 E BRI

2015 2014
—E-AF —ET 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2,522,559 3,513,621
630,640 878,405
42,849 111,078
(119,028) (172,370)
3,817 (44,239)
67,281 43,171
(16,820) (10,793)
(7,766) (3,525)
(49,814) (66,596)
105,597 75,939
(20,340) (5,994)
(14,106) (15,638)
(91,662) (116,176)
38,858 19,401
(42) (48)
569,464 692,615

Tax exemption (Note c) FiE# e (WiEc)
Withholding tax (Note d) TEHFL (M Ed)
Others EAfth
Tax expense for the year AEE 2 BBHAS
Notes: MEE
(@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) represents the PRC (a)
Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations are substantially
based.
(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (b)
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC obtained official
endorsement as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax Concession”).
(© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are ()
exempted from profit tax.
(d) The withholding tax represented the payment on the 5% withholding tax in (d)

respect of the dividend income from PRC entities.

BAREMEHBE25%(=F—M
F o 26%) RAEEARED EW TR
REDEMRSH -

RIBECEMSRE  SHEMEEEH
EERRAURE RP=FM16%HEE
B ATHREMBARERERERS
ez (TRBESE]D -

ARARPRFIZETHBABMES 2
MERRRHATEH

ERRARTEER QAR SMAZ
Z5%TEHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. RNEERF
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after AR EHEF B AR (10 L)
charging (crediting): ARIER
Auditor’s remuneration ZE NS 13,050 13,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERARY 2 FEKA 23,870,852 28,245,297
Cost of properties sold BEEWERKAK 2,938,763 1,856,336
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  #1% - = MREITE 2,216,479 2,321,389
Net exchange loss VE 5 518558 78,472 9,544
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables B &R E 5 B BRFUREE B
(included in administrative expenses) (BETATTHER) 44,052 14,774
Impairment loss recognised on inventories ERRFEREEE
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHERA) 16,822 6,404
Loss on disposal and written off of property, & RMEEYE « BEX
plant and equipment HiE 2 EE 13,132 27,935
Release of prepaid lease payments AN E A 2 B[O 24,292 30,129
Total staff costs, other than share-based 8 TRk A 4858 (LARD e XA 30
payments (including directors’ AN - BREEEME
emoluments, see Note 13) (RMI5E13) 2,500,762 2,548,983
13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EE THERKES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS <
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=Me
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: B SREMZEmT
2015 2014
—E-RF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fees we 1,404
Other emoluments: HEps
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 16,861
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRREFIE SR
scheme 703
Performance related incentive payment TERIREEEFIE 79,060
Share-based payments AR 3R 3,163
153,739 101,191

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

13.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(@

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2014:
thirteen) Directors, including the Chief Executive, were as

'.......... .’

13. E THHERRES

ﬁ(%)

EEsME®)
BERRES =& (=N

F:H=R)EF(BRITHRA

follows: H)ZemT :
Year ended 31 December 2015
HECZ-RETA=t-ALEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiEes BuFinES
Lai Cheng
Cheung  Chang  Cheung Ho  Cheung Chung Tang Wai Tse  Cheung
Kwok Wing  Kwong Yin  Wailin,  Cheung Chen Wing, King Chee, Kam Ming
Wing Yiu Kwan Sang Stephanie  KaShing Maosheng  Robert Shing Christopher Hung Man Total
REX  BKE  RRE  ME:  REE B3 REE O RER 0 WEM  BES ABM R9N ait
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
T TEx FEx TEn  TEn  TEr TEr  TER  TER  TER  TER  TER  TER
(Note i) (Note i)
(Wi ) (& i)
Fees e
Other emoluments: 2fpds
Salares and other EoRE
benefits & 2618 2475 1563
Controutions to RiNERE
retiement benefits 3
scheme
Peformancerelated  TfEREIE
incentive payment EiE
(Note i) (i) 2000 14400 12400 12400 11,600 6,200
Share-based payments — MRAFA
[ES 12552 10460 8369 8369 8360 8369
Total emoluments HeaE 37430 27504 23503 23368 21,604 15657 3,169 204 360 20 153739
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

13. E  THHERRES

7 (48)
(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ ESME®E
Year ended 31 December 2014
HECT-META=T-RLER
Non-
executive
Executive directors director Independent non-executive directors
JET
gz EE
Mok Lai
Cheung  Chang  Cheung Ho  Cheung Cham Chan  Chung Tang Cheng Tse
Kwok Wing  Kwong Yin  Wailin,  Cheung Hung, Chen Wing Wing, King ~ Wai Chee, Kam
Wing Yiu Kwan Sang  Stephanie  KaShing  Chadwick Maosheng Kwan  Robert Shing  Christopher Hung Total
FEE  HkE  FEE  MRE  RRE ORRR ERE ORRE  BKE  BRR ¥EN g4 #BR At
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér  TEr  TEr T TEr  TErL TEn Tt AT TEr  TEr  TEr TET TEn
(Note) ~ (Notei) (Note )
B () 1]
Fess i - - - - - - - - I N O T
Otheremoluments: A%
Sdaresandother  HAREf
benefits B 2751 2,613 2613 2475 1,562 400 1,909 1,443 1,095 - - - - 16,861
Contributons to RINERTE
refirement benefs 51
scheme 127 121 12 14 72 2 61 67 - - - - - 703
Performance related  T/EFRIEE
incentive payment  EEJE
(Note i) (Bt 22000 14400 12400 12400 11,600 4,600 - 1,660 - - - - - 79,060
Share-based BRBF
payments Ha 57 49 489 4 49 191 4 . - - - - -3
Total emoluments HeasE 20406 17628 15623 15478 13723 5211 2459 3170 1,09% 204 360 480 360 101,191
Notes: k=S
0] Mr. Cheung Ka Shing was appointed as a director of the [0) ZE—NMENA—H ' KR
Company and Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick and Mr. Chan KEEBZERETRAE
Wing Kwan resigned and retired respectively on 1 August 2014. = B A RBRKIR
SR R EEIRAT -
(i) Mr. Cheung Ming Man was appointed as an independent non- (i) RAGFEER-_Z-—HF
executive director of the Company on 1 November 2015. +—RA—BBZEEAEARAR
BIENITES ©
(iii The performance related incentive payment is determined with (ii) TEXRBEBEBRELZ
reference to the operating results, individual performance and EZMEFEZEEEE
comparable market statistics during both years. EARBE R SEEM
EE -
(iv) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly (iv) rFzHTEEMe T ERH

for their services in connection with the management of the
affair of the Company and the Group. Non-executive director's
emolument shown above was mainly for his service as director
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &t TEEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. £ THEBKES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [ kA
(continued)
(b)  Chief Executive’s emoluments (b) TTHAZME

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

(c) Employees’ emoluments (c)
For the year ended 31 December 2015, all of five (2014: four)
highest paid employees are Directors and the Chief Executive.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the emoluments of
the remaining one individual was as follows:

AR ETAARBITHE
B A2 EXWE - P&t
MESBITHASMRERZR
& o

TREHIEMESHENEE
“E-RER-F-OFETA
=t—-BUEFERERTNE -

EEM<
BHE-T—AF+=A=1+—
HILEFE  fIERA(ZZE—M
F:MOR)&EaFATEHER
BEERITHRAAE -

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—8H
LEFE #f T —2EENHSHR
FanT

HK$'000

FAT

Salaries and other benefits e MEAEF 2,682
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIEFF B 124
Performance related incentive payment TVERIFEREENETE 15,900
Share-based payments LARR 1 FZ 2R R 266
Total emoluments < 4E 78 18,972

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid to or receivable by the Directors or
the Group’s five highest paid individuals, including Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

BE-T-RER-T-MF
ToAST-BILEE - R
AEEMEERFEHAL(QEE
) i 2 MR RS
R 3| 255 NS NSRS & 1
2 RSN ARRZ 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(d)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

As disclosed in note 40, the Group entered into sale and
purchase transactions with the subsidiaries of a shareholder
with significant influence on the Group. The price was
determined and agreed between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market price.

In addition, the Group purchased properties from subsidiaries
of a shareholder with significant influence on the Group. The
price was determined after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties with reference to the valuation reports prepared by
Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu, Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the executive directors
of the Company, are interested in these transactions to the
extent that they have beneficial interests in these companies.

Save for the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company or the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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FEMBEwRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2015 2014
—ET-EHF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE
Interim dividend for the year ended HE—ZT—AF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2015 of HK20 cents IEFE 2 PER S SR @R
(2014: HK20 cents) per ordinary share 20/l ( == — M4 - 2074L) 205,120 205,120
Final dividend for the year ended HE-_Z—NWF+=-A=+—8H
31 December 2014 of HK30 cents \FFE 2 REAR B SRR T Ak
(2014 final dividend for the year ended 0B ZZE—mEF - H=E
31 December 2013 of HK20 cents) —E-—=F+-/F=+—H
per ordinary share IEFE 2 KRR SR @R
207811) 307,680 205,120
512,800 410,240
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Dividend proposed EERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended EEEE—T—hHF+=A
31 December 2015 of HK30 cents =t+—HIEFERERE
(for the year ended 31 December R BRI0EIL(HE
2014: HK30 cents) per ordinary share —E-NE+-/A=+—H
IEFE = 30781l) 307,680 307,680

The final dividend of HK30 cents (2014: HK30 cents) per ordinary
share amounting to HK$307,680,000 (2014: HK$307,680,000) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 has been proposed
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EEREBREBE_T—AE+_-A
T+ HLEFERERPRETRE
FAL30BAL (= —m4F : 30%L) -
& #£307,680,000/8 7L (=& — M F :
307,680,0007T) * MEZBRFANA B R
JETERRRBERGHAE - FAMEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the following
data:

15. BREF

ARABEAANBIEERER R EERT
BT BIEE

2015 2014
—E-EF ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000

T

T

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic s+ E &R EA R #E &R 2 27

and diluted earnings per share

2,536,800

Number of shares

BRHEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T U4

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ :tESREARRESHT|Z
w98

for the purpose of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share

1,025,600,236 1,025,600,236

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 did not take into account the effects of
share options of the Company and Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited (“KLHL"), the listed subsidiary of the Group, as the exercise
prices of the outstanding share options were higher than the average
market prices of the Company’s and KLHL'’s shares during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREYH

HK$'000
FAT
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—F—HA—H 7,700,029
Exchange adjustments P W SR (96,284)
Additions NE 4,307
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) i E FERYENE@E) 1,203,256
Increase in fair value NEIE N 1,381,549
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—WF+-_A=+—H 10,192,857
Exchange adjustments PEE 57, B (460,976)
Additions NE 4,561
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 33) L e B B8 2 = (B 5E33) 355,843
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) HEAFHEDEMEE) 109,729
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment (Note (b)) R E Y% - BRE & 24 (D) 407,152
Increase in fair value ANE(EIE N 267,085
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+-A=+—H 10,876,251
Notes: BT
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, certain completed (a) HE_Z—MOFE=-Z—HF+=A
properties held for development were reclassified to investment properties =+—HIEFE FHEBYE=FHFHR
upon change in use as evidenced by commencement of operating leases KETRNFROREEE T - BTHE
with independent third parties (see note 25). EORTIYESHOBEREMER
HzE25) ©
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the use of (o) HE-Z-—RF+-A=1+—HLHF
certain of its leasehold properties and had leased them out to independent B ASENREAETHOMERR I
third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer from properties, plant and EHEFBILE=H - NESHEESWA -
equipment to investment properties, these properties were revalued with a TERIE - BENEETEREREY
gain on revaluation of approximately HK$309,429,000. 2R MRSYELETEG  ERKE
#)/309,429,0007 7T °
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recognised BHE_ZT—AF+-_A=1T—HILFE
gain on fair value change of investment properties amounted to N AEERRREYE R FEZSWK
HK$267,085,000 (2014: HK$1,381,549,000). The fair value of the % £267,085,0008 L (ZF — 0 F -
Group’s investment properties at the date of transfer from properties, 1,381,549,000/87C) © AREE 2 KREY)
plant and equipment and properties held for development to ¥REET—NWFE+=-A=+—HL
investment properties during the years ended 31 December 2014 FERBE-_Z—RAF+=-_A=+—8H
and 31 December 2015, and as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 had IEFERYE  BERRBURGER
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date MEEBREREVENBRAERNR=Z
by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers —MOER=ZZE-—RAF+=A=+—HZ
not connected with the Group. Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited is a NEEDNZAAEE Y EEAE L BILE
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was BREERMZESBRFTEERAT - ©
determined based on direct comparison method by reference to the ZAETHE EEER - BEEERT
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to HERARADBIZMEBEEE - 2
reflect conditions and locations of subject properties. RIEETI2ERUDEZ TBRET S
S AB L EUAEE TE I P EE DA R R TS

MENGEHRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16- ?ﬁﬁ%%(ﬁ%)

All the Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the R-ZE—HF+_A=+—HBK_-Z

fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, —MMFE+=A=+—0  AEBZMHE

There were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy during the year. BEYMEIEAE-"BATEER - F
WA A FESHR 2 H &R -

The following table gives information about how the fair values of TRIBINZEREYWEZ AN TFEEF

these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation FR(CE R MGER & AR

technique and inputs used). ®) -

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
of financial position and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
fra MBI R (EREESF PN BRIAEE
REEFRG 2 REME 2 AR T A BUE BURE
Industrial properties in Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the
Hong Kong with price per square market direct comparable and  price per square metre used
metre taking into account of location  would result in a significant

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of
property etc., which is ranged
from HK$41,108 to HK$41,789
(2014: HK$36,134 to
HK$38,750) per square metre.

REBHN TRYE BELEOERE TR RAMSEZALBMERE
EE JBALE DA K EoAt B 51| R 2= 1% (10

FRiiER - MEXNE)NET
FREE - NT41,1088LE
41,7890 (Z T —MEF : N
36,134 70238,750/87T) °

Commercial properties Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using
in the New Territories, with price per square market direct comparable and
Hong Kong metre taking into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of
property etc., which is ranged
from HK$54,390 to HK$55,166
(2014: HK$46,339 to
HK$49,858) per square metre.
REBFROEAYE BEELEERETIK KAMSEERLEMERE
EE R E DA K E At 18 51l &= 4% (40
FRiTER - MEXRNE)NET
TIKREE - N 54,3008 T E
55,1668 T(ZE—M4F : NF
46,3397 71 249,858 7T) °

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

B ITREARARIE LG
BREMEN R EFERRL
Tt RZIFA e

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

B IRERAIE LR E R
BREMENH R EFERR L
Tt RZIFA e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

/80

16. REWHE »)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Valuation techniques
of financial position
e B RP AR &

AEEREZIREME 2 A\BE

and key inputs

Significant unobservable

inputs
BRTAER
A BUR

Sensitivity

BRE

Commercial properties in -~ Direct comparison method
Hong Kong Island, Hong with price per square

Kong metre

REBBESNERYE BERLBERETIK

&

Commercial properties in -~ Direct comparison method

Shanghai with price per square
metre
BRI AYE
=

BEERLBERET K

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable

and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which

is ranged from HK$161,255

to HK$162,430 (2014:
HK$122,386 to HK$128,650)
per square metre.
RAMSEEILRYERE
AL E LA K B At 18 51 = 4% (40
PRITER - MEXNNE)NET
TIREE - NF161,25587C
162,430 7L (ZE—HF :
122,386/ 705 128,650/
JT) e

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable

and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB28,100 to
RMB30,600 (2014: RMB28,000
to RMB30,490) per square
metre.
RAMSEEILRYERE
ERLE LA K E At 18 Bl [l = 4% (40
FRETEE - MERNF)NEFT
FARERE - N FAR28,100
T2 ARYZ0,600T(ZF—NH
F N FARE28,000TEA
R¥30,4907T) °

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIREBRKRIE LT
REMENRFEAEAREL
Tt RZIFA e

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

B IRERKRE LTS
BREMENRFEFEARRL
Tt RZIFA e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16- }Qﬁ%%(z§>

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Valuation techniques Significant unobservable

of financial position and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
e B RP (GREETDA BRTAER

REEBE2RENE 8 ABIE B A\ BUE BURE

Commercial properties in ~ Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the
Guangzhou with price per square market direct comparable price per square metre used
metre and taking into account of would result in a significant

REMNEERYE
EE

Commercial properties in - Direct comparison method
Shenzhen with price per square
metre

SZRIl I FE)EEYE S
EE

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

BERLBERETIIAK

BEERLBERETIK

location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB16,500 to
RMB22,500 (2014: RMB16,500
to RMB22,764) per square
metre.
RAMSEEALEYERE
FEALE DA EAtb {51 B 4% (40
FRETEEE - MERNEF)NFF
TARERE - N FAREE16,500
TEARE22,5000(ZF—NH
F: NFARKE16,500E A
R#22,7647T) °

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable

and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB14,500 to
RMB15,000 (2014: RMB14,500
to RMB14,800) per square
metre.
RAMSEEALERYERE
FEALE DA EAtb {IE 1| B 4% (40
FRETEEE - MEXRNE)NEFF
TRER - T ARME14,500
T2 AREA15,0000(ZF—NW
F:NFARKE14,500E A
R¥14,8007T) °

increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

SR LA
BAMEN AT EEAR L
A B2 -

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFITRBRRIE LT
REMENRFEAEAEL
Tt RZIFA e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16.

<> o' "
'.......... .

REWE )

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable

of financial position and key inputs inputs
e B RP HERM & BARNAEE
REERFE 2 IREME g A BR & A\ SR

Sensitivity

BRE

Commercial Shops in
Qingyuan with price per square

metre

Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable
and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

is ranged from RMB9,500 to
RMB10,000 (2014: RMB9,800
to RMB10,068) per square

metre.

RIBEEE AL BERLBERETIIAK

RAMSERAILENERE

FFIRERAE LB ER

&E

Commercial properties in
London
metre

IS CEGENEEIES
S

BEERLBERETIK

Direct comparison method
with price per square

BALE R EMERIFEZER (10
FRATIER - MENNF)NETFE
FREE - NFARKQ,5007T
= AR#10,0007( = F—Y
F: NFAREEBOTTEAR
#10,0687T) ©

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of
property etc., which is ranged
from GBP5,501 to GBP8,400
(2014: GBP5,551 to GBP9,114)
per square metre.
RATSEEALEYERE
JERLE DA K EoAth (&1 A =42 (40
FRETER - MEXRNF)INET
FAREE - NF5,501 %R
8400H (=T —mE : NF
5,551 859,114 5H85) -

KEMENRNFEAEAEL
Tt RZIMA

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIRBRARE LT EE
REMENRFEAEAEL
Tt RZIFA e

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to
the valuation technique during the year.

Certain investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$1,780,000,000 (2014: HK$1,560,000,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SR DTES - BREREENE
R ARRARE  ERBEAERT
2BE -

AEBEBEHRETE@TMAEA
1,780,000,000 8 L 2 WEMHE (=T
—PO4E : 1,560,000,000/87C) * LAKER
RITREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  17. Y% - BER%&E

Properties,

Furniture, plant and

fixtures equipment

Freehold Leasehold Plant and Licenced and  Transportation under
lands Buildings  improvements machinery assets equipment equipment  construction Total

KAER LRSS REGR &R £E e
1 BF & EEREE &g KR EERE HERRA aif

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tin Tin TR TR Tin TiEn TR TR T

(Note i)

(Wi
00sT o2
A1 January 2014 R-F-pE-f-8 5317 3106665 1042350 25252314 2518267 1531837 309577 790654 34,605,981
Exchange adjustments Eigx (316) (5,643 (4583) (40,876) (8:427) (4,563 (499) (3834 (r7.801)
Additions g - 3024 24,653 648,219 - 46,624 12114 1337007 2,071,731
Disposals and wrte off LERME - (528) 2,800) (700,559) - (13,09) (160,010) (25,445) (002.434)
Reclassfications EEpL] - 12,085 19712 1,278061 - 40716 1351 (1,351928) -
At 31 December 2014 RZF-BETZA=1-A 54,001 3115608 1079332 26428163 2509840 1601518 162,533 746487 35607477
Exchange adjustments B 219 (88,108) (601)  (1,395,194) (145,534) 92,160) (7,876) (12078 (1,806,830)
Addiions e - 2460 35,988 546,569 15,072 60811 7875 542,961 1,211,736
Acquistion of a subsicfary (Note 330)  YEEME 2 (:£33p) - 71317 - 580 - 11 - - 277908
Disposals and wrte off HERHE - - (16,649) (839,889) (39,249) (34,680) (10672) (25,934) (967,072)
Disposal of asubsidary (Note 34) ~ HEHBRA(HE) - - - - - - - (329 (329)
Surplus on revaluation EffENE - - 309.429 - - - - - 309,429
Transfer to investment properties SETREME(HH)

(Note () - - (455,549) - - - - - (455,549)
Reclassfications Exipy] - 45,162 8219 206,742 - 18,384 % (298,549) -
At 31 December 2015 RZF-REtA=1-A 5722 3352434 955176 24,966,971 2340129 1553884 151,806 892564 34,266,776
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT i EREE
A1 January 2014 R=F-BE-A-R - 670,304 3029 12628785 1832470 696,978 105,474 - 16404240
Exchange adjustments EiE - (1477) (2,699) (3986) (5,641) (1,176) (311) - (15,289)
Provided for the year TEEEE - 25,023 72,774 1953444 119,710 127874 22,564 - 231389
Eliminated on disposals and wite off /B3 34 - - (1,141) (644,392) - (11,404 (110622) - (767,559)
Impaitment loss recognised i REREDZAEEE

proft o loss (Note (i) (Hizkqh) - - - 303,074 - - - - 303074
At 31 December 2014 R-E-RE+-A=1-A - 693,850 449164 1423695 1946539 812,272 107,105 - 182585
Exchange adjustments EiE - (10,599) (3312 (757,731) (117,357) (44901) (6,133 - (940,059)
Provided for the year TEREE - 24,927 93,149 1,848,918 100,865 128,748 10872 - 2216479
Elminated on transfer to ERERENERTS

investment property (Note () (HtzE0) - - 48391) - - - - - 48,391)
Eliminated on disposals and wite off /B3 i 34 - - (15,466) (192,845) (19,651) (30592 9371) - (867,925)
At 31 December 2015 RIE-RETZAZT-H - 708,178 475,144 14535267 1919,396 865,501 102478 - 18605959
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2015 RZF-REt-A=1-A 53722 264425 480082 10431704 420733 668,383 49423 892564 15660817
At31 December 2014 R-F-BET-A=1—A 54,001 2421753 630168 12,191,238 563,301 789,246 55,428 46487 17451622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment other than those
under construction are depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking
into account of their residual values at the following rates per annum:

Freehold lands Nil

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired
terms of leases from twenty to
fifty years

Leasehold improvements 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10 -20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 33"/,%

Transportation equipment™® 10-20%

Included those grouped under licenced assets.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s freehold lands of HK$53,722,000
(2014: HK$54,001,000) are situated outside Hong Kong.

Notes:

(i

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the use of
certain of its leasehold properties and had leased them out to independent
third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties, these properties were revalued with a
gain on revaluation of approximately HK$309,429,000.

The Group had consolidated certain of its production facilities in the PRC
during the year ended 31 December 2014. As a result of the consolidation,
certain plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$18,517,000 were
identified to be redundant and was fully impaired. In addition, during the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had closed down a natural gas
based methanol plant in the PRC, due to its poor operating results. The
carrying value of the plant and equipment of HK$284,557,000 in relation to
this operation were fully written off as an impairment loss during the year.

'.......... .’

17. W% > BERKRE =

PRIEEME - BB R&EEHN - Lty
¥ WEREREIEB AR RAFREE
BABREER TS FE L RGRT
5

IKAERELI BB

BFr LR AT
RERFHEIAR
20F E50F T

FLOMmEEE 10 - 20%

BB Kk zs 10-20%

BRI - RE RS 10-337,%
B 10 -20%

. BREFARBEREEZAR °

RZF-AF+ZA=FT—08 A%
[ £ 4553,722,000/8 0 (— & — P04 :
54,001,000 7T, ) Sk A EERE T H AL A &
FEIESN o

G

0] HE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HBLHE
B AEEREETHEAMERS A
PHRFBIE=H  NESHESUWA -
% BERSEREEZREY
05 - RZESMEETEMS - BEKE
#175309,429,000/ 7T °

(i) HE-_ZT—NF+-A=+—HIF
B AEEEETPEEERESGEA
5 - ARREHRAANE « 5 THE KK
& (B m (& &18,517,000/8 7T ) E ## A
BEHRUB2ERE - W BEZZ
—NFEFZA=F+—HLFE  AEEH
PR E—MARREFER - RERZ
HISEEERE - BRAZEBNRE R
=2 4% (BRI 18 A 284,557,000/ 70 ) B R
FRE I ARERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes:  (continued)

(iii) Details of licenced assets:

feE - ()

(i) EREEREEFS -

17. Y% - BERFREw

Plant and Transportation
Buildings machinery equipment Total
1gF B 2 BRI ait
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FHETT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2014 R=FT—MF—F—H 371,651 2,136,740 9,876 2,518,267
Exchange adjustments FEE 5, & (1,244) (7,150) (33) (8,427)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF
+—-—A=1+—H 370,407 2,129,590 9,843 2,509,840
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A= (21,625) (123,343) (566) (145,534)
Additions AE - 15,072 - 15,072
Disposals HeE - (39,249) - (39,249)
At 31 December 2015 WZZE—RF
+=A=+—8H 348,782 1,982,070 9,277 2,340,129
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 3T E RR{E
At 1 January 2014 R-E—NF—HA—H 144,478 1,678,116 9,876 1,832,470
Exchange adjustments [E 5 FaE (454) (5,154) (33 (5,641)
Provided for the year REERE 7,240 112,470 - 119,710
At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF
+—-A=+—H 151,264 1,785,432 9,843 1,946,539
Exchange adjustments I X% (9,105) (107,686) (566) (117,357)
Provided for the year AN JE A 6,647 103,218 - 109,865
Eliminated on disposals e i T 8 - (19,651) - (19,651)
At 31 December 2015 WZZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H 148,806 1,761,313 9,277 1,919,396
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—REF
—A=+—H 199,976 220,757 - 420,733
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MmF
+=—A=+—8 219,143 344,158 - 563,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(continued)
Details of licenced assets: (continued)

On 3 August 2011 and 30 August 2013, a subsidiary of Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited (‘KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed
subsidiary of the Group), entered into a licence agreement and a letter of
extension and amendments with Harvest Resource Management Limited
(the “Licencee”), an independent third party, to licence KBCF’s copper foil
manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou to the Licencee
for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2015. On 28 August
2015, the Licensor entered into a letter of extension and amendments
with Licencee and extended the licence period for a further two years to
31 August 2017. The details of the licence arrangement which remained
unchanged, are as follows:

(@) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings in
Fogang and Lianzhou;

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventories which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(c) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in Fogang
and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 19 were licenced for licence income of
HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month, as a measure by KBCF to generate income from
the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the interested party
transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and trading of copper foil,
with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF (note 36(b)) and the approval
of the interested party transactions mandate by the shareholders and/or
when KBCF clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper
foil. Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had assessed the
licenced properties, plant and equipment for any indication of impairment
based on the financial performance of the assets. Based on the assessment
carried out by the Group, the assets were able to generate positive cash
flow for the coming future, therefore, there were no indication of impairment
in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group conducted a review
of the recoverable amount of its licenced properties, plant and equipment
based on valuation carried out by independent professional valuer, Messrs.
Roma Appraisals Limited. The valuation was determined based on the
value in use calculated using the income approach. The discount rate used
in measuring value in use was 7%. Based on the review, no impairment
loss was recognised.

'.......... .’

17. W% > BERKRE =

BiEE - ()

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FA{JHEFIE
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: TENHEEREZ EHIAT

HK$'000

T

At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—WF—HF—H 1,047,061
Exchange adjustments Rk (2,121)
Disposals e (7,834)
Charge for the year AEEZH (30,129
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+_-_A=+—H 1,006,977
Exchange adjustments TE 5 (45,715)
Additions NE 7,826
Disposals k= (1,045)
Transfer to properties held for development (Note 25) R SRRy E(HE25) (6,226)
Charge for the year AEETH (24,292)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+_-_A=+—H 937,525
2015 2014

—E—AfF ZENEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHx FATT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEmELTWT -
Current assets MENEE 25,086
Non-current assets IERBEE 912,439

937,525 1,006,977

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the
use of a piece of land located in the PRC, with a net book value of
HK$6,226,000, because the management's intention is changed from
owner occupation to redevelopment.

The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments are amortised
ranged from 35 years to 50 years.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19.

This represents inventories licenced to the Licencee (see note 17) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2017. Under the
licencing agreement, the licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventories which include consumables and stocks
in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and return the
quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed
of during the licence period to the Group at the end of the licence
period.

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed the expiry of
during the licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables
of a related party of the Licencee, with a total receivable value of not
less than the value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or
disposed of as at the end of the reporting period.

HtFERBEE

WHR-_Z——FAA—RBE_F—+t
FNA=Z+—AREEREA(RME
17)ERNEE - REXEEBHE
EEEARER  BRRLEREER
FE ETERESERLESFE - R
i RIREERBERE - BREAR
AAREEE RENEEERBRHD
EH ERARHENREEAFER

=
= °

RERERYER  RANHEZXE
ERTEREREA—RBEEATINR
& REERBEFEER - JERETD
RREPREEREHAESEA - A
EZREERTE 2 EE-

20. GOODWILL 20. BHE
HK$'000
T
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and R-—E—mF—HF—H -
31 December 2015 “E-NF+-A=+—A8K
—E—RF+-A=+—H 2,288,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

20. GOODWILL (ontinuea) 20. B2 ®
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill arising from BRWENBARMEAZ BEZHE
acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as follows: BIHFERENT
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been mRENSNE  mEE R TREE
allocated to groups of CGU of laminates, PCBs and chemicals AER - BRI REIR RETERME
business segments. At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying Bz IRESELBEMAR - XN=2F
amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and —RAFERZE—NOF+ZA=+—HS
chemicals business segments were approximately HK$390,781,000, T EMER - EIRIGKRIR R TE
HK$1,717,519,000 and HK$179,849,000, respectively. REBSE NS EAEMNBRIZE
IR E 5 B4 7390,781,000% 7T
1,717,519,000 7 7T M 179,849,000 /&
T e
The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and chemicals’ EIRER - ERIGRER R ETERZE
CGUs have been determined based on a value in use calculation. SEEBMZ A RESEREREER
Goodwill is expected to generate cash flows for the next 50 years. BOAETE o TEEIREEIN AR Z50F &
Cash flow projections were extrapolated using zero growth rate based ARERE - AR ERENERES
on a five-year period financial budgets approved by the Directors. HEN A FHYREE RSB REmMG
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations for the CGUs of BINER - ERIREE R R TERER
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are as follows: DEReEABM  FREEFELZ
FEBRWOT ¢
Laminates PCBs Chemicals
BHER EN Rl SR8 AR LIER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Rf —Z-NF ZB-1Ff _T-NF —E-RF _—T-NF
Discount rate biisik 13%
Growth rate (for year 1 10 5) BER(1F545) 4%

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industries.

Since the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were higher than its
carrying amounts, no impairment loss was recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of

these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed their aggregate recoverable amount.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REBE QT2 e

2015 2014
—Z—-HF T
HK$’000 HK$'000

T TBTT

Cost of investments in associates B E R E] 2 B
Unlisted in the PRC R BZE LT 2,014,926 969,671
Share of post-acquisition profits and other FEAEU B 1R R &
comprehensive income, net of dividends Hiv 2 A
received (FBR B WAR 2 401,015
2,086,039 1,370,686
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests in the RZE—RAFR-_FT—WF+_7
following associates: =+—HB  AEEHEBUTEZ ARE
=
Place of Proportion of
establishment Equity interest held voting rights held
Name of associate and operation by the Group by the Group Principal activities
RIK rEEEE
NG EEME REEFEFRE BRERELA FEER
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-Rf —T-MF Z—E-HF —T-F

CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited* PRC 40%  Manufacture and distribution

B RBRE L IARAR HE of methanol
BUER D R
LESERBEREBB AT PRC 49%  Coal mining and distribution of
HE coals
BERARKED
BB ERE (R BRAN PRC 49%  Property developments and
3 business management
MEERREKER
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Sino-Foreign # ERRTARINEEEEERRTE
Equity Joint Ventures. BT ©
e The Company was newly established and injected the capital of e ZATRZE—NFRFKIL - EA
approximately HK$758,441,000 in 2014. During the year ended 31 & A A&758,441,0008 7T - REIZE=Z
December 2015, the Group further injected the capital of approximately —RAF+tZA=1+—HILFE  ~5H
HK$1,071,419,000. #E— 25 EE#1,071,419,000/8 7T ©
a During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed its s HEZZT-—RF+ZA=1+—HLHF
interests in this associate with cash consideration of approximately B ASEHEERLEE A RAE
RMB84,000,000 (equivalent to HK$104,574,000), net of the shareholder @ - WeREL A AR S4,000,000
loan RMB55,154,000 (equivalent to HK$68,663,000) and resulted in a loss JC(FHE 104,574,000/ ) * Bk
on disposal of an associate of HK$8,977,000. R E R ARS5,154,0007T (FHER

68,663,000/ 7T ) 17 B BUER 15 H & — K
B4\ B]/§518.8,977,000/8 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & =%

—hFtZA=t—RALFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (oninueq) 21.

The investments in CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited and Aif &ttt
KR OFY|) BR AT are solely for share of results and no other
strategic purpose is involved. The associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance

with HKFRSs.

REENT 2 R

RREAMEEL T ARA R LS
EKEROR)BRARNZEEZAEDE
EEMEL  WESREMKIEER -
REZFRAEVHRE - B QA RRAE
wmEENESIER -

TOF AR RIS R RIREBY
BERREARENOMERR 2SR -

2015 2014
—g-5F  —F QOF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FH FHT

The Group’s share of (loss) profits for the year

SR B A FE K A (B 18 A

(15,269) 176,956

(125,553)

The Group’s share of other comprehensive REBARFERGEMEE
expenses for the year 53

The Group’s share of total comprehensive REBAFEEGEE
(expenses) income for the year (R )W BgE

(140,822)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

interests in these associates

REERZEHERFZ
REan AR AR(E

2,086,039 1,370,686

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

22. AHHERE

Listed equity investments, at fair value:
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong
- equity securities listed in Singapore

Listed bond securities at fair value:
- listed on the Stock Exchange and issued

by listed issuers in Hong Kong with a fixed
coupon interests ranging from 8.625% to
13.875% (2014: 8.25% t0 13.875%)
per annum and maturity dates from
19 January 2017 to 21 May 2020
(2014: 19 January 2017 to 5 February 2020)

- listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong

with a fixed coupon interests

ranging from 6.75% to 8.75%
(2014: 6.625% to 10.25%) per
annum and maturity dates from

10 January 2019 to 29 January 2023
(2014: 16 January 2018

to 29 January 2023)

Unlisted equity investments, at cost
- private equity investment in Hong Kong (Note)

Total

2015 2014
—Z-1% —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T THEL
FIRARE  RATE:
—-REB L RAES 1,609,540 1,374,484
— I £ 2 A 1,434 5,096
1,610,974 1,379,580
FhEFES  BATE:
— BB EMETABITIR
BRETET - AEFENT8.625E
Z13875E (T~ : 8.25
Z13875F ) ZEERE - TR
S s WM = i S
FRAZH—H(ZT—WEF
“Z—t5-At+hAZE
“Z-TE-ARA)IH 389,655 832,156
— BB MBI ABTER
WRFTLEm - AEFENT6.75E
Z8.75E(=ZZ—UF : 6.625F
Z£10.258) ZEERE - W
—E-NE-A+BEZF==F
—AZTAR(ZE—DmE:
- \F-A+ HE
ZEZ=F-AZTAB)EH 394,316 889,226
783,971 1,721,382
FEMBRARE - R
~HEBILERAKE
(FizE) 157,492
At 2,403,069 3,258,454

At the end of reporting period, all listed available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond securities are
determined by reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institutions based on their own valuation techniques because
of lack of active market. The unlisted equity investments are stated at

cost less impairment as their fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

REHRAERER  BEAHEEL
MREHRRFEIIFR - ARERZIER
M5 MEE LT EFEFZATFETD
RE2EXSGHERBBARESEMHE
BT A EREE o MR IF EmARA
RENRFENRER St E - #UZA
FORRREDIR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$314,293,000 (2014
nil) was recognised in profit or loss as a result of significant and
prolonged decline in the fair values of certain of the Group’s listed
equity investments below their cost.

Note:  The amount represents the 19.67% (2014: 19.67%) interest in a private
entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The Group together with
other investment funds as investors currently holds a number of properties
in a building situated in Hong Kong which are held for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 4.7% (2014: 9.80%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$163,800,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the investee returned part of
the capital amounting to approximately US$19,150,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$149,368,000), net of the capital injection made during
the year of US$380,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,962,000). The
refund was directly deducted from the carrying value of the investment
cost. There is no change in the shareholding.

At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the investment is measured
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

22, fHHEKRE

HE-_FT—AF+-_A=+—H1E
FE O JHEERENBREEEAR
314,293,000 L (=& — M4 « &) -
EREBEANER  THRAEENET
ETRARENAFEERRFER
DEEPRERLA -

Mizt: Ze@E-HAREBRELHESEM
R ZFLEEE 21967% (=T —MN
F19.67%)IRIE - ZRLEBEBRE
BRBMEBRRER - AEEHEEA
BEHRSIERIREE  HREE R
NRBEBZEFTZEMEELN - ZK
ERAEER(TEETE]) - A&
EREEENEZLHEEE A4S
(ZZ — O : 9.80%) & 7N & & %
&4 %8 /521,000,000 7T (HER Y
163,800,000 7T.) °

HE-_Z—AF+=-A=+—8H1
FE HBRERAREREILNESELY
19,150,000 T & & (FBE R K
149,368,000 # 7t ) + B Mk F A K
380,000 2 7t ( #H & 7 472,962,000 7%
TL)EE  RRBEEMIREKANER
EEF B  FHRR R 2 E) -

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—BR=F
—E+=A=+—H0 AR’ FEZ
AEGEREEKN  REESRAREE
A EERTE - HUSE R AR
MEFE -

AHHEREBRETIIAEEE AR
ZREEB NG HE Z R

2015 2014
—Z—-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

US$ ET
HK$ BT

792,095
1,609,540

1,878,874
1,374,484
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised TRARNREHERAGFHREHEAD
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting RZEEZRLEHEER(BE)IURE
periods: Rz 2
Fair value
Accelerated change of Undistributed
tax Write-down  investment  Revaluation  profits of an
depreciation Taxlosses of inventories properties  of properties associate Total
RENE —-BHENT
MERBITE HHER FEME  ATEED WEERE  ZARIEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-MF—-A—A 37479 (12,522) (14,836) 414,604 91,721 - 516,446
Exchange adjustments AR (1,620) - - (1313 - - (2,933

(Crealt) charge to consolidated ~ (’FA) IR B AEELR
statement of profitorloss for A EER

the year (Note 11) (HfEE11) (1,353) - (298) 330,405 (3,057) 11,574 330,271
Utlised during the year FEREBA - - - - - (11,574) (11574)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-NF

+-A=+-A 34,506 (12,52 (15,134) 745,696 88,664 - 841,210
Exchange adjustments & X A (2,070) - - (43,535) - - (45,605)

(Credit) charge to consolidated (5T A\) IR AR EE SR
statementof profitorloss for £ B&EK

the year (Note 11) (PzE11) (1,054) - (559) - (3,057) 17,220 12,557
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FHERR
(Note 332 (Pi#£33a) 2,454 - - - - - 2,454
Utlised during the year TEEEHA - - - - - (8518 8,518
At 31 December 2015 WZE-1F
+=A=1-A 33,83 (12,522) (15,686) 702,161 85,607 8,702 802,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE
23. DEFERRED TAXATION (ontinueq) 23.

For the purposes of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

ELEBIE @)

ETELEHIEAER B ARBGRANS
HRE ST ARMIERIER - LT AR
5 AT A R 7 P 3R 0 P
Pt 7 -

2015 2014
—ZE—RF — T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T T

Deferred tax liabilities FER IR S (&
Deferred tax assets EIEFIBE E

-

805,518 846,072
(3,420) (4,862)

802,098

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$1,354,126,000 (2014: HK$1,013,098,000) due to the
unpredictability of the future profit streams. All tax losses in PRC
will be gradually expired within five years to 2021 (2014: 2020). The
remaining tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

FREERMETERE B -_FTT/N\F
—A—BE  SrRRTENHEAR
H AR 2 a8 A T 2K < BB U B 4
B ARARZPEMBARE —TEN
F—F— REREZ 2515 7RG 2 1R
B ERE - AREBN R ZRERIBRAR
BMBERRIELEE  RREASERE
2 MR Ay R 2 S BB RARRRS
ZRE AR TSR R R o

R-ZE—FAF+=-A=+—8 @BR
ERTERT A BCEF AR - AL BT
EERAELEEHEBECELHESR
EE491,354,126,0005 71 ( — T —PU4F :
1,013,098,0007 7T ) » & 2 & B & 1H
EEYRAFAEE T -—F(=-Z
—WF  ZETF)FIEEEm 0 m
R TR TEE 1S AT R HA A o

24. INVENTORIES 24. FE&
2015 2014
—Z2—-HF —ZT—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials B 1,290,954 1,665,326
Work in progress TR 467,443 566,761
Finished goods BIRK G 528,721 568,917

2,287,118 2,801,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 25, 5% REY%

Movements of properties held for development are as follows: FERMEZHNOT

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—UF—A/F—H 17,387,531
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A EE (87,001)
Additions N 4,857,708
Transfer to cost of sales RS HER AR (1,856,336)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 16) SRS EYE(MFE16) (1,203,256)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—MFE+=-_A=+—8H 19,148,646
Exchange adjustments P 3 2 (1,006,116)
Additions NE 4,220,324
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (Note 18) ER e EMEERE(ME18) 6,226
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 34) HE—XMB AR (KizE34) (92,218)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 16) EREEME(HE16) (109,729)
Transfer to cost of sales EREHERAR (2,938,763
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—FRF+_A=+—H 19,228,370

During the year ended 31 December 2015, properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,938,763,000 (2014
HK$1,856,336,000) were completed and sold to third parties. The
remaining balance as at 31 December 2015 was related to properties
that were still under development.

Properties held for development with carrying amount of
approximately HK$14,776,939,000 (2014: HK$15,147,770,000) are
expected to be realised after one year from the end of the reporting
period.

One of the Group’s properties project with a carrying amount of
HK$2,871,667,000 (2014: HK$2,762,998,000) has been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

In the opinion of the Directors, the properties held for development
were classified as current assets as the properties were held for
sale purpose after the completion of construction under the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

HE-_Z—AF+-RA=+—HIL#F
£ - BRME{E%92,938,763,000/& 7T (=&
—PU4F : 1,856,336,000870) 2 W 5%
REFE=ZF -RZTE—HE+ZA
ST -HHBTHESRETERYES
e

BRTE B 49 /5 14,776,939,000/8 T (=&
— P4 : 15,147,770,0008 7T ) 5 B B
PIETEH TR RS R R —F1&
#I5 o

AEBEHRER -—BEREME
2,871,667,000 B L2 MEHEEB (ZZ
—PO4E : 2,762,998,000/8 7T ) * LAKER
RITREE o

EER/HERMEDBR/RDEE
THRREAKENERLERY B8
ZEMENEN RN TRRTRLE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HBiEEE

(@) Trade and other receivables and prepayments
and entrusted loans

(a)

BEZRAEMEBERERERRE
NRERERER

Trade receivables 2 2 MR TR
Advance to suppliers TEFHE FER IR
Entrusted loans (Note i) EHEE R (M)
Prepayment and deposits TENFIERIES
Value added tax (“VAT”) recoverables AREISER ([EER])
LAT on pre-sale properties (Note ii) TEEWR 2 LHILER
(B &)
Other receivables H At FEUBR TR
Less: Non-current portion of entrusted B ERERIERE D
loans (Note i) (B
Notes:
(i) The entrusted loans of HK$1,268,714,000 (2014:

HK$1,523,916,000) are due from certain purchasers of properties
developed by the Group in the PRC through four (2014: four)
commercial banks in the PRC (the “Lending Agents”). The
entrusted loans carry interest at variable rates ranging from
4.920% to 6.900% (2014: 5.219% to 7.205%) per annum payable
on monthly basis and the principal will be payable on or before
2034 (2014: 2034). The purchasers of the Group’s properties
has pledged to the Lending Agents the respective properties
purchased. These properties are located in Kunshan, PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, entrusted loans amounting to
HK$1,193,072,000 (2014: HK$1,442,509,000) are in respect of
repayments due after 12 months from the end of the reporting
period and are classified as non-current assets.

(ii) The amount represents the provisional LAT prepaid to PRC
tax authority based on the latest completion status. The final
assessment will be carried out upon sales of properties at the
completion of development projects.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
5,705,197 5,824,256
810,399 918,567
1,268,714 1,623,916
803,334 794,622
265,093 614,930
72,847 106,849
116,622 478,558
9,042,206 10,261,698
(1,193,072) (1,442,509)
7,849,134 8,819,189

]

FEBRFBEOR(ZFT—MN
FOR) BMERT(IK
BEREA) BEETFAE
SEMERMENHNER
1,268,714,000/% 7T (=2 — N
F 1 1,523,916,00087T) 2 &
FEER - ZRERZZEHF
BIEN F4.920 2 £6.900 E
ZT—WF : NF5219E
ET7205F) ZFFEEE -
BEABR REBERZT
—OFE(ZT—WmF: =%
=F)HARAR - AEE
MEBREHBMSBEEME
BEHRFEHREA - ZEW
EMRFEEL -

R=ZZ—RF+=—A=1+—
A RS HBEERERT
+TZEARIBERZER
B501,193,072,000 (=&
—PU4F : 1,442,509,0007% 7T )
DRERIERBEE °

ZEBERBERMNERTER
) A B A S i B TR 2 B A
TiEER - ZKFRBET
BFRIEART HEWMER
JTHETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments
and entrusted loans (continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days, depending
on the products sold, to its trade customers. The following is
an aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
at the end of the reporting period which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates:

'.......... .’

HMEEE

(a)

B2 REMERERR &?E

NRERERENR(E
ZK;‘%I%@%%%%JEZE%EE
MK A1208 - SFAHEEN
Euuﬁﬁﬂi EAiﬁiHﬁFﬁ# ”\“'
(B ARER BHIRS) - %%JE
IR 2 BRERE N B E B HA DT
W

0 -90 days 0&90H

91 - 120 days 91&120H
121 - 150 days 121£E150H
151 - 180 days 151£180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

4,219,523 4,306,769
800,629 780,675
414,983 458,869
176,839 186,049

93,223 91,894

5,705,197 5,824,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors have delegated
the management to be responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 85% (2014: 87%) of the trade receivables, that are
neither past due nor impaired, have the best credit scoring
attributable under the credit grading system used by the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$850,372,000 (2014:
HK$765,370,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the
Group considers that these debtors are financially stable and
the management has taken action to recover the outstanding
balances. The Directors are confident that these amounts are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is 132
days (2014: 135 days).

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired at the reporting date:

HMEEE

(@ EZRHEMEWRERR &ﬁ

NRERERER(E
E%m&ﬁﬁgﬁm $%lm
BEAFANESTHBERR
ZE%Eﬁ-Eiaﬁmaﬁg
BEATNEFPETEERBER
EEHE - @ﬁZ@%&ﬂﬁi
FERH - H85% (=T — U4 ¢
m@ZE%%W% K 4 36 A o)
WA - WEAEBEMRFEAZEA
FHHEZ &ZHERATED

AEEESRERUERBEER

ERREWER  AE@EA
850,372,000/ 7T ( —Z—PU4F :
765,370,000 70 ) © RIkEH

Bacme $%liﬁ%&i
FIEEHREBERE  REA
AEERA  ZEEBATRIE
2 BEBECEIUKERES
HEHRMITE) - EEAEE  HEX
BRI ANE - AEEFRZE
BB ESEEMETRR - %
FREWRR 2 TR 5132
(ZZ—M4F : 135H) °

RBER  BAREEREZES
FEMZEE K BREDHITIAT

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E PO
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Overdue: AER -

0 - 30 days 0£30H
31 - 60 days 31&260H
61 - 90 days 61£90H

Over 90 days Q0B E

242,667 221,335
344,376 294,704
170,106 157,437

93,223 91,894

850,372 765,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

The Group has fully provided for all receivables that are
overdue over 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables between 120 and 240 days
are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end of
the reporting period. The Directors considered that the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The following is @ movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts:

/80

'.......... .’

HMEEE

(@ EZRHEMEWRERR &?E

FRERERER(E

hfﬂ&%’i%ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ%OE L/U:Z
JE U BR 3R — AR SR IR - AR
SEEHZERBERREEUEL &
% o BREEN F120F 2408 2 &
PERWAR Z Bt - Th2EfhEt
T El SR -

HEETEE 5 R 2 AT 4 E 1
B BEFIRLEEEERS
SRR AEEERES
FEUPARREME R 2 EAES -

EEZRR - ARELESAES
EERR - RRBZERS7T K
BEP O -

RIBFREFHZEFHMT

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E PO
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Balance at beginning of the year FAHER

772,293 758,650
(126,422) (1,131)

44,052 14,774

Written off as uncollectible MR E 2 5RIA

Impairment losses recognised EREWERR 2B EEBE
on receivables

Balance at end of the year FREER

689,923

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired debtors with an aggregate balance of
HK$689,923,000 (2014: HK$772,293,000) which have been
placed either under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RIBREESFEERNDREZE
IR FK ,ﬁ@ 4 #4 /689,923,000
BT (ZZE—M4F : 772,293,000
/%TE) uA—r?B’KIE)%/EJ ﬁ&}ﬁi
BTSN EIE T 2 5008 - NEERE
ZEBAT B EAEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

(b)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments
and entrusted loans (continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

26. HttBMKEE

(a)

ESRHMEWRRR KA
NRERZRER (@)

g5 MEMREIRFTEIE T
SEERAMNEERIAINERE
FHEZ KA -

Uss$ =T
HK$ BT
Euro BT

Bills receivables
Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2014
90 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Included in bills receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

(b)

2015 2014
—Z2—-1F —ZE—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET

T

1,078,909
737,304
41,877

1,319,009
855,488
36,802

W EE
REEERERRRS AREH
RIS RBH0R (ZZ— M4 -
90H)ZIA °

JEWREBIE T IILASEE 48
eS8 AINEETEZ R
=

US$ e
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2015 2014
—E-AF —E—E
HK$’°000 HK$’000
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290,467 181,177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(c)

Bank balances and cash and fixed deposits

Bank balances and cash, except for the below mentioned
pledged bank deposits, comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. At 31 December 2015, the bank balances
and deposits carry interest at the prevailing market interest
rate which range from 0.01% to 3.8% (2014: 0.01% to 3.6%)
per annum. Fixed deposits carry fixed-rate interest ranging
from 2.05% to 3.8% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, included in bank balances and cash
were pledged bank deposits of HK$126,764,000 (2015: nil)
which were pledged to banks to secure short-term banking
facilities of the Group.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances and
cash that were either not freely convertible or subject to
exchange controls in the PRC, amounting to approximately
HK$3,187,942,000 (2014: HK$3,027,093,000).

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

'.......... .’

26. HMWEBIBEE»

(c)

ROTERRBEEREHE
EN

BTl B BRI RSN - $RYT
EHREASEEAEERBFZE
SRR EA=EASUTZ
RERITER - RZE—RF
+ZA=Z+—8  RIERETF
FIRIBITHISFEFENF0.01E
Z3.8E(=Z—MF : NF0.01
[EZE36E)ME - EHEFHR2E
FEBNT2.05EEILE -

RZZE—NFE+=—A=+—H0"
BITHEBRASPEDEIRR
T1F 126,764,000 T (- =
—RF | ZECEMRRT
BRIDIARITER - (EALEE
FEERITRE MRS o

W_E—hRE+-_A=1+—8 "
NEBTAEHLBRSATHEH
SNEE & HIFTARIR 2 R1T 4585 3R
£ #)53,187,942,000 7L ( =&
—PU4F : 3,027,093,000/87T) °

RITEBRRSBRE TIIASE
EREER 2 ThRE B AONE S
B2 REE

Us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Euro BT

2015 2014
—ZT-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000

F7

TAETT

422,231
1,076,604
7,176

590,274
730,243
9,337

/80

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 =& —RFF W @



g.fg*wgﬁ 5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 27.

BILLS PAYABLES

2

A BRI

BEK
BAR

W

2015
—F-AF
HK$°000
TR

2,406,369
621,703

794,413
428,063
200,231
221,546
1,255,292

Trade payables B Z RN

Accrued expenses TR E A

Payables for acquisition of properties, BEWE  BEMEEN
plant and equipment FERIFRIR

Receipt in advance TEUGRIA

Other tax payables HhENFRIE

VAT payables FERT IS ERT

Other payables (Note) Hopth FET AR (BT

Bills payables IEANE

5,927,617
409,762

6,337,379

Note:  Included in other payables as at 31 December 2015 was the advance from
an associate of approximately HK$1,172,532,000 which is interest-free,

unsecured and repayable on demand.

Included in other payables as at 31 December 2014 was the consideration
payable of HK$8,559,000 to an independent third party for additional
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary. The amount was repaid in

2015.

The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2014
—Z—F
HK$’'000
FAT

2,771,886
539,131

705,664
384,921
163,059
184,065

98,520

4,847,246
771,361

5,618,607

faE: RZZE—RAF+-A=+—HMEHE
fhENRIBERIEREE LA RL
1,172,582,0008 LRI R+ ZE R
BTG E - BRI R AN EREEE -

HE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—0 " Hit
ENRERRBRER—MERERENBA
RIZRIMER RN B L E= 2 RE
8,559,000/ 7 ° M EER =T —H

FEK

REHRAERRBLE - EREZAHN
B HEMNRK RO

2015
-
HK$’000
TR

0 -90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

0£90H
91%F180H
180H A k=

1,888,329
358,478
159,562

2,406,369

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2014
—F—F
HK$’000
FAT

2,195,122
403,578
173,186

2,771,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

PR aR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

27.

28.

'.......... .’

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 27. B RHMENERRK
BILLS PAYABLES (continued) @1#%%(%)
All bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2014: 90 REB A RNERREY AHRE M
days) at the end of the reporting period. HEREWIOHE(ZT—MF : 90R) 2
A o
Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the B L EMEMBERLENZESET
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional S AEE T L 2 HHRATH e B AN E B
currency of the group entities to which they relate: FHMEZ SRR
2015 2014
—E-1F —F-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THT
us$ = 608,041 590,961
HK$ BT 348,043 404,578
Euro = 34 2,807
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. {TTEEmIT A

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against part of the
Group’s exposure in foreign currency fluctuations. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, these forward contracts were matured
and the Group recognised the fair value loss of HK$453,000.

The major items of the outstanding contracts at 31 December 2014
were as follows:

HE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HIHF
[ REEFTZHMNERMA KA F
AEEPINE BB AZ I D ER -
BHE-_ZT—FAE+-_A=+—HItHE
E - WERPANEEE  AEERER
453,000/ 7T A FERESIE °

W=Z—mE+=A=+—AHKATA
MANTERAWT

Notional amount

EEEZE

Maturity
B

Forward contract rates

BHENER

Buy JPY75,000,000 6 February 2015

& A75,000,000H &l —E-RFZAXA
Buy JPY43,000,000 9 February 2015

& A43,000,000H &l —E-RFZANA
Buy JPY65,500,000 10 February 2015

& A65,500,000H &l —E-RF=-A+H
Buy JPY481,855,000 10 July 2015

& A481,855,000H &l —E-RFtA+H

The above foreign exchange forward contracts were measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period by reference to the forward
foreign exchange rates and the contracted forward rates.

No foreign currency forward contract was outstanding at 31
December 2015.

HK$1 to JPY13.18
1787T4,13.18H [
HK$1 to JPY13.18
17%87T4,13.188 [
HK$1 to JPY13.18
17%87T4,13.188 [E
HK$1 to JPY13.37
17875 54,13.37H

MSNER A ORI R
SERMINEEF R EMEFEA
AR E -

RIB-—HF+-A=+—HAERE
HZINERHIAK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS

29. IRITEE

2015 2014
—E-EF ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank loans IRITER 20,263,562 21,414,662
Trust receipt loans SR E R 447,109 640,340
20,710,671 22,055,002
Secured HIER 1,717,200 1,742,674
Unsecured IR 18,993,471 20,312,328
20,710,671 22,055,002
Carrying amounts repayable*: JABEZARMEE"
Within one year R—FR 5,464,179 8,840,530
More than one year but not more than two years ~ —4ELA 1B THBBME 4,583,468 8,335,564
More than two years but not more than three LA BB BB =F
years 4,685,544 3,496,662
More than three years but not more than five ZFUEETBBRTF
years 5,558,427 922,074
More than five years HBAmA T 419,053 460,172
20,710,671 22,055,002
Within one year R—FR 5,464,179 8,840,530
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that are not 7B TR BRI 45 R & B e5t
repayable within one year from the end of the —FREZEFERENK
reporting period but contain a repayment on BRIEFGIAREEE)
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) ZRITEEREE 777,200 963,368
Amounts due within one year shown under YRmE B E BN —FA
current liabilities EiE I 6,241,379 9,803,898
Add: Amounts shown under non-current m:3ERBaEsHE
liabilities 14,469,292 12,251,104
20,710,671 22,055,002
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * JERT @ FIRE R E AR EE B BRI

loan agreements.

H oo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
29. BAN K BORROWI NGS (continued) 29.

Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed-rate borrowings
of HK$13,369,000 (2014: HK$521,252,000) at 31 December 2015
which are repayable within five years from the end of the reporting
period.

The rest of the bank borrowings are all variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest ranging from HIBOR + 1.60% to LIROR + 2.42% (2014
HIBOR + 1.1% to HIBOR + 2.5%) per annum.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain bank loans and trust receipt
loans of the Group are covered by corporate guarantees given by
Kingboard Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as

<> o' "
'.......... .

BITEE W

M-ZZE—RE+-A=+—08 LR
ITIEEREARNRE SHRARE Bist
AFREEZ T ERITHEE13,369,000
BT (—ZT—PO04F 1521,252,000/87T) °

BTIRITEERATZEMEE  FEENT
IBITRAEREIM 0EEMBUERTTRE
FEM2.42B (=T —M4E : RITRZE
P2 AERRITRZEN B IN2.5E )T

E-

RZE-—RAFR=ZT—NF+ZA
=t+—8B AEEETRIERRER
WEEFEASEE —R2EHEMNEA
AIEBINEARARIRHARIER -

AEBRITEEZEREMNE(EERD
IR )BEWT

follows:
2015
Effective interest rates BERF|=
6.00% 5.60%
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 6.00E 5.60/2
SWCEZR IR 1.30% to 2.70%
Variable-rate borrowings FEREE ANCIEEP XK 1.30E 2,702

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

RITEERBETIASEERE 2B
BEEBIINERHEZ 5

2015 2014
—E-HF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FATT

Us$ T
HK$ BT

3,188,289 1,597,714
17,509,013 19,936,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Authorised Issued and fully paid
HE ERTRARE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
€] kx| ROEE Kz}
HK$'000 HK$’000
THT FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: G AR0.10/8 TTH L A% -
At 1 January 2014, RZT—mF—F—H "
31 December 2014 and E-ME+ZA=+—HE
31 December 2015 “E-RE+=-R=1t—H 2,000,000,000 200,000  1,025,600,236 102,560

There is no change in the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital in both years.

31. SHARE OPTIONS 31.

(@ Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2009.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &t TEEER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

31 . SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to the Eligible Participants (as defined below) for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of the Group.

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of ten years with
a remaining life of approximately 36 months as at the date of
this report, the Directors may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to eligible participants
(“Eligible Participants”) who contribute to the long term growth
and profitability of the Company. Eligible Participants include (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interests (“Invested Entity”), including any executive
director of the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (i) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (vi) any person or
entity who from time to time determined by the Board as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group based on his or its performance and/or
years of service, or is regarded as valuable resources of the
Group based on his/its working experience, knowledge in the
industry and other relevant factors. The subscription price for
the Company’s shares shall be a price at least equal to the
highest of the nominal value of the Company’s shares, the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of an offer of the grant of the options and
the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the
Stock Exchange on the date of an offer of the grant of the
options. The options must be taken up within 28 business
days from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee, which period may commence from
the date of acceptance of the offer of the grant of the options
but shall end in any event not later than ten years from the
date of adoption of the Scheme.

31. BEERE:

(@

AARREEELERE
@)

ZETEIMERAL B VR B S R
BEER2EE(ERL TON
R SBEERSAEENF

N3
Z5 o
g

REBEERHRRTF(RARSA
HiE - SR TR R36MEA) 2
Zatdl - ARREEE T HIER
HARAREERRBENELE
BrzaBEms2as((AER2HE
EDRLBEBERE  AREAXR
RAERRLD - BEBZEEB()
ARRE] - EEARBARSAE
BB A TAREZ EMNER(Z
REER ) ZE2BIGRBE
8 BRARE - EHAZEHE
RAHAEMZIRE TR 2 (ETH
TESE: (i)ARE - HHEAT
KEMZRERRTMIFNTE
= BREUIFITES (i)
SEERKE R R HEFMZIRE
B EE RS IREHER
(WAEBEREARKREER
EAEP  (WVAREEARER
AlSEM X E T 2 AR
SAKEE AR B AR HZIRE
ERZEMNSHTESHAA
RVIEFETHERARRR,/
KRS F MR A B LKA S
AEEERMEREHER - %
HERRATHEER - A& RE
AR EMEERAREEE
BRZERMALHER - ARF]
iy 2 REBEAREDRENA
REEMEE - RRRBRONE
BEEHORNESLBIER SN D
1832 5 B 7O 32 P A 1 4
EBERADBBROREBORLESE
BB B B B 2 P AT A T B
ZEEE o BEBREANRH
BHjc8EE X A ER - #H
RAXNIET  EERBIRER
REZBEALBAE AR A ZH
BT - ZEE AT REAELD
ROEEEREZ B RS
A ZANER % AT IR A B HIAE
AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

31 . SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group (excluding
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 84,473,904 shares,
which represents approximately 8.2% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The limit
on the number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme or other schemes of the Group in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant
unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting.

In respect of the share options outstanding at the end of the
reporting period, the weighted average exercise price per
share is HK$22.71 (2014: HK$33.92).

As at 31 December 2015, if all the exercisable share options
under the Scheme were converted, 37,552,000 (2014:
27,552,000) shares will be issued, representing approximately
3.66% (2014: 2.69%) of the issued share capital of the
Company.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

31. BrERE:

(@

ARREEELBRES
B

KRR REFTAREZA B R
o] 75 52 B HL 4t 51 B0 9% 1 A9 B A%
R ER IR Z T B KA A
5 B H At 5 28I 6 3R T 2K e B
BRHE ) AT (BB AT B TR IR (D 48
- TMEEBBAR R RMZET
ZEARBEITRHI0% o BRI
ZET BRI BTG BE A
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A3RE BB BITIRANBERL
8.2% - ARIEZTERAEE
AR BT A E R M RTT
1 RBHFTE 2B BT
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B&1730%  REL = H B HRLE(TE
A+ =18 A HER - AIRIEZRT 2
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KM ARITE 2 B IR AE) 1T
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HHEE BTN 1% @ BRIEER
NS S N A

Al -

PR HAR AR E B MR
BB RENIETITEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

31. SHARE OPTIONS (ontinueq

(@

W

'.......... .'

31. BEERE:

Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ AEAFEEELERES
Company (continued) £-[6))
A summary of the movements of the number of share options FER - ZEEIE N 2B ERRRE
under the Scheme for the year is as follows: SEYE AT
Balance at Transfer Lapse of Balance at Granted Balance at Exercise
1 January during share 31 December during 31 December price
Date of grant 2014 the year options 2014 the year 2015 per share  Exercisable period
HN-5-nF HN-E-DF H-2-1f
-B-A MER  BRERE ToAZT-H tZA=t-R
RtAH fih B4 XN MEs  REARE Mgk BROBE  GEH
(Note (Note i
(FHi3ki) (Fizkii)
Under the Scheme
Zitdl
Granted to Directors on:
KFEE:
21 March 2011 18,960,000 2,928,000 (3,1200000 18,768,000 - 18,768,000 HK$3392 21 March 2011 to
BPET 22 March 2019 (Note )
ZT——FZAz+-f Z5—FZAz+-BE
“EI-NEZACtCR
(HiaH)
19 March 2015 - - - - 27,000,000 27,000,000 HK$12424 19 March 201510
1242450 22March 2019 Note )
ZE-REZAThA “F-RECATARE
“E-NEZAzTCA
(W)
Granted to employess on;
KTES:
21 March 2011 14,640,000 2,926,000 (2,928,000) 8,784,000 - 8,784,000 HK$3392 21 March 20110
BRETL 22 March 2019 (Note |
“F——FZf=+-f “B——F-f-t-RZ
“E-NEZAzTCA
(M)
19 March 2015 - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000 HKS12.424 19 March 20150
12404370 22 March 2019 (Note i)
“E-REZAThA “E-REZATARE
1 s
(W)
33,600,000 - (6,048,000 27,552,000 30,000,000 57,552,000
Exercisable at
RATBERFIR
1 January 2014
“3-PE-f-A 25,200,000
31 December 2014
SE-RETSAZT-R 25000
31 December 2015
“ECRETOAZT-R 975000

/86
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

31 . SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

U

(i

)

The share options under the Scheme were granted on 21 March
2011 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$33.92 per share. 25%
of the total share options vested immediately on the date of grant.
The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and vested on
21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The total estimated fair value at
the date of grant of the share options was HK$279,054,000.

One employee, Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, was appointed as a
director of the Company in 2014.

One Director and one employee resigned in 2014 and their
aggregate share options of 6,048,000 with a total estimated fair
value at date of grant of HK$50,230,000 were lapsed upon their
resignation.

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the share
options on 19 March 2015 was HK$86,809,000. 33% of the
total share options granted vested immediately on the date of
grant, 19 March 2015. 33% of the total number of share options
were vested on 19 March 2016 and remaining 34% were vested
on 19 March 2017. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was HK$12.34.

The fair value of the share options under the Scheme was

calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

31. BEBRE
(@ AEATEEELERES

€]
GEE

0

)

ZETEIE T EEBRER =
EZ——FZA=-+—8BK
o R EITEE /23392
BT o BREREREY
25% I H B HRBI S R B o
BT75% D B=H 5
R —FE—=F  ZF—=
FR-ZFE-—NF=A=+—
HEE - BLBERENEE
BHMEA AT EEEA
279,054,000/ 7T °

—HEB(RFMELEIN=F
—EERERERAES -

—REENL—HEEENR=Z
—FERNBER - BEZEH
6,048,000 B 5 B AR AE (A&
FEHNEAATFELES
50,230,000/ 7T ) B A B i 12
KA o

BABRER-_ZT—HF=
A+ BRAEL B B&MEE
A F & # % A 86,809,000
B OREELERER
B E33% 0 BB R B
H(ZZ—HE=A+A1A)
5B 3BURN T —REF=
A+hBEE - T 234%
RZZ—+tE=A+NBH
B BEEDAMSA - AR
AR 1 B9 W T B R 12.34 %

IC °©

ZAtEIA TR BB AT
ERAIEEAEAE - 2R
AWBABENT

19 March 2015

—E—hE

=A+7H
Weighted average share price IEFEPEE HKS$12.403% 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$12.4247 7T
Expected volatility FEHRR IE 35.698%
Expected life T8 BRE U 4.011 years4F
Risk-free rate 4m [ g R =R 1.058
Expected dividend yield FEHRNG B X 3.147%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

31

(@

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the expected
option period. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$62,764,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$5,268,000) in
relation to the share options granted by the Company under
the Scheme.

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

The 2008 Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
(“EEIC”) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “2008 EEIC
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of EEIC at the
extraordinary general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May 2008 upon
approval by the shareholders of the Company. The purpose
of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants of the 2008 EEIC Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of EEIC and its subsidiaries.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be administered by
the committee of directors of EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s
directors, is open to full-time employees and directors of any
company within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to certain
conditions being satisfied.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
either at an “Exercise Price”, which equals to the average
of the last dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of five
consecutive market days immediately preceding the relevant
date of grant, or at a discount to the Exercise Price as defined
earlier, whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the
Exercise Price.

. o' la
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

31 . SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

Options granted at the Exercise Price or at a discount to the
Exercise Price may be exercisable after the first or second
anniversary respectively of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is ten years with a
remaining life of approximately 26 months as at the date of
this report. The total number of shares in EEIC that may be
issued shall not exceed 17,963,506 shares (which represents
10% of the total number of EEIC shares in issue as at the
adoption date or 10% of the total numbers of shares in issue
of EEIC as at the respective dates of EEIC annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2015). Subject to certain
conditions being satisfied, the 2008 EEIC Scheme’s limit
may be increased to 15% of the total issued shares of EEIC
excluding treasury shares from time to time. The total number
of shares available for issue under the 2008 EEIC Scheme is
17,963,506 shares, which represents approximately 9.6%
of the total issued share capital of EEIC as at the date of
this report. The total number of EEIC shares issued and to
be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of EEIC shares in issue from time to time.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by payment of S$1.00
(or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants,
but the grant of share options do not confer rights on the
option holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.

There were no share options granted under the 2008 EEIC
Scheme since its adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

31

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007 respectively. The KLHL Scheme has taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange on 6 July 2007. The purpose of the KLHL Scheme
is to provide incentive or rewards to the eligible participants
of the KLHL Scheme for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of the KLHL Group (as defined
below).

The KLHL Scheme is valid for a period of ten years with
remaining life of approximately 14 months as at the date of
this report. The directors of KLHL may, at its discretion, grant
options to subscribe for shares in KLHL to eligible participants
who contribute to the long-term growth and profitability of
KLHL and include (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full-time or part-time and including any executive
director), consultants or advisers of or to KLHL, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL'’s Invested Entity”) in which
KLHL and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“KLHL Group”) hold an equity interest; (i) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
(iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s
Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL'’s Invested Entity.
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SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

31

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect of any
option granted under the KLHL Scheme must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (jii) the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon
the payment of a consideration of HK$1. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date upon which the
offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The directors of KLHL may, at their absolute discretion, fix
any minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the KLHL
Scheme and any other share option scheme of KLHL
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of KLHL in issue as at the date
of approval of the KLHL Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the KLHL Scheme is 300,000,000
shares, which represents approximately 10.0% of the total
issued share capital of KLHL as at the date of this report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

31 . SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
Company in general meetings.

As at 31 December 2015, if all the exercisable share options
under the KLHL Scheme were converted, 81,000,000 (2014
81,000,000) shares will be issued, representing approximately
2.7% (2014: 2.7%) of the issued share capital of KLHL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31. @%Eﬁﬂﬁg(%)
(c) Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL (c) BEEENREEELXER
(continued) EErE(s®)
A summary of the movements of the number of share options FR - EEERBIRELERET
under the KLHL Scheme for the year is as follows: EIE TN EBEEBRESE E
ZT
Balanceat  Exercise
Balance at Lapse of Granted 31 December price
Date of grant 1 January 2014 share options  duringtheyear ~ 2014and 2015  pershare  Exercisable period
R=Z-m%
R=B-mE R-E-1F
-A-H BrERE t-A=1-H R
REAH i ¥ RERRH ik e  TER
(Note i
(P i)
Granted to directors of KLHL
RTZEEENEZ
21 March 2011 54,000,000 - - 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
6.54%TT 17 May 2017 (Note )
“E——%ZA-1-H “Z——F=ZfA-+-R%
ZE-tERATAKE)
Granted to employees
RTEZ
21 March 2011 46,000,000 (19,000,000) - 27,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
B54ETL 17 May 2017 (Note i)
“E——fZf-1+-H “T——F-A-+-HE
ZE—tERATA )
100,000,000 (19,000,000) - 81,000,000
Exercisable at
RIAT RS T1fE
1 January 2014
“Z-E-A-H 75,000,000
31 December 2014
2 e = 81,000,000
31 December 2015
B 2 e el 81,000,000
Notes: BisE -
0] 25% of the total share options vested immediately at the date of [0) BB RTE 2 25% N R B ERRN SR8 - £2

grant. The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and
vested on 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014.

(ii) Two employees resigned during the year ended 31 December (i)
2014, therefore, their aggregate share options of 19,000,000 with
a total estimated fair value at date of grant of HK$21,840,000

were lapsed upon their resignation.

KLHL recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$2,130,000 (2015: nil) for the year ended 31 December 2014
in relation to share options granted by KLHL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32. R EER

Share
Share of options
net assets of reserve of
subsidiaries  a subsidiary Total
— BB AT
BB AT ZEB%
EEFE BRERE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—mE—HF—H 6,588,901 112,815 6,701,716
Share of net changes arising from JEER I EREEENE
available-for-sale investments (Note) g FE (M) (15,412) - (15,412)
Share of exchange differences arising JEMREITE MG EMES
from translation of foreign operations ZEHERR (226) - (226)
Share of exchange differences arising ~ E(RETE 2 HEE MESE
from translation to presentation ZIERZERE
currency (38,689) - (38,689)
Share of profit for the year JEMRAFE G 284,206 - 284,206
Recognition of equity-settled R AR LR AT 3
share-based payments I - 2,130 2,130
Lapse of share options B 21,840 (21,840) -
Acquisition of additional interests UK BE BB N B BB ME =
in subsidiaries (85,137) - (85,137)
Capital contribution from non-controlling Bff/& A &) 2 JE1EE
shareholders of subsidiaries PR &8 19,900 - 19,900
Dividends paid to non-controlling TRFHBE AR Z
shareholders of subsidiaries FEIERRAR R 2 IR 8 (571,606) - (571,606)
At 31 December 2014 NZZT—E
+=-—A=+—H 6,203,777 93,105 6,296,882
Share of net changes arising from JEAE R EREE AR
available-for-sale investments (Note) FahFE (M) (2,666) - (2,666)
Share of exchange differences arising  fE{EEITE MBS
from translation of foreign operations MEEZER =5 (1,475) - (1,475)
Share of exchange differences arising ~ JE{HRITE 2 HEH
from translation to presentation MEEZERZRE
currency (338,167) - (838,167)
Share of profit for the year JEAG AN FFZ 5 F 302,772 - 302,772
Acquisitions of additional interests in U BE B B8~ B REAME S
subsidiaries (158,631) - (158,631)
Disposal of partial interests in a HEHBAR RN MmER
subsidiary 8,603 - 8,603
Capital contribution from non-controlling Ff/E A &) 2 FEFE I A% R
shareholders of subsidiaries &R 42,400 - 42,400
Dividends paid to non-controlling S FHIB AT Z FEE
shareholders of subsidiaries AR B 2 A% B (136,698) - (136,698)
Revaluation of properties transferred to  #E2 =R B E Y2
investment properties 2B 81,539 - 81,539
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—hF
+=-—A=+—H 6,001,454 93,105 6,094,559
Note:  Share of net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist Mzt REhAHEEREELENEHTER

of gain on fair value changes amounting to HK$9,640,000 (2014: loss of A A & B) W 259,640,000 7T (—
HK$11,635,000), gain on disposal amounting to HK$15,989,000 (2014: T — P04 ¢ 11,635,000/8 TEIE)
HK$3,777,000) and impairment loss amounting to HK$3,683,000 (2014: i & T 15 Uk %5 15,989,0008 T (= F
nil). —P 4 : 3,777,000 0) REEEIE
3,683,000/ 7L(ZF—M4F : £) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

33. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. I B Y 2 |

The below acquisitions was determined by the Directors to be EEBTYINEETARBNEHREA

acquisitions of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries FIMEBEERERE  MIEEBKEH -

rather than a business combination as the assets acquired and ThERPTER B E L FrAE 2 B ET
liabilities assumed did not constitute a business as defined under TREXE S GREENEIR (KL

HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business Combinations”. EDEBE U TEEMELRS -

(@) In July 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests (@) R-_ZEE—RHFLAH - AEH
together with shareholder’s loan in Ao Sheng Limited, Baiyu f—REB LR ANBEESRE
Property (Overseas) Holding Limited and Bumper Champ 49 352,366,000 /& 7T U & Ao
Limited, the companies are principally engaged in holding Sheng Limited * Baiyu Property
commercial properties in Hong Kong for rental purpose, from (Overseas) Holding Limited }
a related company at a cash consideration of approximately Bumper Champ Limited#J100%
HK$352,366,000. BIEERERER - ZE QAN

FEEBRNEEHBEEYE
EH AR -
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred: EEEAE
Cash paid BENRE 352,366
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised REERHNEWEEEREHERE
at the date of acquisition: & :
Investment properties LA 355,843
Bank balances and cash RITER LIRS 876
Other payables HAFETERIR (1,899)
Deferred tax liability EEFRIEEE (2,454)
Shareholder’s loan RERER (147,766)
204,600
Assignment of shareholder’s loan to the Group AERFAEEHBRIER 147,766
352,366
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BB RAmRLEzRe RIRE
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: ZEY -
Cash consideration paid BENREENE (352,366)
Bank balances and cash acquired B RITESR RS 876
(851,490)

e KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 20156 B2 —Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
33. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. WEEHMIB AR
(continued)
(b) In July 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests (b) RZZE—RFLRH KNEHDR
together with shareholder loan in Million Victory International & RIE#)272,854,0007% T M i
Investment Limited, the company is principally engaged B BRI EBRAFIH100%
in holding a property in PRC, at a cash consideration of PRREERIPR R E K © sZ AR E
approximately HK$272,854,000. BEBLENTRBEFEME -
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred: BERAE
Cash paid BfRE 272,854
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised U BB E W B E K&
at the date of acquisition: EHERAE :
Properties, plant and equipment W - BB REE 277,908
Other receivables H Ath fE AR R 3,420
Bank balances and cash RITABREIRE® 1,118
Other payables E A fETER R (9,592)
Shareholder’s loan REER (15,574)
257,280
Assighment of shareholder’s loan to the Group AR TARERFRRER 15,574
272,854
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BB R R ML 2R E R
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: ReEEY
Cash consideration paid BERERE (272,854)
Bank balances and cash acquired B RITEBERES 1,118
(271,736)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In July 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in a
company, principally engaged in property development in PRC, to
an independent third party for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$126,594,000. The net assets at the date of disposal were as
follows:

34. HEKBQT

RZE—RFEAH AEEBESNRE
#9126,594,00078 7T tH & — R P B £
BEBABYERENRRNZHRET
—BBUE= - RNEEBE - BEF
[ER U

HK$'000
AT
Consideration received: BURME -
Cash received 2R e 126,594
Analysis of assets and liabilities over BAEKEHENEERAE
which control was lost: BT
Properties, plant and equipment Y - BB R 329
Properties held for development HERME 92,218
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M ERERFR 639
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1
Trade and other payables B R EMERIRR (193)
Shareholder’s loan RERER (87,338)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 5,666
Assignment of shareholder’s loan DEAERE R 87,338
93,004
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—fEB AR Z KRS
Consideration received BURIE 126,594
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (93,004)
Gain on disposal & Fris e 33,590
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: MEEEZRESRAFRE
Cash consideration received BUERERE 126,594
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHERERBREEEY (11)
126,583

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS  35. B4 Hi&E

2015 2014
—ET-EHF —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not M EFTOERREG A T RRE
provided in the consolidated financial EHBHEZ EALE
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of properties, plant and —EBEYE - BB NEE
equipment 418,351
— capital injection in an unlisted investment —JLEMREZTERE 6,308
424,659
Other expenditure contracted for but not FEETAVERERE B SR
provided in the consolidated financial EH B E 2 T -
statements in respect of:
- acquisition and other expenditures relating —BAFEEDES
to properties held for development L R Bt 37 2,987,531 1,686,944
3,085,152 2,111,603

36. AEE

RZF-—AF+ZA=+—

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately (@)

HK$3,376,048,000 (2014: HK$2,362,539,000) as at 31
December 2015 to facilitate mortgage bank loans applications
of purchasers of the properties that were developed by the
Group.

The guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans
procured by the purchasers of properties that were developed
by the Group. Such guarantees will be released by banks
upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and
completion of registration of the relevant mortgage properties.
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, hence no value has been recognised at the
inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of the
reporting period as at 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Respondents”) were
named as a defendant in the Supreme Court of Bermuda in
respect of an allegation of the affairs of KBCF had been and
or were being conducted in a manner which was oppressive
or unfairly prejudicial to the minority shareholders of KBCF.
The petitioner was seeking an order to the Respondents to
repurchase all of the KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the
price to be fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda.
The trial of the petition took place in September 2015. The
Supreme Court of Bermuda handed down its judgement on
10 November 2015. The Supreme Court of Bermuda found
that the allegation, that the terms of the previous interested
person transactions purchases constituted preferential
transfer pricing which was prejudicial to minority shareholders,
were not proved and the allegation, that the terms of the
license agreement were wholly uncommercial and the licencee
was a sham, were also not proved. However, the Supreme
Court of Bermuda also ruled that the KBCF’s management
should promptly initiate bona fide open negotiations in which
commercially reasonable proposals were openly tabled with
a view to persuading the minority shareholders of KBCF
to approve the interested person transactions mandate on
even marginally more favourable terms. Subsequently, the
Company filed a notice of appeal on 23 December 2015
relating to the unfavourable ruling of the judgement. The
appeal hearing is scheduled to take place in March 2017. At
the date of the report, in the opinion of the Directors and the
Company’s lawyer, the liability of this legal case cannot be
quantified at this stage because the outcome of the buy-out
order cannot measured reliably pending the aforementioned
appeal and/or the second part of the trial for the purpose of
determining the quantum of the buy-out order. Accordingly,
no provision for liability has been made in connection with this
claim by the Group.
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
37. OPERATING LEASES 37. RREHEN
2015 2014
—E-RF ZT—mF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
The Group as lessee: AEBEREEA :
Lease payments charged to the consolidated ~ERBALGEBZHFRNR 2
statement of profit or loss during the year HEFIE
— for premises — W 39,924
— for plant and machinery — B 2 1,252
41,176
Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease payments are BEAREBT L 2L - FIEHEERIER
fixed and predetermined. 2 BEERERERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments R EHEERER - NEBIRETA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: HEE 2 2O AR N2 HERE
ARSI EAR AT
Premises Plant and machinery
L/E3 = R es
2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-Rf% —T-WFE Z—B-AF _"—TNUOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHET FAT
Within one year R—FRA 8,975 284
After one year but not R—F&
later than five years ERAFA 21,990 -
After five years REF% 39,869 -

42,919 70,834 284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ —T—AF+_A=+—HILFE

37. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

. REHEY W

2015 2014
—E-HEF —FE PO
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

The Group as lessor/licensor: AEBESHAA TREA
Rental income credited to the consolidated RERFFALGEBRERZ
statement of profit or loss during the year iEEA LN

Licence income credited to the consolidated ~ RERET ALGZEE
statement of profit or loss during the year BEREE AU A

mRLZ

552,090 527,791

120,000 120,000

The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for
periods up to seven years (2014: seven years) at fixed predetermined
amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants and Licencee for the following future minimum payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasing of
investment properties (see note 16) and licence assets (see note 17)
which fall due as follow:

REBZREMELRAFEEZER
HeBETFHIAAL  HHAKERLSF
(ZZF—mF: £F) -

RREPREAERER - RBEEHERED
E(RME16) REEEREE(RME
17) 2 TP ABER A E L - NREEEE
EREEEARTA TIRRREMEER
I8 AT HARI2IE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

Within one year R—FR
After one year but not later than five years R—FREREFA
After five years RAFE

474,413 337,292
620,497 364,647
382,044 268,969

1,476,954 970,908

The Group licences its licenced assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

° Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

° After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ —T—AF+_A=+—HILFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following assets

pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group:

/80

‘ "............’
L]
Em

38. EEEH

RREPEERE R - FEBETHEE
BEMTIRT - FRAREERITREN

R
2015 2014
—E-HF ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FH FHT

Bank balances and cash
Investment properties "EME
Properties held for development FEREWE

RITARESREIRS

- 126,764
1,780,000 1,560,000
2,871,667 2,762,998

4,651,667 4,449,762

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group and are invested in the funds
under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees and each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a

cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2014: HK$30,000).

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is

to make the required contributions.

39. RIKBHFTE

AEERB2IN—BIRIEREEARTE
1&BIFE 2 BB KA B ([ B SR RFT
2l RIREa M ATESEIN =TT
TFE+ ARz AR EATESEE
([BTESETE]) - ZEFTEI 2B ERAK
SECEESRAFBE  WRENRHAET
AP 2 B o AR FE S T8I 2 Al
E2INBERKFEZIES  RKKA
BERARTERBESFTEZKE - M
FER-ZETTF+ Ak 2B MAR
SECZHREENEDINEESE R
e EXRHEEERAZA
RIEE MW A% A EEL MR
= AR A £BRA30,0008T(ZF
—PO4 : 30,000/7T) °

P B R R (B B R BT E(F
ZBEREMERARFTEINE - ZFHMER
AARFHE X HZ K — B D HRARK
BRIETE - U BRERER - AKEL
BRIREN BT —RERIMAM

= it T
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 39.

(continued)

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$150,280,000
(2014: HK$122,709,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2015, contributions of HK$11,439,000 (2014
HK$10,324,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end
of reporting period.

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year.

BIRBFEHE

MBERAKTSE  BESHERERA
REPERFTEZINZHADNAB
150,280,000 & T ( = T — M & -
122,709,000 7 ) + W H B -
RZZE—RAF+-A=+—0 ' BW#H%
HARE B HE 2 £ 5%11,439,000/8 T (=&
— PO ¢ 10,324,000 7T ) I A A+ F 3%
LHE c RS RBEBRIREHBLE RED
KA o

BRBALXS

NEBEBRIHA TEFAETZEX
RBWAT -

2015 2014
—E-HEF —FE P4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Sales of goods to a shareholder with significant R ANE B A& A2 MR &

influence on the Group and its subsidiaries HIfBARIHES R

Purchase of goods from a shareholder with RAAEEEEAFENHRE R
significant influence on the Group and its EHIEBARREER
subsidiaries

Sales of goods to a non-controlling M — I A B2 FRHEARAR R
shareholder of a subsidiary HEEM

Purchase of goods from an associate m—HEEEARREER

Purchase of properties from a shareholder with At AREBHEATE N
significant influence on the Group and its BRENEHBAREEYE
subsidiaries

681,947 715,918

683,336 797,327

67,750 78,347

275,237 262,849

625,220 -

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at
31 December 2015 was an amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$16,245,000 (2014: HK$18,149,000)
which was in trade nature. The Group allowed credit periods of up
to 120 days (2014: 120 days), depending on the product sold to its
related parties.

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
——
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEEBALIRE @
(continued)
Included in trade and other receivables and prepayment at 31 RZE—RAF+ZA=+T—H Bk
December 2015 was an advance payment to an associate of Hith R BR SR R FA R A BB TAN T —
HK$10,117,000 (2014: HK$7,737,000). fEE & N a2 5] €10,117,0008 T (=
T4 : 7,737,000/ 7T) °
Included in trade and other payables at 31 December 2015 was an RZE—RAFT-_A=T—HHNES
advance from an associate of HK$1,172,532,000. FHEMENRBEBSEREHE QRN
1,172,532,000/8 TR E 5K
N -
Compensation of key management personnel EIREEABME

FRN - BEFRLHEMBEIREBAESZIE
LI

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E PO
HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET T

Short-term benefits 2 HAtE A 186,588 191,410
Post-employment benefits RIKIEAE T 1,600 1,900
Share-based payments LARRD A 3R 56,488 5,293

244,676 198,603
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by EERFETBRAEZHESKTMHNEE
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of SERENEIRREMSBREE
individuals and market trends. TE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

41. KA TEME D T

(]

(@ KMEARAN—KRER
ARAREEMBRARINR-E—H
FER-ZFE-—MEF+=-A=+—H
ZHEBIT

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration and paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital

Riizwve BRORARKRE/
WEARER BRREENY ERER
Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islandis’ US$1,000

ERRREHS 1,000%7T
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limited ~ PRC 1S$29,466,000
BB (B BERERAR e 29,466,000 70
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates PRC' US$17,936,546

Co. Ltd. e 17,936, 5463 T
EE(BR)BEARARLE
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. Limited PRC' RMB96,000,000
BB & ERAR e AK96,000,0007C
Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical Co. Limited PRC' RMB357,000,000
BETIEN IARAR e AR™357,000,00070
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRC' 1S$18,500,000
(Chong Qing) Limited HE 18,500,000 7

BEABRLI(ZE)BRAT
Kunshan Guo Rui Development Co. Ltd. PRC' 1S$90,000,000
ELEREEARAT e 90,000,000 7
Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC' HK$30,000,000
EERE L TARAR e 30,000,000 7T

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

Effective equity interest

held by the Group Principal activities
rEESE
ZEBRE TEEH
2015 2014
-1 “ETF
% %
100*  Investment holding
RAER
7459 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
BERHHEIER
7459 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
BERHHEIER
100 Manufacture and distribution
of coke
BERAYER
100 Manufacture and distribution
of chemicals
HERA B IER
100 Manufacture and distribution
of methanol
BERAETE
100 Property developments
FUHELR
100 Manufacture and distribution
of caustic soda
BERAHIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

M.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@ General information of subsidiaries (continued)

g > o® |
o AT YYY LA
L

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 4

/86

1. ZAREEMBLATF

=10

(@ HKEBATN—KRER®E

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/ BRATRBRRA/ rEERE
HWEARER BEREFLE EMER ZERRE TEER
2015 2014
-1 —ET-MF
% %
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass PRC' US$13,700,000 7459 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited A 13,700,000% 7T of glass fabric
REEN RS AERAR BERDEHIBL A
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited © ~ Bermuda * US$72,250,000 48.16"  Investment holding
BEE 72,250,000 70 RERR
Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$8,000 100 Investment holding
REREARAA A 8,000/ RERR
KLHL® Cayman lslands * HK$300,000,000 7459 Investment holding
RERERERERAR FEHE 300,000,000 7 RERR
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC' HK$242,800,000 7459 Manufacture and distribution
IR ERERARAR i 242,800,000757T of laminates
RERHHEIER
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC' 1S$32,000,000 7459 Manufacture and distribution
RE(IHRIARRR i 32,000,000 7T of chemicals
BERAHIIER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd PRC' 1S$32,010,000 7459 Manufacture and distribution
RERER(EL)ERAF i 32,010,000% 7T of laminates
RERHHEIER
Elec & Eltek International Holoings Limited ~ Bermuda/Hong Kong HK$122,467,240 100 Investment holding
N ERREEERAT BRE/BH 122,467 2407571 RERR
EFIC® Singapore * US$113,880,000 70.09  Investment holding
KHEREEARAR * A 113,880,000 7 RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —ZT—AF+_A=+—HILtFE

41. KA TEME D T

A T —RE R (@)

Principal activities

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(@)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) @
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group
HMAEL/ BRATRBRRA/ rEERE
HWEARER BRREEHE EMER ZERRE
2015 2014
ZB-nf ZT-MF
% %
Kaiping Elec & Eltek Company Limited PRC? US$49,520,000 66.59
AT AR T AR AR hEr 49,520,000 7T
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 3 PRC? 1S$87,800,000 66.59
Company Limited PhEP 87,800,000 T
BRI EEFEZERAT
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 5 PRC? US$30,075,100 66.59
Company Limited P 30,075,100% 7T
TN ZEE FERERAA
Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) Electronic PRC? 1S$95,596,000 68.69
Company Limited PhEP 95,596,000
KFZE(BMEFERLE
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia PRC? US$24,800,000 68.69
Technology Limited el 24,800,000 T
BMENZE BRI ER A
Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical PRC' 1S$40,290,000 100
Company Limited HE 40,290,000% T
EMAELIERRA
Shi'You Chemical (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd PRC' US$144,237,000 100
ERILI(BIM)ERAR i 144,237,005

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
ZER D BENRIERRR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
ZER D BENRIERRR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
ZER D BENRIERRR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
ZER D BENRIERRR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
ZERD BENRIERRR

Manufacture and distribution
of phenol/acetone

HERAERY,/ KB

Refining and distribution of
chemicals

RERNHITER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 4

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@ General information of subsidiaries (continued)

N > o® |
®0c00000®
L

/80

1. ZAREEMBLATF

=10

(@ HKEBATN—KRER®E

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration and paid share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMAEL/ BRARBMERE/ rRERE
HWEAREHR BRREEHE EfEL 2 ERIRE TEEH
2015 2014
ZB-nf ZT-MF
% %
Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC' 1S$30,000,000 74.52 7459 Manufacture and distribution
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd hE 30,000,000% 7T of laminates
BEEFHHOIR)ERAR RERHHEAAR
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical PRC' RMB250,000,000 74.52 7459 Manufacture and distribution
Company Limited i AE#250,000,0007T of chemicals
BE(ERED)ALARDE RERNHI IER
* The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI) * ANATEEREBJamplan (BVI) Limited

Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

+ These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of KLHL and
are regarded as non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company
because the Group has control over the financial and operating
policies of KLHL.

These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

These companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

ZBRHE o ARERFTAEMMB AR Z
A% BJamplan (BVI) Limited®#
BA -

¢ I EREZERAR > WEHFELEE
KB o

: SRR RRERERIFZEHAFN
BAR WAAREESZERERNH
BRLEHRABERE  RRARF
FEEBABMBEAR -

¢ SRR ESFR S AARAT]
e

. IERRNEEMARSMARATE
REM

! IS RB AN BECER A ETE
PR3 o

2 IERR ARG ERERELAE
REIKIL

EXRAIARESERRIBFERAEEE
BREEZARFMBAR - EFRR
FIHEMH B AR 2 FEEBRILE -

EHIE D AR F AR A TE M ER

KA o
Az
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. ZATEEMB A T
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & @)
(continued)
(a)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MELARB—RER @
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REHMERER - AAFH
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of BHAEETEANEMHBER
these subsidiaries operate in PRC. The principal activities of A o ZEMB R RIRE D R
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: B8 - ZEWBRAIZEEE
BRELT
Number of subsidiaries
Principal place of MEBARHE
Principal activities business 2015 2014
FEEWR TEEEMR —E-HE —ZTF
Manufacture and sale of laminates PRC 25
BUE N HE B E R =2
Macau 2
ST
Thailand 1
ZE
28
Manufacture and sale of PCBs Hong Kong 2
U3 2 S EDRI AR BE IR BE
PRC 12
H
Macau 3
ST
Thailand 1
ZE
18
Manufacture and sale of chemicals PRC 20
BlERNHEECIER A EY
Properties Hong Kong 7
ZJES BB
PRC 48
H
United Kingdom 3
4
58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
further acquired certain subsidiaries with a consideration
of HK$90,936,000 (2014:HK$70,194,000). As a result
of the acquisitions, the difference of HK$67,695,000
(2014:HK$14,943,000) between the consideration paid of
HK$90,936,000 (2014: HK$70,194,000) and the amount
of non-controlling interests acquired of HK$158,631,000
(2014:HK$85,137,000) was directly recognised in goodwill
reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed partially its interests in a subsidiary without losing the
control over this subsidiary. An amount of HK$8,603,000 has
been transferred to non-controlling interests. The difference of
HK$1,298,000 between the increasing in the non-controlling
interests and the consideration received has been recognised
in the goodwill reserve.

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

/80

'.......... .’

. ARBEEMER AR

=10

(b) #BE-—ZT—RE+-A=+—H
IEFER - AEBE—HUIES
FHBEA R - R{E4A90,936,000
BT (ZZ—PU4F : 70,194,000
FBIT) o WERIFEHENRE
90,936,000 I (—Z—PU4F :
70,194,000/ 7T ) B1 B2 Uk % FE 4%
% A% B 4 %5 158,631,000 7% 7T
(ZZ—P04 : 85,137,000/ 7T )
2 [ £ 5867,695,0007 7T( =
T — P4 : 14,943,000 70 ) &
R B EER -

EIJJ:EF“ ZKE@ﬁ%ﬁﬁé—
EX NGOl TS
EHZMB AR ZIEFE - — %
8,603,000/ T IEE B E T
SRR RS o FEPEAR AR IE AN K
B U KBz 21,298,000 7T
EHONEERERR -

() BEEERFZERBRER
12;%%?%%[‘19‘%’&?]%
R
TREFIAEE G EAIER
EREGZIF2EHRBHER

interests: Al
Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal place of held by non-controlling Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EEILR FERBRRERERE BEFER RitFER
WEAREH TEEENY BERREELA BREs 2k (58) T 5
2015 2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-n% C—T-MF Z2-1f CT-MmF Z%-1f _—Z-QF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TEL TER TR
KLHL Cayman Islands 25.48% 322,425 285,060 3,355,056 3,379,524
EERER FEES
EEIC Singapore 26.35% (9,942 741,959 775,872
EEIC R
KBCF Bermuda 50.85% 411 I 474,068 530,434
KBCF BRE

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

BEFERRREE BT EANEAT

1,523,476 1,611,062

6,094,559 |EECNACRStYA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

RRBEEMB LA

5o

) BEEERFERERFREDR

have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHEEEREEMBLAF
&)
KLHL BEEER
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Current assets TREVAE 14,947,344 13,312,410
Non-current assets JEMBNE E 8,083,653 9,610,176
Current liabilities mENAE 5,068,422 6,198,962
Non-current liabilities SEMEIAE 3,809,414 2,329,964

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 &355 A FE(h s

13,167,408 13,299,975

985,753 1,093,685

12,769,720 13,282,694

11,498,720 12,146,719

Non-controlling interests Sl e
Revenue EER

Expenses, other gains and losses FisZ ~ At e R EstE
Profit for the year ANE T

1,271,000 1,135,975

Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 &35 A JE (L % F

Profit attributable to the non-controlling AR BIFEIERR R R i s PR

942,978 836,782

322,425 285,060

5,597 14,133

interests of the Company Al

Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEIE B AR FEIE AR AR
interests of KLHL Tz FE AR 52 F)

Profit for the year ARNE 5w F

1,271,000 1,135,975

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41 EQATETEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFERBRES
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHIEZEEBWBRAF
B
KLHL (continued) BEEEER(E)
2015 2014
—E-REF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Other comprehensive expenses RAREB ARG
attributable to owners of the Company Hih 2 M (694,759) (150,423)
Other comprehensive expenses A R FEIE AR AR R R RS
attributable to the non-controlling Hih2mEX
interests of the Company (237,553) (561,244)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable 32 5E 18 Bk JEIE AR AL R 2 5
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL EiEEMEmEmAX (45,007) (3,236)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year AN [EH it 2 EFI (977,319) (204,903)
Total comprehensive income attributable "2 T B AEIEE2E
to owners of the Company Wzs4a s 248,219 686,359
Total comprehensive income attributable 7K/ &1 FE3E A IR R AE S FEAG
to the non-controlling interests of P HEEBEE
the Company 84,872 233,816
Total comprehensive (expense) income S ETE B R IEIE AR A R RS
attributable to the non-controlling a2 m (X )k eEE
interests of KLHL (39,410) 10,897
Total comprehensive income for the year AN [E 2 UKz 4258 293,681 931,072
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 745 T JEH AR AR ER A 25 2 PR, 11,239
Net cash inflow from operating activities TR ENIR 2 A TR 643,508 1,492,756
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing WEEBRERA
activities O ) $%8 646,203 (359,348)
Net cash outflow from financing activites ~ E & /EZENIR &R H 558 (787,247) (1,043,974)
Net cash inflow WEmAFE 502,464 89,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 20156 BZ —Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. ZATEEMB A T
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & @)
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFEERBRES
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHEEEREEMBLAF
&)
EEIC EEIC
2015 2014
—E—ERE —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current assets MENE E 1,492,109 1,692,717
Non-current assets EMENEE 3,119,688 2,916,397
Current liabilities mENAE 1,436,191 1,586,551
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 278,756 349,705
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 T34 A FE(E #ERS 2,815,644 2,594,023
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R R AR RS 81,206 78,835
Revenue L 3,533,267 4,033,185
Expenses, other gains and losses FisZ ~ At e R EstE 3,564,530 3,999,871
(Loss) profit for the year EE (E1E) = A (31,263) 33,314
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of KAEFEE AL
the Company (B18) & F (27,787) 19,140
(Loss) profit attributable to the RN EFEIERR AR SR e
non-controlling interests of the FE(E (B518) 4 A
Company (9,942) 8,168
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICIEIZ=AR AR SR iz
interests of EEIC FE(E 5 I 6,466
(Loss) profit for the year RFE (E1E) = T (31,263)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 11. KRB FEEMRB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFERBRES
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHIEZEEBWBRAF
&)
EEIC (continued) EEIC(%&)
2015 2014
—Z—-HF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET 4T

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
attributable to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
attributable to the non-controlling
interests

RAREHB ARG
Hith 2 mE s (Fs2)

TR AR ACR (A
Hith 2 ez (FIs0)

223,218

79,867

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year

REEE M2 E R (Fx)

303,085

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests of
the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable

AARFHBEAREEZES S
B

EAUNSIE 2230 &3 ]
R

EEICIEIZ= AR A% SR A R

195,431

69,925

6,466

to the non-controlling interests of EEIC AW LATE
Total comprehensive income AEEREP AT

for the year

271,822

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

S T IR R 2R 2 LS

Net cash inflow from operating activities

REXEBRERSRANFE

263,211 364,354

Net cash outflow from investing activities

REXRBAGHRSRHIFEE

(197,246) (320,518)

Net cash outflow from financing activities

BE XTSRRI FHE

(151,523)

Net cash (outflow) inflow

R ORt)RANFE

(85,558)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE
41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. KRTEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & @)
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFEERBRES
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHEEEREEMBLAF
(16
KBCF KBCF
2015 2014
—E-REF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current assets TREVAE 1,602,975 1,482,036
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,268,952 1,501,767
Current liabilities MEEE 100,988
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZxA &35 5 A FE(LiEzs 2,737,996 2,856,626
Non-controlling interests FEFE R AR SR
Revenue ] 624,344 519,945
Expenses, other gains and losses Bt - Efbleas K& EE 617,938 497,100
Profit for the year AREE T

Profit attributable to owners of the Company <A &3 8 A JE(5 %
Profit attributable to the non-controlling VIN/NE L2 i e e

interests of the Company FE(5 & A

Profit attributable to the non-controlling R ERIFE R A R
interests of KLHL FEMR T

Profit attributable to the non-controlling KBCF3EfZ A% R i
interest of KBCF FEIE =T

Profit for the year NSl

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. KATEEMB ARG
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFERBRES
have material non-controlling interests (continued) ZHIEZEEBWBRAF
&)
KBCF (continued) KBCF(#&)
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAEL
Other comprehensive expenses RATFA ARG EA
attributable to owners of the Company EXENET (59,698)
Other comprehensive expenses PN/NSI P g
attributable to the non-controlling ErEMEERY
interests of the Company (20,412)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable 25 & [E 1R JE15 AR A% S 25
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL G EM2EmAS (41,361)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable KBCFIEZ I& B% B8 HE 25 FE1
to the non-controlling interests of KBCF Ht2EMAS (1,981)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AFEHMEEHHY (123,452)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income AR BAELEZE

attributable to owners of the Company (AZ)a=EsE (58,301)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income  ZNA RIZEIE R IR B 25

attributable to the non-controliing FEiE2mE (RS WmietE

interests of the Company (19,935)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income B EiaEBHRIEIEIRIRE

attributable to the non-controlling EEEAEE () KE

interests of KLHL 4eEE (40,394)
Total comprehensive income attributable ~ KBCFIEIZE AR A& B A 25 FE 1

to the non-controlling interests of KBCF 2 HE =R 1,584

Total comprehensive (expenses) income AEE2ME(FAX) WA
for the year (117,046)

Net cash inflow from operating activities AR SRNTRE 154,513 214,864

Net cash outflow from investing activities ~— 1R& 2G5SR SR F5E

Net cash outflow from financing activities ~ gb&/EENATEBIR &R H F58 (6,425)

Net cash inflow B RAFERE 147,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - E—AF+-A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

B) 2 A R AR 5 I A

HK$°000
FET

2,664
862,255
417,642

1,282,561

199,485
22,655,718
161,064

23,016,267

Non-current assets SEREBNAE
Properties, plant and equipment WE - BB R
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE
Available-for-sale investments AIMREERE

Current assets MEEE
Other receivables HAb AR
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A RIFIA
Bank balances IRITHERR

Current liabilities MEAE
Other payables HAbFERBRK
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIHT B A RFIA
Bank borrowings — amount due within RITIEE

one year

——HFREIH A

8,218
8,086,389

2,361,054

10,455,661

12,560,606

Net current assets MEEEFE
Total asset less current liabilities BEAEBERRDAR
Non-current liabilities SEREBAE

Bank borrowings —amount due after one year

RITIEE — —FRI M2 F0R

13,843,167

8,635,360

5,207,807

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

B A B fet
B
fEf (HIRE)

102,560
5,105,247

5,207,807

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 28t TEMER AR

2014
—Z—F
HK$’'000
FAT

3,676
868,422
627,735

1,489,733

213,241
22,920,191
19,5641

23,162,973

6,254
7,974,445

4,079,055

12,059,754

11,093,219

12,582,952

7,479,409

5,103,543

102,560
5,000,983

5,103,543



Balance at 31 December 2015

R=F—RF+=-A=+—H

P

Note a: Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of loss on
fair value changes amounting to HK$2,906,000 (2014: HK$20,914,000),
gain on disposal amounting to HK$99,602,000 (2014: HK$50,025,000)
and impairment loss amounting to HK$177,322,000 (2014: nil).

4,457,742

291,588

FiisEa :

(2,218)

AHREEREEENEHFER
% 2,906,000 # T ( = & — Y £ -
20,914,000 7t.) A F &
99,602,000 # T ( = & — Y & :
50,025,000 7& 7T ) i & FT 15 W s &
177,322,000 70 (= F —U4F : )R

BEEE -

356,224

A OE » “"’ooooo.".‘ I
AN o
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AL >
AN BEEN
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+—A=+—HILtFE
— AR
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42, &2 Tz B8k w & fi#
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY E
(continued)
Note: BT
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption options revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
EXER ELBRE REBR
IR 1758 it 3 f#E  REER ko]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FHAT FHAT FAIL FHT
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E—ME—A—B &% 4,457,742 1,911 273,786 (6,093) 250,206 4,977,552
Profit for the year REE T - - - - 499,342 499,342
Net changes arising from available- It HH &R EES: 2 B33 E
for-sale investments (note a) (BfsEa) - - - (70,939) - (70,939)
Total comprehensive (expenses) NEE2E(FX)
income for the year W B 5 - - - (70,939) 499,342 428,403
Recognition of equity-settled R EREE R
share-based payments AR - - 5,268 - - 5,268
Lapse of share options BB R - - (50,230) - 50,230 -
Final dividend for the year ended BE-_T—=%+-A=1+—H
31 December 2013 1HFE 2 RERR S - - - - (205,120)  (205,120)
Interim dividend for the year ended BE-_Z-NFE+-A=1+—H
31 December 2014 IHFE 2 RERR S - - - - (205,120)  (205,120)
- - (44,962) - (360,010)  (404,972)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E—ME+-F=1+—8H
pa 0 4,457,742 1,911 228,824 (77,032) 389,538 5,000,983
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - 479,486 479,486
Net changes arising from available- — AIfEHEREEE 7 S8 FE
for-sale investments (note a) (Pffzta) - - - 74,814 - 74,814
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENEFHR)
(expenses) for the year 1a%s - - - 74,814 479,486 554,300
Recognition of equity-settled RN ES S EA R,
share-based payments AR - - 62,764 - - 62,764
Final dividend for the year ended HE-_Z-—-NMF+=-A=1+—H
31 December 2014 HEE Y RERA - - - - (307,680)  (307,680)
Interim dividend for the yearended ~ #Z—Z—HF+_-_A=1+—H
31 December 2015 IHEE T RERA - - - - (205,120  (205,120)
- - 62,764 - (512,800)  (450,036)

5,105,247

48 598 -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M=

— = =
RESULTS E 4 |
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=+—BLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F ET——-F FT—=F T-NF E-HF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FET
Revenue L 36,559,072 37,290,319 35,689,457 35,005,766 MErNfERED
Profit before taxation B3 78 TS ) 3,719,637 2,926,993 3,899,973 3,513,621 2,522,559
Income tax expense FriSHifsE (513,061) (420,028) (608,350) (692,615) (569,464)
Profit for the year REFE 5 F 3,206,576 2,506,965 3,291,623 2,821,006 M
Attributable to: JEIL1A%E -
Owners of the Company ~ &NAQEEHH A 2,594,142 2,097,031 2,961,409 2,536,800 1,650,323
Non-controlling interests IR AR R = 612,434 409,934 330,214 284,206 302,772
3,206,576 2,506,965 3,291,623 2,821,006 m
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F —ZT-—F —T-=F —ZT-NMNF =B-IHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET FHET FHET
Total assets BEmE 60,459,227 60,934,532 74,860,241 75,632,742 RygXPIKLY
Total liabilities afEBE (26,464,841) (24,785,386) (34,000,282) (33,659,552) MEFRE1FY(0)]
33,994,386 36,149,146 40,859,959 41,973,190
Equity attributable to ViN/NCEIE= =N
owners of the Company fEfh S 28,045,380 30,645,635 34,158,243 35,676,308 MELFLER[F]
Non-controlling interests e 5,949,006 5,503,511 6,701,716 6,296,882 6,094,559
33,994,386 36,149,146 40,859,959 41,973,190 WEEKEINIY

@ KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &t TEEER AR
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KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
8D EEBNEEF AR RNER1257E S 1E2148
Tel &% : (852) 2605 6493 Fax & : (852) 2691 5245
E-mail £ : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #8341t : http://www.kingboard.com
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